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CHAIRMAN MESSAGE

 
 
 

Dear Members,

It is my privilege to write to you and present the 
Annual Report of your Company for the financial year 
2024–25.

I hope this letter finds you safe and in good health.

My letter of introduction to your Annual Report 
last year that demonstrate the difficulties faced 
by the business and performance delivered in 
difficult circumstances. The Rice industry has always 
been considered by its fluctuating nature, but the 
combination of various factors in recent times such as 
climate change and geopolitical fears have keen the 
level of volatility in the industry.

This year, despite of continuing challenges ahead, the 
Company has delivered optimum operational results 
while continuing to invest for the future.

We are committed to doing all this in a way that 
drives long-term shareholder value by creating 
shared value for all of our stakeholders, including 
customers, associates, suppliers, business partners, 
and communities.

The Indian Basmati Rice is presently at the crossroads 
with domestic demand remaining lot to consistent 
almost at par with the last year & with one of the 

all-time high crop size last harvests, there is now large volumes of 
unsold carry forward stocks available. Due to the adverse geopolitical 
situation with ongoing wars in the Middle East & Ukraine Russia, 
the world has been pretty disturbed over the last 1 year. The Indian 
Basmati Rice market has been equally bumpy, we have had good 
crop, but the prices first had steep rise and later dropped at the same 
speed, which disturbed most of the basmati rice traders, who were 
sitting on volumes and wanted to earn easy money. To the contrary 
in the international markets, the prices were stable and demand 
normal; the steep rise and fall of prices in the domestic do not have 
much bearing for established brands like ‘Kohinoor’. Overall, while 
the value of basmati rice exports may have risen due to higher costs, 
but the quantities have come down, which is quite normal as exports 
of Indian basmati rice last year to Iran has also come down due to 
political disturbances. The recent Tariff war is posing yet another 
challenge to the India Basmati exports to the USA with preferential 
treatment to our business rivals Pakistan.            

The global Ready-to-Eat food market is poised for robust growth, 
fueled by evolving consumer lifestyles, health awareness, and 
technological advancements. Regional markets display unique 
characteristics and growth drivers, with Asia-Pacific and North 
America leading expansion. Companies that innovate in health, 
convenience, and sustainability while adapting to regional tastes and 
regulations will thrive in this dynamic and competitive landscape.

The global Ready-to-Eat food market size was valued at approximately 
USD 189.1 billion in 2024 and is expected to grow to USD 269.4 
billion by 2033, registering a CAGR of 4.01% during the forecast 
period (2025-2033).

Ensuring consistent quality and food safety remains a critical challenge 
for RTE food manufacturers in India. Consumers are increasingly 
discerning about the ingredients used, nutritional value, and hygiene 
standards of RTE products. manufacturers are investing in advanced 
processing technologies, stringent quality control measures, and 
adherence to international food safety standards. There is also 
a growing trend towards transparency in labeling, highlighting 
nutritional information and ingredient sourcing to build consumer 
trust. Innovation will focus on health, convenience, sustainability, and 
personalized nutrition. Increasing use of AI and data analytics will 
help tailor products to consumer preferences. Sustainable packaging 
and transparent sourcing will become standard expectations.

In late 2017-18, we set a goal to overcome from the financial crises 
and work towards regaining the glory of your company, which requires 
time, courage and trust and encourages others to work towards the 
same goal. The Board reinforced this commitment in 2024-25, which 
sets forth our key goals and strategies towards overcoming the 
situation.

Your Board is committed to maintaining highest standards of 
corporate governance and will continue to review and strengthen 
these practices and your Board endless efforts towards strategic 
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transformation during this time of rapid change. Where, it gives confidence that the Board experience to serve our company and 
to continue to guide us in the years to come to meet the Company purpose – Building a brighter future for all –our fundamental 
and the role in supporting economic growth, contributing to prosperity, and helping customers achieve their goals.

Your Company achieved a total turn-over of INR 863.93 Million (Mn.) as against INR 950.97 Million (Mn.) of last year, the rice 
business turnover stood at INR 5.81 Mn. as against INR 106.52 Mn. of last year, the food business turnover stood at INR 836.99 
Mn. as against INR 836.72 Mn. of last year. The food factory has continued its operation effectively in spite of the liquidity problem 
which improved our production & revenues from food business.

Recently your company had added scaling up its operations. Exploring more potential in the food business to make best use of its 
marketing network and strengthen it further to regain the market share. Now your company has started direct exports to different 
countries for both rice and food products. 

Nevertheless, Your Company have been started evolving with your trust and support, as in the last few years, your Company could 
not perform well because of financial constraint, ongoing economic pressure and pandemic. On the hindsight export market 
was low on sentiments & actual realization due to economic instability around countries beside our own constraint of business 
operation due to liquidity crunch. However Kohinoor is still striving to grow steadily and place its presence around world across 
renowned players.  

KFL participates across nations and around world, under its few prestigious brands for sale of rice and processed & packed food 
business.

We further inform the members that with an objective to improve the financials of the company, your company is exploring the 
possibilities such as:

a. Looking for Investor to infuse funds in the company.

b. Executing with the Banks for restructuring of borrowings or settlement of loans.

The company is working aggressively on the said lines to improve its financial/business to achieve the seemless working.

With the objective of bringing authentic Indian flavours to the people all over the world, we want your company Kohinoor Foods 
Ltd. to become a leading name in the food business globally as well. In pursuit of our vision to make Kohinoor the most trusted 
& preferred food brand in export markets, we would continue to develop products, increase operational efficiency and follow our 
successful strategies.

I am grateful to the Board of Directors for their unwavering support and guidance. I also take this opportunity to express my 
gratitude to all our consumers, business partners, employees and stakeholders who have shown their trust in us and have extended 
their constant support.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for your continued trust, confidence, and support as we enter a brave new 
decade—one that is already rewriting the rules of the past.

With best wishes,

Sincerely
Sd/-
Jugal Kishore Arora
Chairman
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Directors’ Report and Management Discussion & Analysis
The following report should be read in conjunction with the 
audited financial statements and notes for the year ended 
March 31, 2025 and the audited financial statements and 
notes for the year ended March 31, 2024. This report contains 
forward looking statements, which may be identified by 
their use of words like ‘plans’, ‘expects’, ‘will’, ‘anticipates’, 
‘believes’, ‘intends’, ‘projects’, ‘estimates’ or other words of 
similar meaning. All statements that address expectations 
or projections about the future, including but not limited to 
statements about the Company’s strategy for growth, market 
position, expenditures, and financial results, are forward looking 
statements. Forward looking statements are based on certain 
assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company 
cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations 
are accurate or will be realized. The Company’s actual results, 
performance or achievements could thus differ materially from 
those projected in any such forward looking statements. The 
Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify 
or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any 
subsequent developments, information or events.

Company – In General

Synonymous with the fine taste of India in its absolute authentic 
form, the sole objective of Kohinoor Foods Limited, since its 
inception, has been to make the world experience the true 
Indian flavor. The Company offers an extensive range that caters 
to consumers’ need in all parts of the world – a wide variety 
of Basmati Rice, Ready to Eat Curries & Meals, Readymade 
Gravies, Cooking Pastes, Chutney’s, Spices and Seasonings 
to Frozen Breads, Snacks & Paneer (Indian Cottage Cheese), 
healthy grains, edible oils. Today, the most powerful brand of 
the Company “Kohinoor” is a household name in the countries 
like USA, UAE, Canada, Australia, Middle East, Singapore, Japan, 
Mauritius & other European countries. As of now, the brand 
‘Kohinoor’ is known worldwide. 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 36th Annual 
Report and the Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for 
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.

Financial Overview

The financial highlights for the year ending 31st March, 2025 
are as under:

(Rs. In Million
Particulars FY'25 FY'24
Total Turnover 914.09 957.33
Profit/(Loss) Before Interest,
Depreciation and Tax (PBIDT) 3,479.48 153.72
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 3,705.44 (89.43)
Less: Tax Expense 57.66 -44.15
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 3,647.77 (45.29)
Total Comprehensive
income for the year 3,646.23 (46.83)

The Board’s Report has been prepared based on the standalone 
financial statements of the Company.

Operations

During the Year, your company focused on the restructuring of 
the company operations due to various constraint faced due to 
financial crisis, various measures have been taken for reduction 
of the cost of operation. Despite of the factors faced by the 
company during the year you company remain committed to 
providing world class quality product to its consumer, focused 
in improving operational efficiencies across its functions and 
enhancing its reach to the global consumers.  

For the financial year under review 2024-25, the contribution 
made by Rice to the Company’s business is INR 5.58 million as 
against INR 106.52 million in previous year while as the Food 
Business stood at INR 836.99 million as against INR 836.72 
million in the last financial year.

The year saw an increase of 0.03% in food business in sales in 
value terms in comparison to last year sales. Sales market was 
down due to instability in the overseas market and the financial 
constraint faced by the Company. 

Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic 

Details of the impact of Covid-19, have been provided in the 
notes to financial statements forming part of this report.

Subsidiaries / Joint Venture

USA Operations

Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. was incorporated in year 2000 in 
the state of New Jersey, USA, as a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Kohinoor Foods Limited (KFL), India, to cater to the markets of 
US & Canada. The brand ‘Kohinoor’ is well known in USA for its 
quality rice and food items.

However, during the current year this company did not carry 
any business as their is no export sales for KFL India to US & 
Cananda, at present the office is closed due to no business.

Food Business

During the year 2024-25, in processed & packaged food 
products the company did the business of around INR 836.99 
million as against INR 836.72 million in the previous year. The 
food factory has continued its operation effectively which 
improved our production & revenues from food business 
inspite of the liquidity problem and Global Political Market 
hindrance.

Australia, USA, Canada are major markets for our range of 
processed & packaged food products.
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Overview - Ready to Eat Industry 

Food Business Overview

The Global Ready-to-Eat (RTE) Meals Market is segmented by:

	 Product Type: Instant Breakfast/Cereals, Instant Soups 
and Snacks, Ready Meals, Baked Goods, Meat Products, 
and Other Product Types.

	 Distribution Channel: Hypermarkets/Supermarkets, 
Convenience Stores, Online Retail Stores, and Other 
Distribution Channels.

	 Geography: North America, Europe, Asia-Pacific, Latin 
America, and Middle East & Africa.

Ready-to-Eat Food Market Analysis

The global Ready-to-Eat food market size was valued at 
approximately USD 189.1 billion in 2024 and is expected to 
grow to USD 269.4 billion by 2033, registering a CAGR of 4.01% 
during the forecast period (2025-2033).

The RTE food sector is evolving rapidly due to shifting 
consumer preferences, technological advances, and various 
economic factors:

1.  Market Growth Drivers

Rising Consumer Disposable Income and Higher Purchasing 
Power

	 In As economies continue to expand, consumers are 
experiencing greater financial stability, enabling them to 
spend more on convenient and premium food products. 
According to the World Bank, global disposable income 
per capita has witnessed consistent growth over the past 
decade, allowing consumers to explore a wider variety of 
food options that offer both convenience and quality.

	 This surge in disposable income has led to a shift in 
consumer preferences towards time-saving and hassle-
free meal solutions. As more individuals can afford 
to purchase higher-priced, premium RTE products, 
manufacturers are capitalizing on this trend by offering 
diverse and innovative meal options that cater to various 
dietary preferences, including organic, gluten-free, and 
plant-based varieties. 

2. 	 Rapidly Expanding Retail and E-Commerce Channels

	 Manufacturers are capitalizing on modern retail formats 
and digital shopping solutions to boost product visibility 
and accessibility as consumers continue to adopt them. 
The growing presence of supermarkets, hypermarkets, 
convenience stores, and online grocery platforms has 
made RTE food products more accessible, aligning with 
the fast-paced lifestyles of urban consumers.

	 E-commerce, in particular, has transformed the food retail 
landscape by offering the convenience of purchasing RTE 
meals from the comfort of home. Currently, around 2.77 
billion people worldwide make online purchases through 
dedicated eCommerce platforms or social media stores 
reflecting a growing preference for online shopping. 
This trend is further supported by rising smartphone 
penetration and improved internet connectivity, 
especially in emerging economies. Retail giants and 
digital platforms are capitalizing on this opportunity by 
expanding their RTE product portfolios, including frozen 
meals, instant snacks, and healthy meal kits.

	 Working Couples, Parenting Millennials and Younger 
Population Living Apart from Families Staying apart from 
families to reduce down on the travel time, and at times 
due to employment in cities other than native cities, large 
number of younger population and working couples 
is following it as a common practice in India which is 
eventually resulting in a higher consumption of packaged 
and RTE food. The processed food business is driven by a 
higher need for convenience because of customers’ busy 
lifestyles. There has been a progressive move away from 
the conventional paradigm of daily cooking because of 
the rise in the number of workers in developing nations 
like India as well as the tendency towards longer and 
more unpredictable working hours. Furthermore, because 
it boosts consumer purchasing power, rising disposable 
income is another element that significantly affects the 
expansion of the food market.

3. Restraints/Challenges

High Cost of Ready-To-Eat (RTE) Compared to Home-
Cooked Meals

	 Consumers, particularly in price-sensitive regions, 
often find RTE food items significantly more expensive 
than preparing meals from scratch. This cost disparity 
can be attributed to several factors, including the use 
of premium ingredients, packaging, processing, and 
logistics expenses.

	 According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, the average 
cost of a home-cooked meal in the U.S. is approximately 
USD4 per serving, while the cost of a single RTE meal 
can range from USD7 to USD15, depending on the brand 
and ingredients used. This price gap makes it difficult 
for many consumers, especially those from middle- and 
low-income groups, to justify frequent purchases of RTE 
products. Moreover, the perception that RTE meals offer 
less value for money when compared to freshly prepared 
home meals further limits market penetration.
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Intense Market Competition Amongst Major Food Brands 
And Regional Players

	 Large multinational brands are leveraging their robust 
distribution networks and established brand equity 
to maintain dominance, while regional players are 
capitalizing on local preferences and cost advantages. This 
competition is compelling manufacturers to innovate and 
differentiate their product offerings to capture consumer 
attention. Brands are increasingly investing in marketing 
strategies and product diversification to stand out, often 
introducing unique flavors, fortified ingredients, and 
health-focused formulations. 

	 However, maintaining competitiveness amid aggressive 
pricing strategies and promotional campaigns remains a 
significant challenge. Smaller and regional manufacturers 
often struggle to match the economies of scale enjoyed 
by industry giants, resulting in narrower profit margins. In 
addition, the emergence of private-label products from 
major retail chains is adding further pressure on branded 
products, as consumers increasingly opt for affordable 
alternatives without compromising on quality.

Quality and Safety Assurance

	 Ensuring consistent quality and food safety remains 
a critical challenge for RTE food manufacturers in 
India. Consumers are increasingly discerning about 
the ingredients used, nutritional value, and hygiene 
standards of RTE products. Issues such as contamination, 
inadequate packaging, and improper storage can 
compromise food safety and tarnish brand reputation. 
To address this challenge, manufacturers are investing 
in advanced processing technologies, stringent quality 
control measures, and adherence to international food 
safety standards. There is also a growing trend towards 
transparency in labeling, highlighting nutritional 
information and ingredient sourcing to build consumer 
trust.

Ready-to-Eat Food Market Trends

	 Surge in Demand for Convenient and Healthy Instant 
Food

	 The US, Germany, and the UK are major established 
markets, while Asia-Pacific, the Middle East, and Latin 
America are emerging as growth hotspots.

	 Busy lifestyles among working professionals, students, 
and bachelors increase demand for instant meals and 
snacks.

	 Disposable and sustainable packaging enhances product 
convenience and appeal.

Asia-Pacific Dominance

	 Asia-Pacific leads the global market due to urbanization, 
middle-class expansion, and rapid lifestyle changes.

	 China and India are key growth markets, driven by rising 
demand for frozen and chilled ready meals.

	 Consumers increasingly seek health-conscious and 
premium RTE options with variety in Flavors and formats.

Ready-to-Eat Food Industry Overview

	 The market is highly competitive, with players engaging in 
product innovation, mergers & acquisitions, geographic 
expansions, and strategic marketing.

	 Companies focus on product quality, taste, packaging, 
and price to differentiate their offerings.

	 High profitability encourages innovation, including 
healthier, sustainable, and convenience-oriented product 
launches.

Global Ready-to-Eat Food Market: Regional Insights

North America

	 Market Size: Approx. USD 422.8 billion.

	 Growth Drivers: Busy lifestyles, high disposable incomes, 
strong demand for organic and low-calorie options.

	 Trends: Premiumization and health-focused products 
dominate.

Europe

	 Market Size: Approx. USD 201.82 billion.

	 Growth Drivers: Innovation in packaging, sustainability  
concerns, and rising demand for premium RTE products.

	 Trends: Eco-friendly packaging and organic options are 
growing in popularity.

Asia-Pacific

	 Market Size: Approx. USD 80.31 billion.

	 Growth Drivers: Urbanization, rising middle class, and 
increasing adoption of western food habits.

	 Trends: Growth of online retail channels and demand for 
both local and international cuisines.

Latin America

	 Market Size: Approx. USD 15.6 billion.

	 Growth Drivers: Economic development and increasing 
urbanization.

	 Trends: Rising interest in convenient and healthy RTE 
food options.
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Middle East & Africa

	 Market Size: Approx. USD 12.3 billion.

	 Growth Drivers: Growing urban populations and 
demand for convenience foods.

	 Trends: Innovation in frozen RTE products and region-
specific flavors.

The Indian Frozen Foods Market

	 Market size reached approximately INR 167.3 billion in 
2023.

	 Expected to reach INR 561.6 billion by 2032, growing at a 
CAGR of 14% (2024-2032).

	 Growth factors include urbanization, increased disposable 
incomes, cold chain infrastructure development, and 
rising demand for convenience foods.

	 Challenges include supply chain optimization and 
consumer education about frozen food benefits.

Quality and Safety Assurance

Ensuring consistent quality and food safety remains a critical 
challenge for RTE food manufacturers in India. Consumers are 
increasingly discerning about the ingredients used, nutritional 
value, and hygiene standards of RTE products. Issues such as 
contamination, inadequate packaging, and improper storage 
can compromise food safety and tarnish brand reputation. To 
address this challenge, manufacturers are investing in advanced 
processing technologies, stringent quality control measures, 
and adherence to international food safety standards. There 
is also a growing trend towards transparency in labeling, 
highlighting nutritional information and ingredient sourcing to 
build consumer trust.

Distribution and Logistics Challenges

Efficient distribution and logistics pose significant challenges 
in the RTE food market, especially in a vast and diverse 
country like India. Maintaining a cold chain for perishable 
RTE products, ensuring timely deliveries to urban and rural 
areas, and managing inventory effectively are crucial for 
market penetration and consumer satisfaction. Improving 
infrastructure, leveraging technology for real-time tracking, 
and partnering with reliable logistics providers are strategies 
adopted by RTE manufacturers to streamline distribution 
channels and enhance operational efficiency.

Future Outlook

Innovation will focus on health, convenience, sustainability, and 
personalized nutrition. Increasing use of AI and data analytics 
will help tailor products to consumer preferences. Sustainable 
packaging and transparent sourcing will become standard 
expectations.

Summary

The global Ready-to-Eat food market is poised for robust 
growth, fueled by evolving consumer lifestyles, health 
awareness, and technological advancements. Regional markets 
display unique characteristics and growth drivers, with Asia-
Pacific and North America leading expansion. Companies 
that innovate in health, convenience, and sustainability while 
adapting to regional tastes and regulations will thrive in this 
dynamic and competitive landscape.

Basmati Rice

The Indian Basmati Rice is presently at the crossroads with 
domestic demand remaining lot to consistent almost at par 
with the last year & with one of the all-time high crop size last 
harvests, there is now large volumes of unsold carry forward 
stocks available. Due to the adverse geopolitical situation 
with ongoing wars in the Middle East & Ukraine Russia, the 
world has been pretty disturbed over the last 1 year. The Indian 
Basmati Rice market has been equally bumpy, we have had 
good crop, but the prices first had steep rise and later dropped 
at the same speed, which disturbed most of the basmati rice 
traders, who were sitting on volumes and wanted to earn 
easy money. To the contrary in the international markets, the 
prices were stable and demand normal; the steep rise and 
fall of prices in the domestic do not have much bearing for 
established brands like ‘Kohinoor’. Overall, while the value of 
basmati rice exports may have risen due to higher costs, but the 
quantities have come down, which is quite normal as exports 
of Indian basmati rice last year to Iran has also come down 
due to political disturbances. The recent Tariff war is posing yet 
another challenge to the India Basmati exports to the USA with 
preferential treatment to our business rivals Pakistan.            

Risks & Concerns

The Company has received Notices from the Banks under 
section 13(2) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of 
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, 
in the month of July 2018 to May 2019 and in the month of 
February 2020 to September 2020. The Company has replied 
to the notices received from the Bank within 60 days from 
the date of notices. The Company has also received Notices 
from the Banks under section 13(4) of The Securitization and 
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security 
Interest Act, 2002. The Company has already approached Banks 
with suitable resolution plan for their consideration which the 
consortium has sanctioned. The Company has deposited INR 
200 Crores with the Consortium lenders, as per the terms of the 
One Time Settlement (O.T.S.) sanctioned.

The Lead Bank has filed petition against Company before 
Hon’ble NCLT Bench Chandigarh, the company is contesting 
the matter, and the petition is yet to be admitted.
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The Company has filed an appeal before Hon’ble High Court, 
Punjab & Haryana for stay. The Hon’ble High Court has granted 
Interim stay.

One of the member Consortium Bank has filed petition 
against Company before Hon’ble NCLT Bench Chandigarh, the 
company is contesting the matter and the petition is yet to be 
admitted.

The Company has received an ex-parte interim order from 
Debt Recovery Tribunal-III, Delhi dated 25/06/2020 restraining 
the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise 
dealing with, or disposing off or encumbering or creating any 
third party interest with respect of the hypothecated assets/
immovable properties of the Company until further orders. 
The company is contesting the matter against the ex-parte 
interim order. The Company is contesting the matter and filed 
its reply to IA and also filed reply to OA before DRT, Delhi. The 
court of registration was informed that this matter has been 
settled between parties by way of One Time Settlement (O.T.S.) 
sanctioned and therefore the matter should be placed before 
PO for final disposal. The Registrar has allowed time of two 
weeks to bring documents on record.

The Company has received a letter from one of the Consortium 
member Bank regarding assignment of Debt of Company vide 
their assignment agreement dated 10.05.2024 where the Bank 
has stated that it has assigned all its right in relation to the 
outstanding exposure of the Company.

The Company has received a Notice through speed post from 
DRT-II, New Delhi. The Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT 
Delhi against the Company under section 19(4) of the Act. The 
matter is listed before the registrar for completing of pleading. 
The company is contesting the matter. The council of Lead 
Bank submitted that a compromise has been reached between 
Banks and defendants, so the council of Lead Bank needs to 
file a consent decree before the tribunal. The PO noted the 
submission and has allowed time of 4 weeks to Lead Bank.

A summon/notice had been received from the Directorate of 
Enforcement, Central Regional Office, Government of India, in 
the name of The Director, to appear before them along with 
various document. The Director/authorized representative of 
the company is in process to submit relevant documents before 
the authorities/ offices / departments.

A notice had been received from Central Bureau of Investigation 
in the name of The Director, Kohinoor Foods Limited to produce 
documents/information in person before them. The Director/
authorized representative of the company submitted relevant 
documents before the authorities/ offices / departments.

The Company has submitted its resolution proposal (O.T.S.) 
with Consortium Banks and the same is sanctioned by the 
Lead Bank. The Company entered into O.T.S. with the Lead 

Bank/Lenders vide, dated 22//07/2021 and 21/12/2024 for 
the revised amount of INR 227.45 Crores. INR 27.45 Crores is 
to be paid by Sep-2025. As per the terms of the sanctioned 
O.T.S., the Company has paid INR 200 Crores (INR 190 Crores 
by the buyer of rice manufacturing unit and INR 10 Crores by 
the Company) (INR 78.5 Crores till 31/03/2025 and INR 121.50 
Crores dated 15/04/2025). Further, INR 40.11 Crores of PNB-
Dubai is outstanding, which is under consideration of O.T.S. The 
company has proposed to demonetize its rice manufacturing 
unit; the buyer of the rice manufacturing unit has deposited 
full consideration amount of INR 190 Crore to the lenders. The 
lender has issued NOC against rice manufacturing unit. The 
company has obtained approval from lender/shareholders in 
this regard. Further, the company is planning to operate the 
rice manufacturing unit (on lease basis) from Kandla Gujarat to 
sustain its rice business.

The Company has received Legal Notice from the Punjab 
National Bank, Hong Kong in regard to outstanding 
indebtedness due amount (inclusive of interest up to date). The 
matter is now being taken up by PNB Dubai and the Company 
has submitted its O.T.S. proposal and has deposited the upfront 
amount and requested to process the Company O.T.S. Proposal 
and forward the same to their Board/Head Office for approval, 
which is at present in consideration.

The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbai has filed a money 
suit for recovery towards alleged outstanding demurrage 
charges against which the Company has filed its counter 
claim towards the financial losses, interest on the investment, 
refund of the license fees, refund of the demurrage charges, 
compensation and damages etc. The matter is still pending.

The company’s vendor has filed an execution petition before 
Faridabad District & Session Judge. The company is contesting 
the matter. The company has also approached Hon’ble High 
Court Punjab and Haryana for stay on above matter. The 
Respondent has also filed an Instant Application in the matter 
The Company has also approached Hon’ble High Court Delhi 
for stay on above matter. Further, the Company filed a petition 
before the Hon’ble Apex Court with regard to contesting of 
proceeding before District and Session Court, Faridabad. 
The Hon’ble Apex Court had allowed the company petition 
with granting relief to the Company and parties against the 
impugned order of Faridabad District Court. 

The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder 
of Pinnacle Tower for vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at 
Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder had obtained interim stay on 
the order of Municipal Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon’ble 
High Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a 
petition against Municipal Corporation & other before the 
Civil Judge, Senior Division, Faridabad with regard to stay of 
proceeding against order of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. 
The Hon’ble Faridabad Court has stated that already interim 
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stay has been granted by the Hon’ble High Court, hence no 
ground to grant relief prayed for is made out at this stage.

A Show Cause Notice under rule 4 of SEBI (Procedure for 
Holding Inquiry and Imposing Penalties) Rules, 1995 has been 
issued in the name of Directors and Company. The Director / 
representative of the company is in process submit replies in 
due course.

A letter from the office of Department of Revenue Intelligence, 
Delhi, has been received to the Company seeking some 
documents/ information. The required documents/ information 
has been submitted with the concerned office of Department 
of Revenue Intelligence, Delhi.

A letter from the office of Custom, Mundra, has been received 
to the Company seeking some documents/ information. The 
required documents/ information has been submitted with the 
concerned office of Custom, Mundra.

The observations of the Auditor with regard to the management 
assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as going 
concern in view of the liquidity problems/decrease in business. 
The management of the Company believes that it can continue 
as a going concern, based on the Resolution Plan and after 
Sanctioned one time settlement with the Banks by Company 
and the interest shown by Prospective Investors in the Company.

Macro-economic factors like recession, subdued demand and 
political uncertainty may affect the business of the Company 
and the industry at large as well. The Company is aware that 
uncertainties in business offer opportunities as well as downside 
risks and thus has identified and put in place mitigation tools 
for the same. Some key risk areas are:

Procurement risk

In a country like India, where more than 60 per cent of the 
area under cultivation is not irrigated, farm production is highly 
vulnerable to fluctuations in rainfall. Beside production risk, 
Indian farmers also face high market risk. Farm harvest prices 
in the country show high inter and intra year volatility. Price 
variation is quite pronounced in the regions and commodities 
where price support mechanism is not operative. Further 
adequate availability of key raw materials at the right prices 
is crucial for the Company. Being a generic natural product 
with low yield concentrated in a small region of the World, 
production of Basmati depends on the vagaries of nature. 
Therefore, any disruption in the supply due to a natural or 
other calamity or violent changes in the cost structure could 
adversely affect the Company’s ability to reach its consumers 
with the right value proposition. However, we are ready with 
plans that might help us at such times. However, the Company’s 
long term relationship with farmers built on trust ensures 
constant supply and thus over the years it has not faced any 
procurement problems. Also, adequacy of irrigation facilities in 
the Basmati producing regions mitigates these uncertainties.

High working capital requirement: Basmati rice requires to be 
aged for 9-12 months before selling, leading to huge working 
capital requirements. This results in low ROCE for the industry. 
Combating this risk, efficient working capital management 
system has been set in place by the Company and cash flow is 
monitored on daily basis.

Intense competition from unorganized sector: Another 
characteristic of this industry is the presence of unorganized 
sector offering basmati in loose unbranded form which 
intensifies competition. The Company is moving towards 
branded products and has invested significantly in building a 
strong brand which helps in differentiating their product.

Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial 
year 2024-25.

Re-Appointment / Resignation of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Gurnam Arora (DIN 00010731), Director of the Company 
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible offers himself for reappointment. Your Directors 
recommend this resolution for approval of the members.

Mr. Chashu Arora, CFO of the Company, resigned, due to 
some personal reason, from the Company w.e.f., the close of 
business hours on 24-03-2025. The Board in its meeting held 
on 23rd April 2024 placed the invaluable contributions and 
achievements of Mr. Chashu Arora, as a CFO of the Company 
and a valued member of the Board.

The Board in its meeting held on 23rd April 2024, appointed Mr. 
Pradeep Goswami, Member of ICAI, who possess the requisite 
qualification, as the CFO of the Company with effect from 01st 
April, 2025, to perform the duties of a CFO, of the Company.

Subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

Kohinoor Foods Limited enjoys its global presence and has well 
managed to build a premium brand name for its quality in Rice 
Branding and Ready to Eat Food and with a view of expansion 
and diversification; it has created subsidiary companies for 
facilitating these operations in various countries.

A statement containing the performance and highlights of 
Financial Statements of subsidiary, associate and joint venture 
companies is provided in Form AOC-1 attached to the Financial 
Statements forms part of this Report and hence not repeated 
here for the sake of brevity. 

In accordance with section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
we have prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company and all its subsidiaries, which form part of the Annual 
Report. The Financial Statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost convention on going concern basis and on 
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accruals basis unless otherwise stated. The name of companies 
which have become or ceased to be subsidiary or joint venture 
or associate companies, if any, have been mentioned in the 
notes to the accounts. The financial statements of Kohinoor 
Foods Limited (“Holding Company of KFL”) together with its 
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Group”) are 
consolidated to form Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS). 
Consolidated Financial Statements consolidate the financial 
statements of KFL and its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries.

The parent company has not received audited financial 
statement from its Joint venture Company, Rich Rice Raisers 
LLC. The Management considers that the parent company is 
not in position to exercise control over this entity. Hence the 
results of Joint Venture Company have not been considered in 
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Rich Rice Raisers LLC, 
in which, KFL hold 25% shareholding, has closed its operation. 

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Audited Financial Statement, including the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and related information of the Company 
and audited accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are available on 
our website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor. These documents 
will also be available for inspection during business hours at 
our Registered Office.

Further these Financial Statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter 
referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016. These financial statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2024 are prepared under Ind AS. For all 
periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, 
the financial statements were prepared in accordance with the 
accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as 
‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory reporting requirement 
in India immediately before adopting Ind AS. 

Further the Policy for determining material subsidiaries as 
approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at the link: www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

The details of business operations / performance of major 
subsidiaries are as below:

Internal Control System

The Company has in place adequate internal control systems 
that facilitates the accurate and timely compilation of financial 
statements and management reports, ensures regulatory and 
statutory compliance, and safeguards investor interest by 
ensuring the highest level of governance. The control system 

ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected and 
that the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported 
correctly. 

A CEO and CFO Certificate provided by Jt. Managing Director 
and CFO, included in the Corporate Governance Report 
confirms the existence of effective internal control systems 
and procedures in the Company Internal audit function 
evaluates the adequacy of, and compliance with policies, plans, 
regulatory and statutory requirements. The Internal Auditors 
directly report to the Board’s Audit Committee, thus ensuring 
the independence of the process. It also evaluates and suggests 
improvement in effectiveness of risk management, controls and 
governance process. The Audit committee and Board provides 
necessary oversight and directions to the Internal audit function 
and periodically reviews the findings and ensures corrective 
measures are taken. In the opinion of the management and the 
internal auditors, there exists adequate safeguard against fraud 
and negligence within the Company.

Our Offices as well as the manufacturing facilities endorse the 
highest health, safety, security and environmental standards.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place well defined and adequate Internal 
Financial Controls which are tested from time to time for 
necessary improvement, if any required.

Listing at Stock Exchange

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with BSE Limited 
and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd The annual listing fee 
for the Financial Year 2025-26 has been paid by the Company.

Corporate Governance

Your Company has taken adequate steps to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of Corporate Governance as stipulated by 
the Stock Exchanges. Pursuant to SEBI (LODR), Regulation, 2015, 
a report on the Corporate Governance, Certificate regarding 
Compliance, Secretarial Audit Report and Jt. Managing Director 
(CEO) and CFO certification along with the Auditors Certificate 
has been made part of the Annual Report.

Auditors

M/s N C Raj & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRN: 
002249N), New Delhi, Statutory Auditors of the Company 
was appointed as auditors of the Company for the first term, 
to holds office from the conclusion of 32nd Annual General 
Meeting to the conclusion of Fifth Annual General Meeting to 
be held till the year 2026. The Board of Directors has received 
their consent and they have confirmed their eligibility to the 
effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within 
the prescribed limits and they are not disqualified for re-
appointment. The Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 
139, 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
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Act, 2013 and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee 
has considered the appointment of M/s N C Raj & Associates, 
Chartered Accountant, New Delhi (Firm Registration No. 
002249N), as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office 
from the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of Fifth Annual General Meeting to be held in the 
year 2026. The Board of Directors accordingly recommends 
their reappointment as Statutory Auditors.

Auditors Report

The Company has received the Auditors Report duly signed 
by M/s N C Raj & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New 
Delhi and took note on the same. Further as mentioned in 
the Auditors Report, attention is drawn (Emphasis of Matters) 
to notes to the Financial Statements, the same has not been 
reproduced for the sake of brevity as the remarks given by the 
Auditors are self-explanatory, however the Board has discussed 
the same in details as had been provided in the notes to the 
Financial Statements.

Cost Auditors

The Cost Auditor M/s Cheena and Associates appointed as 
Cost Accountants of the Company for the year 2024-25 and 
has completed the audit of the cost record of the Company. 
The Cost Audit Report does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark.

The Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time 
being in force), has approved the appointment of M/s Cheena 
& Associates, Cost Accountant Firm to conduct the audit of 
the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 
on March 31, 2026 and remuneration to be paid subject to 
rectification by shareholders.

Secretarial Audit

The Secretarial Auditor M/s. MANK and Associates, Company 
Secretary Firm, (having FCS No. 10248 and CP No. 19684) 
appointed as Secretarial Accountants of the Company for the 
year 2024-25 and has completed the audit of the Secretarial 
record of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

The Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time 
being in force), has approved the appointment of M/s. MANK 
and Associates, Company Secretary Firm, (having FCS No. 
10248 and CP No. 19684) to conduct the audit of the secretarial 
records of the Company for the financial year ending on March 
31, 2026 and remuneration to be paid subject to rectification 
by shareholders.

Secretarial Audit Report

The Secretarial Auditor M/s MANK and Associates, Company 
Secretaries, appointed for the year 2024-25 and has completed 
the secretarial audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit 
Report as received from the Practicing Company Secretary is 
annexed to the Annual Report as Form No.-MR-3. As per the 
Secretarial Audit Report the Company has complied with all 
the applicable acts, laws, rules and regulations and does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Internal Auditor

The terms of M/s. N N A & Co, Chartered Accountants, New 
Delhi, who was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company 
for the Financial Year 2024-25, expired on 31st March 2025. 

Your directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee 
have approved their appointment at the Board Meeting dated 
29th May 2025, for the financial year 2025-26.

Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted 
any deposit under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Share Capital of the Company

During the year under review, the Company did not issue equity 
shares. The paid up Share Capital of the Company is amounting 
to Rs. 370,715,300/- comprising of 37,071,530 equity shares of 
Rs. 10/- each. 

The Board in its meeting held on 13th August 2025 proposes to 
increase the Authorize capital of the company subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 36th annual general 
meeting, from Rs. 75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy-Five Crore) 
divided into 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares 
of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees Ten each) to Rs. 375,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Three Hundred Seventy-Five Crore only) divided into 
37,50,00,000 (Thirty-Seven Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares 
of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees Ten each) by creation of additional 
30,00,00,000 (Thirty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
(Rupees Ten each) and consequently, the existing Clause V of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company is proposed to be 
altered and substituted with the rights, privileges and conditions 
attached thereto as per the relevant provisions contained in 
that behalf in the Articles of Association of the Company and 
with power to increase or reduce the same and to divide the 
shares in several classes and to attach thereto respectively such 
preferential, qualified or special rights, privileges or conditions 
as may be determined by or in accordance with the Articles of 
Association of the Company for the time being in force, and to 
vary, modify, enlarge or abrogate any such rights, privileges or 
conditions in such manner as may be permitted by the Act or 
provided by the Articles of Association of the Company for the 
time being in force by the following as new Clause V:
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“V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 
375,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred Seventy-Five Crore 
only) divided into 37,50,00,000 (Thirty-Seven Crore Fifty Lakh) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees Five each).” 

Board Meetings

The Board is headed by an executive Chairman. As on 31st 
March 2025, the Board of Directors consisted of Six Directors, 
including Chairman, Joint Managing Directors, Woman Director, 
Independent Director and others.

Four (4) Board Meetings were held during the year 2024-25, 
i.e. on 29th May, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 14th November 2024 
and 14th February, 2025 and the gap between two meetings did 
exceed 120 days as per relaxation granted under the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 11/2020 
dated 24th March, 2020.

Audit Committee Meetings

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 
Four (4) times i.e. on 29th May, 2024, 13th August 2024, 14th 
November 2024 and 14th February, 2025 and the gap between 
two meetings did exceed 120 days as per relaxation granted 
under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General 
Circular No. 11/2020 dated 24th March, 2020. The minutes of 
the meetings of the Audit Committee are noted by the Board. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the year under review, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee met Two (2) times i.e. on 13th August, 
2024 and 14th November, 2024. The minutes of the meetings of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are noted by 
the Board. 

Remuneration Policy

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, the Board has formulated Remuneration Policy for 
appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior 
Management and their remuneration.

The Remuneration Policy of the Company forms part of this 
Report and may be accessed on the Company’s website on the 
link: www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil mechanism

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors 
and Employees to report their concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the 
Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy or any other 
grievances, the details of which are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report. The Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed 
on the Company’s website on the link www.kohinoorfoods.in/
investor.

Particulars of Loan Given, Investment made, Guarantees 
given and Securities Provided

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees 
and securities provided under section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are provided in the notes of standalone Financials 
statement and well within the limit approved by the 
Shareholders of the company.

Present status of litigations

During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company went through 
some litigations in taxation, banking and rice business. Brief of 
the litigations is mentioned below:

Contingent and Other particulars:-

Following appeals are lying pending for hearing before the 
CIT(A), New Delhi/ Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New 
Delhi /  Hon’ble Delhi High Court against the tax demand 
raised in impugned  Income Tax Assessment Orders as per 
details given below :-

AY Tax Interest Total Expected 
Relief 

Outstanding 
Liability

2002-03 to 
2008-09

298.03 106.00 404.03 -   404.03 

2009-10 - - - -   3,679.11 
2010-11 2,331.25 1,347.86 3,679.11 -   1,615.97 
2011-12 835.77 780.20 1,615.97   2,293.74 1.23
2012-13 1,274.98 1,019.99 2,294.97 671.21 - 
2013-14 406.83 264.39 671.21 1,250.32 1.57 
2014-15 798.05 453.85 1,251.89 403.33 1.51 
2016-17 275.78 129.05 404.84  
Total 10,322.02  4,618.60 5,703.42 

As per the advice received from legal experts and on the 
basis of merit of the case, there is a high probability that the 
aforesaid impugned orders will be set aside and the demand 
will be deleted. Accordingly, management is of the view that 
no provision in respect of the above demands is required to be 
made in the books of accounts.

Appeals are lying pending before the Dy. Excise & Taxation 
Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against the Order received from 
Excise and Taxation Deptt., Punjab in respect of Year 2009-10 
and 2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs. 450.41 Lacs towards the 
cess imposed by the State Govt. on exports. The company has 
challenged the validity of imposition of cess on export in its 
appeal as the same is not permissible under article 286 of the 
Constitution of India. Further demand has been raised for Rs. 
5.41 Lacs after completing the Sales Tax assessment for AY 
2011-12 against which appeal has been filed.

The Company has received Notices from the Banks under 
section 13(2) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of 
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, 
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in the month of July 2018 to May 2019 and in the month of 
February 2020 to September 2020. The Company has replied 
to the notices received from the Bank within 60 days from 
the date of notices. The Company has also received Notices 
from the Banks under section 13(4) of The Securitization and 
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security 
Interest Act, 2002. The Company has already approached Banks 
with suitable resolution plan for their consideration which the 
consortium has sanctioned. The Company has deposited INR 
200 Crores with the Consortium lenders, as per the terms of the 
One Time Settlement (O.T.S.) sanctioned.

The Lead Bank has filed petition against Company before 
Hon’ble NCLT Bench Chandigarh, the company is contesting 
the matter, and the petition is yet to be admitted.

The Company has filed an appeal before Hon’ble High Court, 
Punjab & Haryana for stay. The Hon’ble High Court has granted 
Interim stay.

One of the member Consortium Bank has filed petition 
against Company before Hon’ble NCLT Bench Chandigarh, the 
company is contesting the matter and the petition is yet to be 
admitted.

The Company has received an ex-parte interim order from 
Debt Recovery Tribunal-III, Delhi dated 25/06/2020 restraining 
the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise 
dealing with, or disposing off or encumbering or creating any 
third party interest with respect of the hypothecated assets/
immovable properties of the Company until further orders. 
The company is contesting the matter against the ex-parte 
interim order. The Company is contesting the matter and filed 
its reply to IA and also filed reply to OA before DRT, Delhi. The 
court of registration was informed that this matter has been 
settled between parties by way of One Time Settlement (O.T.S.) 
sanctioned and therefore the matter should be placed before 
PO for final disposal. The Registrar has allowed time of two 
weeks to bring documents on record.

The Company has received a letter from one of the Consortium 
member Bank regarding assignment of Debt of Company vide 
their assignment agreement dated 10.05.2024 where the Bank 
has stated that it has assigned all its right in relation to the 
outstanding exposure of the Company.

The Company has received a Notice through speed post from 
DRT-II, New Delhi. The Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT 
Delhi against the Company under section 19(4) of the Act. The 
matter is listed before the registrar for completing of pleading. 
The company is contesting the matter. The council of Lead 
Bank submitted that a compromise has been reached between 
Banks and defendants, so the council of Lead Bank needs to 
file a consent decree before the tribunal. The PO noted the 
submission and has allowed time of 4 weeks to Lead Bank.

A summon/notice had been received from the Directorate of 
Enforcement, Central Regional Office, Government of India, in 
the name of The Director, to appear before them along with 
various document. The Director/authorized representative of 
the company is in process to submit relevant documents before 
the authorities/ offices / departments.

A notice had been received from Central Bureau of Investigation 
in the name of The Director, Kohinoor Foods Limited to produce 
documents/information in person before them. The Director/
authorized representative of the company submitted relevant 
documents before the authorities/ offices / departments.

The Company has submitted its resolution proposal (O.T.S.) 
with Consortium Banks and the same is sanctioned by the 
Lead Bank. The Company entered into O.T.S. with the Lead 
Bank/Lenders vide, dated 22//07/2021 and 21/12/2024 for 
the revised amount of INR 227.45 Crores. INR 27.45 Crores is 
to be paid by Sep-2025. As per the terms of the sanctioned 
O.T.S., the Company has paid INR 200 Crores (INR 190 Crores 
by the buyer of rice manufacturing unit and INR 10 Crores by 
the Company) (INR 78.5 Crores till 31/03/2025 and INR 121.50 
Crores dated 15/04/2025). Further, INR 40.11 Crores of PNB-
Dubai is outstanding, which is under consideration of O.T.S. The 
company has proposed to demonetize its rice manufacturing 
unit; the buyer of the rice manufacturing unit has deposited 
full consideration amount of INR 190 Crore to the lenders. The 
lender has issued NOC against rice manufacturing unit. The 
company has obtained approval from lender/shareholders in 
this regard. Further, the company is planning to operate the 
rice manufacturing unit (on lease basis) from Kandla Gujarat to 
sustain its rice business.

The Company has received Legal Notice from the Punjab 
National Bank, Hong Kong in regard to outstanding 
indebtedness due amount (inclusive of interest up to date). The 
matter is now being taken up by PNB Dubai and the Company 
has submitted its O.T.S. proposal and has deposited the upfront 
amount and requested to process the Company O.T.S. Proposal 
and forward the same to their Board/Head Office for approval, 
which is at present in consideration.

The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbai has filed a money 
suit for recovery towards alleged outstanding demurrage 
charges against which the Company has filed its counter 
claim towards the financial losses, interest on the investment, 
refund of the license fees, refund of the demurrage charges, 
compensation and damages etc. The matter is still pending.

The company’s vendor has filed an execution petition before 
Faridabad District & Session Judge. The company is contesting 
the matter. The company has also approached Hon’ble High 
Court Punjab and Haryana for stay on above matter. The 
Respondent has also filed an Instant Application in the matter 
The Company has also approached Hon’ble High Court Delhi 
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for stay on above matter. Further, the Company filed a petition 
before the Hon’ble Apex Court with regard to contesting of 
proceeding before District and Session Court, Faridabad. 
The Hon’ble Apex Court had allowed the company petition 
with granting relief to the Company and parties against the 
impugned order of Faridabad District Court. 

The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder 
of Pinnacle Tower for vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at 
Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder had obtained interim stay on 
the order of Municipal Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon’ble 
High Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a 
petition against Municipal Corporation & other before the 
Civil Judge, Senior Division, Faridabad with regard to stay of 
proceeding against order of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. 
The Hon’ble Faridabad Court has stated that already interim 
stay has been granted by the Hon’ble High Court, hence no 
ground to grant relief prayed for is made out at this stage.

A Show Cause Notice under rule 4 of SEBI (Procedure for 
Holding Inquiry and Imposing Penalties) Rules, 1995 has been 
issued in the name of Directors and Company. The Director / 
representative of the company is in process submit replies in 
due course.

A letter from the office of Department of Revenue Intelligence, 
Delhi, has been received to the Company seeking some 
documents/ information. The required documents/ information 
has been submitted with the concerned office of Department 
of Revenue Intelligence, Delhi.

A letter from the office of Custom, Mundra, has been received 
to the Company seeking some documents/ information. The 
required documents/ information has been submitted with the 
concerned office of Custom, Mundra.

The observations of the Auditor with regard to the management 
assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as going 
concern in view of the liquidity problems/decrease in business. 
The management of the Company believes that it can continue 
as a going concern, based on the Resolution Plan and after 
Sanctioned one time settlement with the Banks by Company 
and the interest shown by Prospective Investors in the Company.

All other litigations are mentioned in the note on Contingent 
Liability in the Balance Sheet for the financial year 2024-25.

Contract and Arrangements with Related Parties

In terms of Section 188 of the Act read with rules framed 
thereunder and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, 
your Company has in place Related Party Transactions Policy 
for dealing with related party transactions. The policy may 
be accessed under the Corporate Governance section on 
the website of the Company at: http://kohinoorfoods.in/pdf/
Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf.   All the related party 
transactions that were entered and executed during the year 

under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary 
course of business and within permissible framework of 
Section 188 of the Act and Rules made thereunder read with 
Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations. There were no materially 
significant related party transactions made by the Company 
during the year that would have required the approval of the 
shareholders. The details of the transactions with the related 
parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements. 
There were no related party transaction made during the year 
that are required to be disclosed in the Form AOC-2.

Conservation of Energy, Research and Development, 
Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earning and 
Outgo

The particulars as prescribed in sub-section (3) of Section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 are enclosed as Annexure B to this Report.

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosure

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and other 
particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess 
of the limits set out in the said rules are given as under:

i)	 There are no Employee, employed throughout the year 
and in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,000/- or 
more per annum.

ii)	 There are no Employee, employed part of the year and 
in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/- or more per 
month during any part of the year.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as 
required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are set out 
in the annexure-D to this report.

Having regard to the provisions of Section 136(1) read with its 
relevant proviso of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board’s Report 
is being sent to the members without some annexures. The 
said annexures are available for inspection at the Registered/
Corporate Office of the Company during working hours and 
any member interested in obtaining such annexures may write 
to the Company Secretary and the same will be furnished free 
of cost.

Extract of Annual Return

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the extract of the annual return in Form No. MGT – 9 is 
enclosed as Annexure C to this Report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing 
Regulations), a Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
and a Report on Corporate Governance is attached in a separate 
section forming part of the Annual Report.

A Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
regarding the Compliance by the Company of the conditions 
stipulated in Regulations Part C of Schedule V of the Listing 
Regulations is also attached with this report.

A declaration by the Managing Director pursuant to Regulations 
Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations stating that all 
the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, 
during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, is also 
attached with this report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to section 134(5) of The Companies Act, 2013, the 
Directors confirm that:

a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year 
ended 31st March, 2025, the applicable accounting 
standards read with requirements set out under Schedule 
III to the Act, had been followed and there are no material 
departures from the same;

b)	 the Directors had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit and loss of the 
Company for the year ended on that date;

c)	 the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)	 the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
‘going concern’ basis;

e)	 the Directors had laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

f)	 the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Awards & Recognitions

Since its inception, the Company has been earning awards and 
recognition like consumer validated Super Brand Award (thrice 
in series), Reader’s Digest Most Trusted Brand award (4 times 
in a row), Power Brand Award, Guinness Book of World Record 
(for making World’s Largest Biryani), National award for Export 
Excellence, Brand Equity Award & many APEDA awards.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013, all companies having net worth of Rs. 500 crores or 
more, or turnover of Rs.1,000 crores or more or a net profit of 
Rs. 5 crores or more during any financial year are required to 
constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
of Board of Directors comprising three or more directors, at 
least one of whom should be an Independent Director and 
such Company shall spend 2% of the average net profits of 
the Company made during the three immediately preceding 
financial years.

Accordingly a detailed CSR Policy was framed by the Company 
with the approvals of the CSR Committee and Board. The Policy, 
inter alia, covers the following:

•	 Philosophy
•	 Scope
•	 List of CSR activities
•	 Modalities of execution of projects/programmes
•	 Implementation through CSR Cell
•	 Monitoring assessment of projects/programmes

CSR Policy gives an overview of the projects or programmes 
which are proposed to be undertaken by the Company in the 
coming years.

The composition of the CSR Committee

A Committee of the directors, titled ‘Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee’, was constituted by the Board with 
the following members:

1.	 Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari (Chairperson)

2.	 Mr. Satnam Arora 

3.	 Mr. Gurnam Arora

As the Average net Profit/(Loss) of the Company for last three 
financial years prior to 2023-24 comes to average net loss and 
therefore the Company was not statutorily required to spent 
amount as prescribed for CSR expenditure. During the Year, 
the company net profit stood at 3,646.23 million on account of 
notional income towards the one time settlement sanctioned 
with the Banks.  
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Kohinoor also envisions to improve lives in communities we 
live around, protect workplace rights, respect people, support 
missions that help people have a better life, provide good jobs, 
world class quality products and a healthy environment to all 
of us around.

At Workplace, Kohinoor Foods maintain high standards for 
fair and dignified treatment of all the people who work for our 
Company. For all of its employees, it is not just a place to work, 
but like another home and everybody in it like a big family, 
closely bonded with each other.

Kohinoor Foods also believes that a Company is as good as 
the people who work for it - their combined talents; skills, 
knowledge, experience and passion make a company what it is.

Hence, Company’s continuous goal is to inspire and motivate its 
people to hone their talents, increase their knowledge & skills 
and achieve extraordinary results at their workplace. In this 
endeavor we have offered subsidized meals to our employees 
at a very nominal cost.

Adherence to global human rights standards, No minor 
labour, Fair trade practices, complete Medical facilities for its 
people, Safe & sound working environment are the things that 
Kohinoor Foods take utmost care about.

The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at 
the link: www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at 
the workplace. The Company has in place a Sexual Harassment 
Policy in compliance with the requirements of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company always endeavors 
to create and provide an environment that is free from 
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. 
The Sexual Harassment Committee has been set up to redress 
complaints received regarding sexual harassment.

The Directors further state that during the year under review, 
there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declarations from all 
the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements), Regulation, 2015.

Board Evaluation

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, it is mandatory that the Board 
shall monitor and review the Board Evaluation Framework. The 
Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation 
needs to be made by the Board of its own performance and 
that of its committees and individual Directors. Schedule IV 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 (10) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 states that the performance evaluation of Independent 
Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, 
excluding the director being evaluated.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
reviewed the performance of the individual Directors on the 
basis of the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. In 
addition, the performance of Board as a whole and committees 
were evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the 
Directors on the basis of various criteria.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of 
Non-Independent Directors, performance of Board as a whole 
and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into 
account the views of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive 
Directors. The evaluation process has been explained in the 
Corporate Governance Report section of the Annual Report.

Training of Independent Directors

The Company Secretary of the Company conducted a detailed 
training programme to provide/update the changes in the 
SEBI (LODR), Regulation, 2015/Companies Act, 2013 and other 
relevant act to the Independent Directors.

Further, the Company issues a formal letter of appointment 
to Independent Directors outlining their roles, responsibilities, 
functions and duties as an Independent Director. The format 
of the letter of appointment is available on the Company’s 
website at the link: www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required 
in respect of the following items as there were no transactions 
on these items during the year under review:

1.	 Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of 
the Act.

2.	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to 
dividend, voting or otherwise.

3.	 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employee of the Company under any scheme.
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4.	 Issue of Employees Stock Option to employee of the 
Company under any scheme.

5.	 Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time 
Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or 
commission from any of its subsidiaries.

6.	 No significant or material orders were passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future 
except as disclosed in the Annual Report.

7.	 Business Responsibility Report as per Regulation 34 (2)(f) 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, describing the initiatives taken by 
them from an environmental, social and governance 
perspective is not applicable to the Company, for the 
financial year 2023-2024 as per the SEBI Circular SEBI/
LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/27 dated 22nd December, 2015 
and Frequently Asked Questions issued by SEBI on 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 dated 29th January, 2016.
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1.	 Corporate Governance Philosophy

	 The Company has always maintained an integrated way of thinking, which is reflected in the functioning of the Board and 
corporate governance framework. A Company’s relationship with its investors is an important component of corporate 
governance. The Board of Directors believes in upholding the highest standards of accountability and actively participates 
in overseeing risks and strategic management. The board fully supports and endorses corporate governance practices in 
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The primary objective of corporate governance is to create and adhere to a corporate culture of conscience and 
consciousness, transparency and openness, to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve the goal of 
value creation. Our corporate governance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share accurate information 
regarding our financials and performance, as well as the leadership and governance of the Company. Over the years, we have 
strengthened governance practices. These practices define the way business is conducted and value is generated.

	 Our corporate governance framework has helped us to be aligned with the new guidelines of the Companies Act, 2013 
as well as the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. We believe that an active, well 
informed and independent board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of corporate governance.

2.	 Board of Directors

	 As on 31st March, 2025, the Company is managed and controlled by Board of Directors which has an optimal combination 
of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The Board is headed by an Executive Chairman, the Board of 
Directors consisted of Six Directors, including Chairman / Whole-time Director, Joint Managing Directors, Woman Director, 
Independent Directors.

	 As on 31st March, 2025, none of the Directors on the Company’s Board was a Director in more than 20 Companies, neither 
a Chairman of more than five Committees nor a member of more than 10 Committees in accordance with Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, all the Directors have made 
necessary disclosures regarding their Directorship and Chairmanship / Committee Membership in other Companies as per 
the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 
Board members possess the requisite skills, experience and expertise to guide the Company.

	 None of the Directors had relationship inter-se, except Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam Arora, 
being related to each other as brothers.

	 The Board Members are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them to 
familiarize themselves with the Company’s procedures and practices. Directors are periodically advised about the changes 
effected in Corporate Laws, Listing Regulations with regard to their roles, rights and responsibilities as Director of the 
Company.

	 The familiarisation programme along with details of the same imparted to the Independent Directors are available on the 
website of the Company https:// www.kohinnorfoods.in

	 The Board of Directors of the Company comprises highly qualified members who possess required skills, expertise and 
competence that allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees.

	 While all the Board members possess the skills identified, their area of core expertise is given below:

Nature of Skills/Expertise
Name of the Directors Corporate 

Leadership
Industry 

Experience
Financial 
Acumen

Diversity Governance Technology Risk 
Management

Shri Jugal Kishore Arora       
Shri Satnam Arora       
Shri Gurnam Arora       
Shri Sunil Sharma       
Shri Yash Pal Mahajan       
Smt. Mani Chandra Bhandari       
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	 Four (4) Board meetings were held during the Financial Year 2024-2025 and the gap between two meetings did exceed 120 
days as per relaxation granted under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 11/2020 dated 
24th March, 2020. The dates, on which the Board meetings were held, are 29th May, 2024, 13th August 2024, 14th November 
2024 and 14th February, 2025.

	 Dates for the Board Meetings are decided well in advance and the Agenda, along with the supporting documents, explanatory 
notes and information, as enumerated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation, 2015, are 
made available to the Board along with the notice of respective meetings or soon after the notice. The Board periodically 
reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. The Company undertakes steps to rectify instances of 
non-compliance, if any.

	 The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, along with their attendance at the Board Meetings held during 
the year ended 31st March, 2025, and at the last Annual General Meeting, and the number of other Directorship and 
Chairmanship/ Membership of Committees held by them, are given below

Name of the Directors No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended 

during tenure

Whether 
attended the 

last AGM

No. of other 
Directorships

Committee 
position of other 

Companies**

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 
heldExecutive (Promoter) Chairman Member

Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora 
(Whole-time Director, designated as 
Chairman)

4 No Nil Nil Nil 1,053,484

Mr. Satnam Arora
(Joint Managing Director)

4 Yes 2 Nil Nil 5,749,158

Mr. Gurnam Arora
(Joint Managing Director)

3 Yes 1 Nil Nil 6,289,204

Non - Executive and Independent
Mr. Sunil Sharma 3 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan 4 No Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil

	 *This includes Directorship in public limited companies (including subsidiaries of public limited companies) and excludes 
Directorship in associations, private, foreign and Section 8 companies.

	 **Represents Chairmanship/Membership of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder 
Relationship (Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance) Committee, this includes Chairmanship/Membership in public limited 
companies (including subsidiaries of public limited companies) and excludes Chairmanship/Membership in private, foreign 
and Section 8 companies.

	 INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS), 
REGULATIONS, 2015, RELATING TO DIRECTORS AS ON DATE OF APPROVAL OF DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora (DIN- 00010704) Chairman of the Company.
He has been associated with the Organization since its inception and has completed his Graduation from Punjab University. He 
has been looking after and is in charge of Procurement as well as the Production of the Company. His vast experiences of more 
than three decades in the rice industry, together with a sharp eye for detail, have reaped rich dividends. In fact, he has been 
largely responsible for the wide acceptance that the Company’s Basmati Brands enjoyed all over the World today. Mr. Arora 
set up the first rice processing plant at Amritsar followed by rice processing plants at Murthal (Haryana) and Food Processing 
Plant at Bahalgarh, Sonipat. His major contribution is in the areas of quality standardization. He has pioneered the development 
of different quality parameters for Indian basmati rice by carrying out extensive interactions with the farmers, agro-scientists 
and research personnel for the betterment of basmati rice, the quality and output at the domestic level. Today, he is engaged 
in providing strategic direction to the Company’s business, taking the overall charge of procuring raw-material (paddy) and 
selecting the optimum growing region etc. and setting “QUALITY” standards for the Company’s range of rice-offerings.
He is the Director of Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd. and some of the Pvt. Ltd. Companies.
He holds 1,053,484 (2.84%) Equity Shares of the Company in his own name as on 31st March, 2025.
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Mr. Satnam Arora (DIN – 00010667) Jt. Managing Director of the Company.
He completed his education as a master’s in economics from Punjab University and has been involved in the family business of 
trading of Basmati Rice right from the beginning. He has vast experience in marketing rice in overseas markets. Mr. Satnam Arora 
has been looking after Export Marketing as well as he is responsible for Banking, Finance, Taxation, Legal and Secretarial as well. 
The fact that the Company has taken a Commanding Share of the Basmati Export Market is largely because of the sincere efforts 
and initiative taken by Mr. Satnam Arora. He strongly believes that success in life can be achieved only with self-confidence and 
belief. In order to bring significant exposure to his organization, he has been a part of several Industry association like FICCI, 
ASSOCHAM, AIREA (All India Rice Exporters Association) and APEDA etc.
He is the director of Satnam Haegens Ltd., Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd., Kohinoor Foods USA, Inc. and some of the Pvt. Ltd. 
Companies.
He holds 5,749,158 (15.51%) Equity Shares of the Company in his own name as on 31st March 2025.
Mr. Gurnam Arora (DIN – 00010731) Jt. Managing Director of the Company.
He has vast experience and skills and has been instrumental in providing a new strategic focus to the rice industry from a 
commodity driven business to a branded category. After completion of Graduation degree, he joined the family business of 
rice trading. Over the years, Mr. Gurnam Arora learnt the intricacies of the business and demonstrated his strategic approach 
& acumen by successfully marketing & promoting Company’s products in national & international markets. Amongst other 
career milestones, he has played a key role in introducing convenient packaging options and many more value additions for the 
consumers. He has over three decades of experience in rice industry. 
Mr. Gurnam Arora has been looking after Domestic Marketing, Purchase, Administration, HR, Quality Control and day-to-day 
Corporate Affairs of the Company. Mr. Gurnam Arora’s broad vision helped the Company to increase its value. He was the 
President of All India Rice Exporters Association and a member of the Basmati Development Fund, APEDA and Ministry of 
Commerce and also associated with various industry associations like FICCI, ASSOCHAM etc.
He is the Director of Satnam Haegens Ltd., Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd. and some of the Pvt. Ltd. Companies.
He holds 6,289,204 (16.97%) Equity Shares of the Company in his own name as on 31st March 2025.
Mr. Sunil Sharma (DIN – 08699033) Independent Director of the Company.
He is a Commerce Graduate with over four decades experience in Hospitality Industry and has served various senior position 
with organization such as Sudhir Power Limited, Antara Senior Living, Max Healthcare Limited, Sudhir Gensets, Limited, Country 
Inn and Suits, Satnam Overseas and also having sufficient expertise in Strategic Operational Business, Finance, Operations 
and People Management. Because of his vast operational exposure, he has been appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company. 
He started his carrier in the year 1976 to 1989 as department head at various position in Saudi Arabia, Egypt and Washington 
DC and thereafter also served various region in India with senior position as General Manager / Project Specialist. 
He is the member of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.
He does not hold any share of the Company in his name as on 31st March 2025.
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan (DIN – 08699040) Independent Director of the Company.
He is a Marine Engineer and an entrepreneur with over four decades experience in Hospitality Industry and had served various 
senior position in India and abroad such as The OBEROI and Shipping Corporation of India and also having sufficient expertise 
in Management, Engineering Maintenance, Project Management and Operations. Because of his vast exposure, he has been 
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company. 
He started his carrier in the year 1972 to 1976 as Engineer on Ship with the Shipping Corporation of India and had also served 
as Chief Engineer / Director Engineer with The OBERAI from 1976 to 2008 in Saudi Arabia, Middle East and India and thereafter 
from 2008 to till date he is an Engineering Consultant and an Entrepreneur as a Partner with a Partnership Firm ‘Surya Electro 
Control’ having works at Punjab and Himachal Pradesh. 
He is the member of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.
He does not hold any share of the Company in his name as on 31st March 2025.
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari (DIN – 00387585) Independent Director of the Company.
She is a Science Graduate and an entrepreneur with rich experience of around four decades in running export organization and 
experience in Garments Industry and also has sufficient expertise in Management, Designing and Order Procurement Because 
of her vast exposure, she has been appointed as an Independent Director of the Company. 
She is a Director of Chandramani Private Limited and Chandermani Exports Private Limited.
She is a Chairperson of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.
She does not hold any share of the Company in his name as on 31st March 2025.
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3.	 BOARD COMMITTEES

	 The Board of Directors has constituted the following Committees of Directors with adequate delegation of powers to 
discharge the Company’s requisite business:

	 Audit Committee

	 Stakeholder Relationship (Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance) Committee. 

	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

	 The minutes of the meetings of all such committees were placed before the Board for discussion/noting.

	 Detail of the composition, number of meetings held during the year, attendance of members and scope of the committees 
are as below:

i)	 Audit Committee

	 The Company has an Audit Committee which deals in matters relating to financial reporting and internal controls. All 
the members are financially literate. Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, who has the expertise in the accounting and financial 
management is the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. Mr. Sunil Sharma, Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan and Mrs. Mani Chandra 
Bhandari are responsible for Finance, Accounting, Banking, Taxation, Secretarial & Legal and other departmental head were 
also present from time to time apart from the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors, who were the permanent invitees. 
The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

	 The Chairperson of the Audit Committee was present at the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th 
September 2024 to answer member queries.

	 As on March 31, 2025, the Committee’s composition meets with requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Members of the Audit Committee possess 
financial / accounting expertise / exposure.

	 During the year under review, the Audit Committee met Four (4) times i.e. on 29th May 2024, 13th August 2024, 14th 
November 2024 and 14th February 2025 and the maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings has exceed 
120 Days as per relaxation granted under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 11/2020 dated 
24th March 2020. 

	 The minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are noted by the Board. The details of the composition of the Committee, 
meetings held, attendance at the meetings along, are given below.

Name Position Meetings Attended
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari Chairperson 4
Mr. Sunil Sharma Member 3
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan Member 4

Scope of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, inter alia, supports the Board to ensure an effective internal control environment. The Committee discharges 
such duties and functions with powers generally indicated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 with the Stock Exchanges.

The scope of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Powers of Audit Committee

1.	 To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2.	 To seek information from any employee.

3.	 To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4. 	 To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
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Terms of Reference

-	 Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statements are correct, adequate and credible;

-	 Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the Statutory 
Auditors and the fixation of audit fee;

-	 Approving payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them;

	 Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial Statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the 
Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

	 (a)	 Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms 
of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

	 (b)	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

	 (c)	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

	 (d)	 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

	 (e)	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

	 (f)	 Disclosure of any related party transactions 

	 (g)	 Qualifications in the draft audit report, if any.

-	 Reviewing, with the management, the Quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board for approval;

-	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, 
if any, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

-	 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;

-	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

-	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

-	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

-	 Reviewing, with the management, the performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors and adequacy of the internal control 
system;

-	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

-	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

-	 Reviewing reports of internal audit and discussing with Internal Auditors on any significant findings of any internal 
investigations by the Internal Auditors and the executive management’s response on matters and follow-up thereon;

-	 Reviewing reports of Cost Audit, if any, and discussion with Cost Auditors on any significant findings by them;

-	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

-	 To review the functioning of the Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism;

-	 Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or 
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

-	 Recommending to the Board, the appointment and fixation of remuneration of Cost Auditors, if applicable;
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-	 Evaluating Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems and reviewing the Company’s financial and risk 
management policies;

-	 Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in 
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

-	 Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operation;

-	 Reviewing the statement of significant related-party transactions;

-	 Reviewing the Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors.

-	 To review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor.

-	 To review the Internal Audit report relating to internal control weaknesses.

i)	 Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

	 •	 The Company Secretary, being the Compliance Officer is entrusted with the responsibility to specifically look into the 
Redressal of shareholders and investors complaints and report the same to Stakeholder Relationship Committee.

	 •	 The Functioning and terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee includes:

		  •	 To specifically look into the Redressal of investors’ grievances pertaining to transfer/ transmission of shares, 
dividends, de-materialization/ re-materialization, replacement of lost/ stolen/ mutilated share certificates;

		  •	 To consider the matters relating to transfer, transmission and transposition of shares, sub-division and 
consolidation of shares, replacement of lost/ stolen and mutilated share certificates and review of requests for 
de-materialization/ re-materialization of share.

		  •	 Other related issues and to strengthen investors’ relations.

	 In accordance with Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirements of SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Board 
of Directors of the Company, have approved the change in nomenclature of the Shareholders Grievances Committee to 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and enhanced their role. The Board of Directors of the Company currently has a 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee to specifically look into and resolve grievances of security-holders on various matters. 
Routine queries/complaints received from shareholders are promptly attended to and replied by way of resolution by 
circulation. Queries/complaints received during the period under review related to non-receipt of annual report, change of 
company name, non-receipt of transferred shares and change of address and/or bank particulars. There were no pending 
issues to be addressed or resolved

	 The Company received a total of Nil complaints from investors during the year 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025, all of which were 
resolved within the stipulated time to the satisfaction of the complainants. No requests for share transfers are pending 
except those that are disputed or sub-judice.

	 Constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as under:

Name Position
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari Chairperson
Mr. Gurnam Gupta Member
Mr. Satnam Arora Member

	 Other details

	 a)	 Name of the Non-Executive Director heading the Committee: Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari

	 b)	 Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer: Mr. Deepak Kaushal, Company Secretary & Manager (Legal)

	 c)	 Number of Shareholders Complaints: The Company has received Nil complaints during the year, and no complaint was 
pending at the beginning of the year.

	 d)	 Numbers not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders: All the complaints have been resolved to the satisfaction of 
the complainants during the year.

	 e)	 Number of pending complaints as on 31st March 2024 None
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iii)	  Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 In accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, the 
Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

	 During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met Two (2) times i.e. on 13th August 2024 and 
14th November 2024.

	 During the year under review, the Committee comprises of Three members, all of them being Non-executive Independent 
Directors. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

	 Constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as under:

Name Position
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari Chairperson
Mr. Sunil Sharma Member
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan Member

	 Term of reference

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is empowered to review and recommend to the Board of Directors, 
Remuneration and Sitting Fees of the Company’s Independent Directors with the guidelines laid down under the statute. 
The scope of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

	 	 formulating criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors and recommending 
to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

	 	 formulating criteria for evaluation of performance of independent Directors and the Board;

	 	 devising a policy on diversity of the Board;

	 	 identifying and recommending individuals who are qualified to become Directors, and who may be appointed as  
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down;

	 	 recommending appropriate training program for new Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
and periodically reviewing the same;

	 	 evaluating the performance of the Directors based on the evaluation criteria and furnishing the Board with the 
necessary report for further evaluation;

	 	 recommending to the Board a Policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management, and while formulating such Policy ensuring that:

		  (i)	 the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors, 
of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

		  (ii)	 the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the appropriate performance benchmarks; 
and remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between 
the fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of 
the Company and its goals;

	 	 assisting the Board, as and when required, in relation to matters relating to remuneration and incentives payable to 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, including increments to the compensation structure;

	 	 preparing a policy on diversity of the Board;

	 	 recommending to the Board the re-appointment and removal of any individuals holding the office of a Director, Key 
Managerial Personnel or Senior Management, subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;

	 	 reviewing remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management based on performance 
criteria and recommending any changes thereto to the Board;
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	 	 determining whether the relevant Director has the requisite qualifications for practice of a profession in terms of 
section 197 of the Companies Act in relation to payment of remuneration for services rendered by such Director;

	 	 undertaking such other functions as may be determined by the Board or required under the provisions of the Companies 
Act or the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015; and

	 	 undertaking such other actions as may be necessary or appropriate for performance of the aforementioned functions.

	 The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed a Remuneration Policy, 
providing (a) criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors and (b) a policy on 
remuneration for directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The detailed Remuneration Policy is placed on 
Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor.

	 Details of Remuneration of Directors

	 The table below provides the details of the remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year 2024-25:

Name of Directors Salary Perquisites Sitting Fee Total
Executive Director-Promoters
Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora 
(Whole time Director, designated as Chairman)

– Nil – –

Mr. Satnam Arora 
(Joint Managing Director)

– Nil – –

Mr. Gurnam Arora 
(Joint Managing Director)

– Nil – –

Non-Executive and Non-Independent
Mr. Sunil Sharma – – 150,000 150,000
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan – – 200,000 200,000
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari – – 200,000 200,000
TOTAL Nil Nil 550,000 550,000

	 Remuneration to Executive Directors for 2024-25

	 The Company has obtained the approval of the Central Government for payment of remuneration for the period of two years 
vide approval dated 3rd August 2016 for the period 1/10/2015 to 30/09/2017.

	 Further the Re-Appointment and Remunerations of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora (DIN 00010704), Mr. Satnam Arora (DIN 00010667) 
and Mr. Gurnam Arora (DIN - 00010731) had been approved by the Shareholders in the 31st Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 30th December, 2020 and in the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 
2023 for the period of three years subject to the approval of the Central Government. However, the Executive Directors have 
forgone their remuneration for remaining months from April 2024 to March 2025.

	 Non-Executive Directors’ Compensation

	 The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 29th May 2024, revised sitting fee payable to Non-Executive Independent 
Directors amounting to Rs. 50,000/- per meeting for every meeting of the Board attended by them as members. The 
Company currently does not have a stock option programme for any of its directors.

	 Maximum tenure of Independent Directors

	 The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(2) of SEBI 
(LODR), 2015.

	 Formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors

	 The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors in the manner as provided in the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR), 2015. The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are 
placed on the Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor.
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	 Pecuniary transactions with Non-Executive Directors

	 During the year under review, there were no pecuniary transactions with any Non-Executive Director of the Company.

	 Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors

	 Non-executive Directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. They bring 
an external perspective to decision-making and provide leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining objective 
judgment. They also oversee corporate governance framework of the Company. As stated earlier, the Remuneration Policy, 
inter alia, disclosing criteria of making payments to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees is placed on the 
Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

iv)	  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

	 As per provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, all Companies having Net Worth of Rs. 500 crores or 
more, or Turnover of Rs. 1,000 crores or more or a Net Profit of Rs. 5 crores or more during any financial year are required to 
constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of Board of Directors comprising three or more Directors, at 
least one of whom should be an Independent Director, and such Company shall spend 2% of the average net profits of the 
Company made during the three immediately preceding Financial Years.

	 Accordingly a detailed CSR Policy was framed by the Company with the approvals of the CSR Committee and Board. The 
Policy, inter alia, covers the following:

	 	 Philosophy Scope
	 	 List of CSR activities
	 	 Modalities of execution of projects/programmes Implementation through CSR Cell
	 	 Monitoring assessment of projects/programmes

	 The composition of the CSR Committee

	 A Committee of the directors, titled ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Committee’, was constituted by the Board with the 
following members:

	 1.	 Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari
	 2.	 Mr. Satnam Arora
	 3.	 Mr. Gurnam Arora

	 As the Average net Profit/(Loss) of the Company for last three financial years prior to 2023-24 comes to average net loss and 
therefore the company is not statutorily required to spent amount as prescribed for CSR expenditure. During the Year, the 
company net profit stood at 3,646.23 million on account of notional income towards the one time settlement sanctioned 
with the Banks.  

	 Although the Company is not statutorily require to expend 2% of the average net profit (INR) of the last three financial 
years, being average net loss. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: www.kohinoorfoods.in/
investor

4.	 Independent Directors’ Meeting

	 In compliance with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (LODR), 2015, a separate meeting 
of the Independent Directors was held on 14th November 2024, without the participation of the Non-Independent Directors 
and members of the management, inter alia, to discuss the following:

i)	 review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

ii)	 review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors; and

iii)	 assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that 
is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. All Independent Directors were present at the 
meeting, deliberated on the above and expressed their satisfaction.

	 All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting.
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	 Board Diversity Policy

	 In compliance with provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board, through its Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has devised a Policy on Board Diversity. The objective of the Policy is to ensure that the Board is comprised of 
adequate number of members with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the governance and strategic needs 
of the Company. It may be noted that, the Board composition as at present broadly meets with the above objective.

	 Orderly succession to Board and Senior Management

	 The Board of the Company has satisfied itself that plans are in place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board 
and to Senior Management.

	 Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management Team:

	 The Company’s Board of Directors laid down and adopted a Code of Conduct under Corporate Governance for all the 
Directors and the Senior Management Personnel of your Company. The said Code of Conduct has also been posted on the 
Company’s website. The Board members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code 
of Conduct for 2024-25.

	 A declaration signed by the Company’s Managing Director to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report. 

	 Compliances regarding Insider Trading

	 The Company implemented a Code of Conduct for the Prevention of Insider Trading, in accordance with the guidelines 
specified under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
till date.

	 The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, inter alia, prohibits purchase/sale of Company’s shares, while in 
possession of Company’s unpublished and price-sensitive information and accordingly necessary procedures have been 
laid down for the Promoters, Directors, designated employees, Key Managerial Personnel, connected persons and others as 
prescribed under the said code for trading in the Company’s securities.

	 The code of practices and procedures for fair disclosures is available on the Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in

	 Compliance Report as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

	 Compliance Report of Kohinoor Foods Limited as on March 31, 2025 with the applicable mandatory requirements as under:

	 Review of legal compliance reports

	 During the year, the Board periodically reviewed compliance reports with respect to the various laws applicable to the 
Company, as prepared and placed before it by the Management.

	 Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil mechanism

	 The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees to report their concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy or any other grievances, 
the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report, during the year under review.

	 The directors in all cases and employees in appropriate or exceptional cases will have direct access to the Chairperson of the 
Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website on the link www.kohinoorfoods.in/
investor

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2025, no matter has been received under Whistle Blower Policy of the Company and no 
personnel has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.

	 Subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

	 The Company has One Wholly Owned foreign Subsidiaries, namely M/s Kohinoor Foods USA, Inc. (USA), situated outside 
India and one Indian Wholly Owned Subsidiary in the name of Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd.
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	 Information on subsidiary companies is forming part of the Board’s Report. The company has material subsidiary in 
accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee reviews 
the financial statements and investments made by the unlisted subsidiary companies. The minutes of the proceedings of 
the Board meetings of the unlisted subsidiary Companies are placed before the Board of Directors. Policy for determining 
‘material’ subsidiaries was adopted by Board of Directors and this policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at: 
http://kohinoorfoods.in/pdf/Policy-for-deciding-material-subsidiary.pdf

	 In accordance with section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared consolidated financial statements of the 
Company and all its subsidiaries, which form part of the Annual Report. The statement provides the details of performance, 
financial positions of each of the subsidiaries.

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on going concern basis and on accruals basis 
unless otherwise stated.

	 The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

	 The financial statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited (“Holding Company or KFL”) together with its subsidiaries (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “Group”) are consolidated to form Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS). Consolidated Financial 
Statements consolidate the financial statements of KFL and its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries.

	 The parent Company has not received audited financial statement from its Joint venture Company, Rich Rice Raisers LLC. The 
Management considers that the parent company is not in position to exercise control over this entity. Hence the results of 
Joint Venture Company have not been considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Rich Rice Raisers LLC, in which, 
KFL holds 25% shareholding, has closed its operation. 

	 During the year the Board of Directors of the Company had reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries and a statement containing 
the salient features of the financial statement of our subsidiaries in the prescribed format AOC-1 is enclosed as Annexure to 
the Financial Statement and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity.

	 In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statement, including the consolidated 
financial statements and related information of the Company and audited accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are available 
on our website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor. These documents will also be available for inspection during business hours 
at our Registered Office.

	 Further the Policy for determining material subsidiaries as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at the link: www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

	 Related Party Transactions

	 All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in 
the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The details are provided in the related party disclosures in the 
notes forming part of the financial statement and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity. A Policy on materiality of 
RPTs and also on dealing with RPTs has been formulated by the Board during the year under review and the same is placed 
on the Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in

	 Disclosure of Material Transactions

	 Under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Senior Management has made periodical 
disclosures to the Board relating to all material financial and commercial transactions where they had (or were deemed to 
have had) personal interest that might have been in potential conflict with the interest of the Company. The same was nil.

	 Disclosures

	 Suitable disclosures have been made in the financial statements, together with the Management’s explanation in the event 
of any treatment being different from that prescribed in Accounting Standards.

	 Investors’ Complaints Attended/resolved during 2024-25

Pending at the beginning of the year Nil
Received during the year Nil
Disposed off during the year Nil
Remaining unresolved at the end of the year Nil
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	 Financial calendar

	 Audited annual results for year ending 31st March by May

	 Mailing of Annual Reports by August/September

	 Annual General Meeting by September

	 Un-audited first quarter Financial Results by August

	 Un-audited second quarter Financial Results by November

	 Un-audited third quarter Financial Results by February

	 Share Transfer Agent

	 The Company has appointed M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. as its Share Transfer Agent and for processing of 
share transfer/de-materialization/ re-materialization. All physical transfers, transmission, transposition, issue of duplicate 
share certificate(s), issue of demand drafts in lieu of dividend warrants etc. as well as requests for de-materialization / re-
materialization are being processed in periodical cycles at Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 

	 The work related to de-materialization/ re-materialization is handled by Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. through 
connectivity with NSDL and CDSL.

	 Share Transfer System

	 Share transfers received by the Share Transfer Agent/Company are registered within 15 days from the date of receipt, provided 
the documents are complete in all respects. Total number of shares transferred from physical category to dematerialized 
form during 2024-25 was 2740 shares versus 12,295 shares during 2023-24.

	 Means of communication

	 Information like quarterly / half yearly / annual financial results of the Company that have been made available from time to 
time, to the press and are hosted on the Company’s website at www.kohinnorfoods.in and have also been submitted to the 
stock exchanges to enable them to put them on their websites and communicate to the shareholders. The quarterly / half-
yearly / annual financial results are generally published in English and Hindi language newspapers. Moreover, a report on 
Management Discussion and Analysis has been given elsewhere in this report. The Company electronically files all reports / 
information including quarterly results, shareholding pattern and corporate governance report and so on, at BSE website at 
www.listing.bseindia.com and at NSE website at www.connect2nse.com.

5.	 General Body Meetings

	 Details of location of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are given below:

Year Ended Date of GM Time Venue Special Resolutions Passed
2021 30-12-2021 11:00 A.M. through Video Conferencing/ Other 

Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) Facility

Deemed Venue: for the 32nd AGM shall 
be the Registered Office of the Company

0

2021 10-11-2021 03:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing/ Other 
Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) Facility

Deemed Venue: for the 1st EGM shall be 
the Registered Office of the Company

0

2022 30-09-2022 11:30 A.M. through Video Conferencing/ Other 
Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) Facility

Deemed Venue: for the 33rd AGM shall 
be the Registered Office of the Company

0
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Year Ended Date of GM Time Venue Special Resolutions Passed
2023 29-09-2023 11:30 A.M. through Video Conferencing/ Other 

Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) Facility

Deemed Venue: for the 34th AGM shall 
be the Registered Office of the Company

4

2024 30-09-2024 11:30 A.M. through Video Conferencing/ Other 
Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) Facility

Deemed Venue: for the 34th AGM shall 
be the Registered Office of the Company

3

b) 	 Details of Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot during Financial Year 2024-25:

Description (Nature of Resolution) Date of 
Notice

Date of Dispatch 
of Postal Ballot 

Forms to 
Members

The remote e-voting 
period:

Date of 
passing 

resolution

Approval to sell of rice factory at 
‘Murthal Haryana’ of the company on 
slump sale basis

14-02-2025 20-03-2025 Commences from 9.00 a.m. 
(IST) Sunday, March 23 2025 
and ends at 5.00 p.m. (IST) 
on Monday, Aril 21 2025

21-04-2025

	 The Company had appointed Mr. Manish Kumar (Membership No. FCS 10248) of M/s Mank and Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to conduct the Postal Ballot through remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner.

	 Procedure followed in above postal ballot is as under – The notices containing the proposed resolutions and explanatory 
statement were sent to the shareholders by email in accordance with General Circulars issued by MCA (“MCA Circulars”) from 
time to time, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), Secretarial 
Standard – 2 on General Meetings (the “SS-2”) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and as amended from 
time to time any statutory modification or re-enactment thereto, and other applicable laws and regulations, if any, for the 
time being in force. The e-voting period was for 30 days from dispatch of notice. The Scrutinizer submitted the report to 
the Company. The voting results were announced within 48 hours of end of the e-voting period. For e-voting, the company 
is having agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for providing e-voting facility to its shareholders. 
Under this facility, shareholders are provided an electronic platform to participate and vote on the resolutions to be passed 
through Postal Ballot. As on the date of this report, no business is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

6.	 Disclosures

a)	 Material significant Related Party Transactions & potential conflict with the interest of the company at large

	 There were no related party transactions (RPTs) entered into by the Company during the financial year, which attracted the 
provisions of section 188 of Companies Act, 2013. There being no ‘material’ related party transactions as defined under 
Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR), 2015, there are no details to be disclosed in Form AOC-2 in that regard. The Policy on 
RPTs as approved by Board is uploaded on the Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in. All contracts / arrangements / 
transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business 
and on an arm’s length basis. The details are provided in the related party disclosures in the notes forming part of the 
financial statement and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity. 

b)	 Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging risk.

	 The details for the same have been provided in the notes to the financial statements.

c)	 Compliances made by the Company

	 The Company was not subject to any non-compliance and no penalties or strictures have been imposed by Stock Exchanges, 
SEBI or any other Statutory Authority, on any matters relating to Capital Market during the year.
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d)	 The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. There are certain 
Non-mandatory requirements which have also been unilaterally adopted by the Company.

e)	 Compliance with mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 

	 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 
sub - regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, as on March 31, 2025.

f)	 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

	 A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out audit on quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted equity share 
capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 
and the total issued and listed equity share capital. The reconciliation of share capital audit report confirms the total issued/
paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of de-materialized 
shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

g)	 Official News Releases 

	 The Company’s website also displays official news releases.

h)	 Presentations made to Institutional Investors or to the Analysts 

	 No presentation was made to institutional investors or to the analysts by the Company.

i)	 Trading of Shares of the Company 

	 The Company’s shares are listed and actively traded on the below mentioned Stock Exchanges:

	 I. NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED (NSE)
	 “Exchange Plaza” C-1, Block G,
	  Bandra Kurla Complex,
	  Bandra (East), Mumbai-400 051
	  Website: www.nseindia.com
	  Symbol: KOHINOOR, Series: Eq.

	 II. BSE LIMITED (BSE)
	 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
	 Dalal Street,
	 Mumbai-400 001
	 Website: www.bseindia.com
	 Stock Code: 512559

j)	 List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant financial year, for 
all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity 
involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad

	 During the year under review, there is no change in the rating and it stand to be D Rating.

k)	 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity

	 The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other convertible instruments, during the year under review. 

l)	 Foreign Exchange Risk and hedging activities : 

	 The details for the same have been provided in the notes to the financial statements.

m)	 Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified 
under regulation 31(7A) 

	 Not Applicable
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n)	 Certification by Practicing Company Secretary

	 Mr. Manish Kumar - Practicing Company Secretary has issued a certificate under the Listing Regulations, confirming that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority. The certificate is enclosed with this section.

o)	 Acceptance of recommendations made by the Committees

	 During the financial year 2024-25, the Board has accepted all the recommendations of its Committees.

p)	 Total Fees paid to Statutory Auditors 

	 The details of total fees paid by the Company to the statutory auditors are as under:-

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
As Statutory Auditor 10,60,000 10,60,000
For Taxation matters 2,50,000 2,50,000
Reimbursement of Expenses - -
For Other Matters 87,300 231,000
Total 13,97,300 15,41,000

q)	 Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

number of complaints filed during the financial year 2024-25 0
number of complaints disposed of during the financial year 2024-25 0
number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year 0

r)	 Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed

	 For your company, our people are our strongest asset. The Company invests in building best-in-class teams, led by exceptional 
professionals. Over the years, the Company has nurtured a meritocratic, empowering and caring culture that encourages 
excellence. Your Company encourages the development of talent by providing its people with opportunities to sharpen their 
capabilities, encouraging innovation, lateral thinking, and developing multiple skills. Through this approach, your company 
prepares its people for future leadership roles. During the year under review total number of permanent employees are 100 
as compared to last year 95 as 16 employees joined the organizations.

g)	 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

	 Your Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter 
referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016. Your Company financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are prepared under Ind AS. 
For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the financial statements were prepared in accordance 
with the accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory reporting 
requirement in India immediately before adopting Ind AS. 

h)	 Details of significant changes in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations 

RATIO
S. No. PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24 DETAILED REASON
1 Debtors Turnover 5.24 7.04  due to lower average Debtors because of recoveries and 

settlement of old balances
2 Inventory Turnover 9.02 9.90  impact due to decrease on turnover
3 Interest Coverage Ratio 0.19 0.50  The ratio is Negative due to Operative profits are low.
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RATIO
S. No. PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24 DETAILED REASON
4 Current Ratio 0.15 0.07 The current ratio has improved due to repayment of bank 

loans, indicating that the company’s financial position is 
strengthening.

5 Debt Equity Ratio -1.69 -1.34 The ratio is negative due to erosion of net worth because 
of losses

6 Operating Profit Margin (%) 3.68% 9.51%  due to decrease in operative profit
7 Net Profit Margin (%) 432.75% -4.97%  due to increase in exceptional item Income.
8 Return on Net Worth (%) NA NA -

6.	 Means of Communication

	 The Company interacts with its shareholders through multiple forms of corporate and financial communication:

a)	 Financial Results:

	 The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results are submitted to the Stock Exchange(s) in accordance with SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, the Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results in the 
prescribed format were generally published in English Newspaper Financial Express and regional language newspaper 
(Hindi) in Jansatta. The same were sent to Stock Exchanges and were also displayed on the website of the Company,  
www.kohinoorfoods.in.

b)	 Website:

	 The Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investor’ where shareholders 
information is available. The Company’s Annual Report and all other relevant information are also available in a user-friendly 
and downloadable form.

c)	 Annual Report

	 The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statement, Consolidated Financial Statements, Directors’ Report 
with relevant annexure, Auditors’ Report and other important information is circulated to members and others entitled 
thereto. The Annual Report is displayed on the Company’s website (www.kohinoorfoods.in).

d)	 NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS):

	 The NEAPS is a web-based application designed by NSE for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like Shareholding 
Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, Results and other requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, media releases, among others are filed electronically on NEAPS, by the Company.

e)	 BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’)

	 BSE’s Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like Shareholding 
Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, Results, media releases, among others are also filed electronically on the Listing 
Centre by the Company.

f)	 SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

	 SEBI has designed a centralized web-based system, www.scores.gov.in wherein the investors can lodge their complaints and 
can view the status of their complaints being replied to by the respective Company. In compliance thereof, the Company is 
regularly uploading the ‘Action taken Report’ on the said website in respect of the investors’ references received, if any.

g)	 Designated Exclusive email-id

	 The Company has designated the email-id “Investors@kohinorfoods.in” exclusively for investor servicing.
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7.	 Shareholders Information Annual General Meeting

Date : 30th September, 2025
Time : 11:30 A.M.
Mode : Through Video conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)
Financial Calendar : 1st April to 31st March
Date of Book Closure : 24.09.2025 to 30.09.2025 (both days inclusive)
Dividend Payment Date : No dividend has been recommended for the financial year 2024-25
CIN : L52110HR1989PLC070351 

8.	 Listing on Stock Exchanges

	 The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with BSE Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE).

9.	 Payment of Listing Fees

	 The annual listing fee for the Financial Year 2025-2026 has been paid by the Company to BSE & NSE.

10.	  Payment of Depository Fees

	 There is no outstanding invoice of Annual Custody / Issuer fees to be paid by the Company to NSDL and CDSL.

11.	  Trading Symbol / Stock Code

1. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. Mumbai (NSE) : KOHINOOR
2. The BSE Ltd., Mumbai (BSE) : 512559
3. ISIN Number for NSDL& CDSL : INE080B01012

STOCK MARKET DATA

Monthly High and Low quotations of Shares traded at The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and BSE Ltd.

Month/ Year N.S.E B.S.E

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)

April 2024 46.95 39.10 46.90 39.15

May 2024 42.75 38.80 42.72 39.00

June 2024 45.90 35.90 46.08 35.95

July 2024 46.54 40.06 46.45 40.78

August 2024 44.29 39.50 44.00 39.01

September 2024 53.80 38.82 53.80 38.00

October 2024 52.50 39.60 50.44 39.51

November 2024 43.00 38.07 43.74 38.01

December 2024 55.30 39.51 55.05 39.41

January 2025 41.35 35.50 45.43 35.47

February 2025 39.91 31.00 41.00 38.00

March 2025 38.74 29.99 34.51 33.78
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S&P CNX Nifty/Sensex vis-à-vis Kohinoor Foods

Relative Price Movements April 2024 – March 2025 (Base price as on 1st April 2024)
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12.	 Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

	 M/s. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 

	 D-153-A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 

	 Phase-I, New Delhi 110 020

	 Share Transfer System

	 All the Transfers received are processed and approved by the share transfer committee and sent to the shareholders within 
a period of 15 days. The Company obtains from a practicing Company Secretary half yearly certificate of compliance as 
required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and files the same with Stock Exchanges.

13.	 Distribution of Shareholding and Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2025.

	 Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025, as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Share Nominal Value (Rs.) Share Holders Total Shares
No. % age Total % of Total

1 5,000 47375 89.99 46128000 12.44
5001 10,000 2805 5.33 22647930 6.11
10001 20,000 1347 2.56 20201690 5.45
20001 30,000 418 0.79 10578520 2.85
30001 40,000 184 0.35 6578350 1.77
40001 50,000 154 0.29 7263730 1.96
50001 1,00,000 220 0.42 15811920 4.27

1,00,000 Above 142 0.27 241505160 65.15
 Total 52645 100.00 370715300 100.00

	 Category of Shareholders as on 31st March 2025

Category No. of Shares of Rs. 10 each Percentage (%) of Total
Promoter, Directors and Relatives 13965790 37.67
Mutual Funds / UTI 0 0.00
Alternative Investment Funds 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 2537 0.01
Financial Institutions/Banks 1420 0.01
Central Government/President of India 500 0.00
Insurance Companies 0 0.00
Foreign Institutional Investors 0 0.00
Foreign Companies 7048306 19.01
Domestic Companies/Bodies Corporate 730178 1.97

Category No. of Shares of Rs. 10 each Percentage (%) of Total
Non-resident Individual 249464 0.67
Others 0 0.00
Individual Shareholders 14647379 39.51
HUF 387655 1.05
Clearing Member/House 0 0.00
Trusts 1550 0.00
Firms 36751 0.10
Total 37071530 100
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	 Status of Dematerialization/Physical form of Shares

	 The detail of shares dematerialized and those held in physical form, as on 31st March 2025. (As per Shareholding basis)

Particulars of Shares Shares of Rs. 10 each Shareholders
De-materialised Form Number % of Total Number of 

Records
% of Total

National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) 2,53,49,106 68.38 14,500 26.94
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) 1,13,19,342 30.53 34,377 63.86
Physical Form 4,03,082 1.09 4,953 9.20

Total 3,70,71,530 100 53,830 100

	 The paid up Share Capital of the Company is amounting to Rs. 370,715,300/- comprising of 37,071,530 equity shares of Rs. 
10/- each. Further the Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs or any convertible instruments except as mentioned the 
Annual Report.

14.	 CEO and CFO Certification

	 The Joint Managing Directors of the Company give quarterly certification on Financial Results while placing Financial Results 
before the Board in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. The Joint Managing Director and CFO of the Company have also 
given certificate on CEO and CFO Certification for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and the same is attached with the Annual 
Report.

15.	 Compliance Certificate

	 The Joint Managing Director of the Company gives quarterly certificate on compliance with various laws and regulations and 
other legal requirement of the central, state and other government and local authorities concerning the business and affairs 
of the Company.

16.	 Dematerialisation of Shares

	 The Shares of the Company are in Compulsory Demat segment and are available for trading in the depository systems 
of both the National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). At the end 
of Financial Year, 2024-2025, the total dematerialized equity shares of the Company is 3,66,68,448 Equity Shares forming 
98.91% of the total listed share capital of the Company.

17.	 Promoters Shareholding

	 In compliance of the SEBI circular No. CIR/ISD/3/2011 dated June 17, 2011, all the Shares of the Promoters are in 
Dematerialization form.

18.	 Un-Paid Dividend of Shareholders

	 As per MCA Circular no. G.S.R.352 (E) dated 20th May, 2012 the List of Un-paid dividend, transferred to Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government and is available on MCA Portal as well as on the 
Company’s website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor.

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act, Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”) read with the relevant circulars and amendments thereto, the amount of 
dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the due date is required to be transferred to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”), constituted by the Central Government. The Company had, already 
accordingly, transferred the unpaid and unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to Final Dividend, to the IEPF.

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205 A(5) and 205 C of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred the 
unpaid or unclaimed dividends (remaining unpaid/ unclaimed for a period of 7 (Seven) years from the due date), to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to the provisions of 
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Investor Education and Protection Fund (uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with 
Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company 
as on September 29, 2014, on the website of the Company (www.kohinoorfoods.in), and also on the website of the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs.

	 Pursuant to the provisions of IEPF Rules, all shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven 
consecutive years shall be transferred by the Company to the designated Demat Account of the IEPF Authority (“IEPF 
Account”) within a period of thirty days of such shares becoming due to be transferred to the IEPF Account.

19.	 Green Initiatives

	 The Company had started a sustainability initiative with the aim of going green and minimizing our impact on the environment. 
Members are requested to support this green initiative by registering/updating their e-mail address, in respect of shares 
held in dematerialized form with their respective Depository Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with 
Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

	 Pursuant to Section 101 and 136 of the Act read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in view of continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the 
Company can send Notice of Annual General Meeting, financial statements and other communication in electronic forms. 
Your Company is sending the Annual Report including the Notice of Annual General Meeting, audited financial statements 
(both standalone and consolidated), Directors Report along with their annexures etc. for the Financial Year 2024-25 in 
the electronic mode to the shareholders who have registered their email ids with the Company and/or their respective 
Depository Participants (DPs).

	 The Annual Report containing audited financial statements (both standalone and consolidated), Directors Report along with 
their annexures etc. and other important information for the Financial Year 2024-25 is available in downloadable form on 
company’s website at www.kohinoorfoods.in.

20.	 Plant Locations

	 -	 42-43 Miilestone, G. T. Karnal Road, Village Sultanpur, Bahalgarh, Sonepat, Haryana-131021

	 -	  Khewat No. 40//40, 48//48, 42-43 KM Stone G. T. Karnal Road, Village Hasamabad, Sultanpur PO Bahalgarh District 
Sonipath Haryana 131 021

	 -	  Survey No. 47/1, Village: Bharapar, Gandhidham Kutch, Ta-Gandhidham – Kutch - 370230

	 -	 50-51 Milestone, G.T.Karnal Road, Murthal, Dist. Sonepat (Haryana)-131027

	 ( The Company has entered into rent agreement at two location i.e., Kutch Gujarat, the operation has not started yet as 
development is under process.) 

	 ( The Company has already sold the said unit towards sanctioned One time Settlement terms and conditions to M/s. 
RCM Consumer Products Private Limited at a value of INR 190 Crores, towards its consideration, vide tri-partite Agreement 
dated 31-03-2025. The Approval from the members of the Company was obtained through Postal Ballot dated 21 April 2025.

21.	 Address for Correspondence

	 Shareholders Correspondence may be addressed to: 

	 M/s. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.
	 D-153-A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
	 Phase-I, New Delhi 110 020 

	 Or
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	 The Company Secretary 
	 Kohinoor Foods Limited
	 Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor, 
	 Shooting Range Road, Surajkund, 
	 Faridabad, Haryana- 121001

	 However, shareholders holding shares in de-mat mode should address their correspondence relating to their holdings to the 
respective Depository participants.

	 Declaration – Compliance with the Code of Conduct

	 In acordance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I, Satnam 
Arora and Gurnam Arora, Jt. Managing Directors of the Company, hereby declare that the Board Members and the Senior 
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended 31st March 
2025.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

                                                                                 	             	    Sd/-	         Sd/-
         							       Satnam Arora               	  Gurnam Arora
             					        Jt. Managing Director         	 Jt. Managing Director
                                   				    DIN: 00010667           	    DIN: 00010731
Date : 13th August, 2025
Place : Faridabad         
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Member,

Kohinoor Foods Limited,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Kohinoor Foods Ltd. (the Company) for the year 
ended 31st March, 2025 as per regulations 17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulations 2 of Regulations 46 and paragraph C, D and 
E of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to 
procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate 
governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information, based on the records, documents, books, and other information furnished and 
according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance 
as per regulations 17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulations 2 of Regulations 46 and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N C Raj & Associates 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/-
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No. 088636
UDIN: 25088636BMMJDP6995
Place: New Delhi
Date: 11/08/2025
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI  

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
Kohinoor Foods Limited

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Kohinoor Foods 
Limited (CIN L52110HR1989PLC070351) having registered office at Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor, Surajkund, Shooting 
Range Faridabad Haryana – 121 001 (India), (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for 
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its 
directors / officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year 
ending on 31st March 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs and any such other statutory authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

       For MANK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

(UCN.S2017UP554100)
Place: Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India	 						        Sd/-
Date: 28/07/2025						                   (CS Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No:  19684

PR: 1257/2021
  ICSI-UDIN: F010248G000871878
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION
Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure  

Requirements) Regulation, 2015 for the financial year ended 31st March 2025

The Board of Directors,
Kohinoor Foods Limited

Dear Members of the Board,

As stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, We, Satnam Arora, Jt. Managing Director 
and Chashu Arora, Chief Financial Officer, of the Company, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

A.	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year 2024-25 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

	 1)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading;

	 2)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year that are 
fraudulent, illegal or voilative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to 
the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we 
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

	 There have been no significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during this year.

	 There have been no significant changes in the accounting policies this year and that the same have been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements.

	 There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Faridabad       Satnam Arora Pradeep Goswami
Date : 13/08/2025 Jt. Managing Director (CFO)
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST March, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members, 
Kohinoor Foods Limited
Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor
Shooting Range Road, Surajkund
Faridabad – 121001
Haryana

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of M/s Kohinoor Foods Limited to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by M/s Kohinoor Foods Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Kohinoor Foods Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms  and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit,  we  hereby  report  that  in  our  opinion,  the  Company  has,  during  the  audit  period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place, to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

We  have  examined  the  books,  papers,  minute  books,  forms  and  returns  filed  and  other records maintained by M/s Kohinoor 
Foods Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 
: -

	 (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

	 (b)	 The   Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India   (Prohibition   of   Insider   Trading) Regulations, 1992;

	 (c)	 The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Issue  of  Capital  and  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

	 (d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999 - Not Applicable as the Company has not granted any options to its employees during the 
financial year under review.

	 (e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - Not Applicable 
as the Company has not issued any debt security during the financial year under review.
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	 (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client - Not Applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under review.

	 (g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not Applicable as the 
Company has not delisted its equity shares from any stock exchange during the financial year under review.

	 (h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998- Not Applicable as the Company 
has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year under review.

(vi)	 Other laws as specifically applicable to the  Company based on its sector/industry,

	 (a)	 The Food Safety and Standards Act including packaging and Labelling Laws.

	 (b)	 Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954.

	 (c)	 Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and rules and regulations made thereunder.

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

	 (a)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and General 
Meetings. 

	 (b)	 The applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 (c)	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that:

(a)	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

(b)	 Adequate notice of atleast seven days is normally given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent normally three days in advance. However, in some cases shorter notice/agenda of the Board 
Meeting has been sent to Directors. Consent, if obtained from the Directors were not available for our inspection.

 (c)	 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

	 We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For MANK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

(UCN.S2017UP554100)
Place: Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India	 						        Sd/-
Date:  30/07/2025					                   (CS Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No:  19684

PR: 1257/2021
  ICSI-UDIN: F010248G000890688

This report is to be read alongwith our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A

To,
The Members
Kohinoor Foods Limited
Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor
Shooting Range Range, Surajkund
Faridabad – 121001, Haryana

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We  have  followed  the  audit  practices  and  processes  as  were  appropriate  to  obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the  contents of the Secretarial records.   The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MANK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

(UCN.S2017UP554100)
Place: Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India	 						        Sd/-
Date:  30/07/2025					                   (CS Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No:  19684

PR: 1257/2021
  ICSI-UDIN: F010248G00090688
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ANNEXURE – 'B' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
forming Part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

A.	 Conservation of Energy

	 Improvement of methods of Energy Conservation and optimal utilization of Energy in all operations, continued to receive 
close attention. Company is always conscious to conserve energy through improved methods of operations and design. In 
this regard the Company has introduced energy saving features in the systems and monitors by which the user saves the 
power consumption to a considerable extent. The company's efforts towards energy conservation resulted in optimum 
consumption of power and fuel and the expenses for the current year stood to Rs. 223.98 Lakh.

B.	 Research & Development (R & D)

i)	 Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the Company and benefits derived as a result of R&D

	 Research & Development has always been a focus area at Kohinoor Foods Ltd. during the year the Company has put special 
efforts in research and development. As the company had also started production in its new food factory at Sonepat, which 
has state of art R & D facility The R&D team of the Company has worked on a number of areas, more specifically in the areas 
of frozen foods. This has resulted in the Company to launch new range product variants in both Ready to Eat & Ready to 
Cook segments. We expect to notch up good numbers in the next financial year through some exciting product launches 
and expanding & streamlining the distribution network. The company is also perusing R & D activities in the RTE Segment. 
During the year, there is increase of 67.29% in R & D expenditure by the company, for the current year stood at Rs. 22.89 
lakhs.

ii)	 Future plan of action

	 Steps are continuously being taken to promote the branded sales in overseas market. The company is exciting product 
launches and expanding & streamlining the distribution network in domestic as well as in International Market. The Company 
is continuously making efforts to provide best of quality products to its customers.

iii)	 Expenditure on R&D

a) Capital : Nil
b) Recurring : Rs. 22,89,329/-
c) Total : Rs. 22,89,329/-

	 Total R&D expenditure is 0.25% of Turnover.

C.	 Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

	 Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation had always been the key strength of the Company. The Company plans 
to be a leading player in technology introduction through innovative products.

D.	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

a)	 Total Foreign Exchange earned and used.

	 Foreign Exchange Earnings of the Company amounted 7,716.83 Lakh as against Foreign Exchange Outgo of Rs. 50.41 Lacs 
during the year under review.

b)	 Activities related to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for products.

	 Due to liquidity problem and banking restrictions, the exports were badly affected, during the year. However, the Company 
has strong Global Network and expect the exports to revive soon.                                                                                                                                          

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Date : 13th August 2025       
Place : Faridabad            

Sd/-
Satnam Arora 

Jt. Managing Director
DIN: 00010667                          

Sd/-
Gurnam Arora

Jt. Managing Director
DIN: 00010731



48

ANNEXURE C

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies  

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN L52110HR1989PLC070351
ii) Registration Date 26th July, 1989
iii) Name of the Company Kohinoor Foods Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public (Listed) Company
v) Address of the Registered/Corporate office and 

contact details:
Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor,
Shooting Range Road, Surajkund, Faridabad, Haryana- 121001                                                       
Phone: +91-129-424-2222, 
Fax:+91-129-424-2233                                  
Email: info@kohinoorfoods.in 
Website:  www.kohinoorfoods.in 

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No YES
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, if any 
M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.,     
Off: D-153A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-I, New Delhi-110020, 
Ph. No. 011- 40450193 to 97

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities are under single segment and not contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company:- 

Sl. No. Name and Description of main products / 
services

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service

% to total turnover of the 
company

1  Rice and Food 1061 & 1075 0.66% & 99.34%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –

S. N0 NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE 
COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY 
/ ASSOCIATE

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1  Kohinoor Foods USA INC, 40, Northfield 
Avenue Edison, NJ 08837

NA SUBSIDIARY 100%

2 Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd.

201, Vipps Centre, Masjid Moth, Greater 
Kailash-II, New Delhi-110 048

U15311DL1986PTC222606 SUBSIDIARY 100%

3 Rich Rice Raisers Factory LLC

Post Box No. 15542, Al Quoz Industrial 
Area, 3rd Interchange, Sh Zayed Road, 
Dubai, U.A.E.

NA ASSOCIATE 25%
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i)   Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Changing 

During 
Year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Share

A.   Promoter          
(1)   Indian          
a) Individual/  HUF 13861690 0 13861690 37.39 13861690 0 13861690 37.39 0
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other…. 104100 0 104100 0.28 104100 0 104100 0.28 0
Sub-total (A) (1):- 13965790 0 13965790 37.67 13965790 0 13965790 37.67 0
(2) Foreign          
a) NRIs – Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other – Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-Total (A) (2) 
:-Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = (A)
(1)+(A)( 2)

13965790 0 13965790 37.67 13965790 0 13965790 37.67 0

B. Public Share holding          
1.    Institutions          
a)    Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b)    Banks / FI 1420 0 1420 0 1420 0 1420 0 0
c)    Central Govt 0 0 0 0 500 0 500 0 0
d)    State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e)    Venture Capital 
Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f)     Insurance 
Companies

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g)    FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h)   Foreign Venture 
Capital Investors

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (FPI Cat-I) 0 0 0 0 2537 0 2537 0.01 0.01
 Sub-total (B)(1):- 1420 0 1420 0 4457 0 4457 0.01 0.01
2. Non Institutions          
a) Bodies Corp.          
i) Indian 1030362 34376 1064738 2.87 695802 34376 730178 1.97 -0.9
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(I) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

12960049 371246 13331295 35.96 13045225 368706 13413931 36.18 0.22
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Changing 

During 
Year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Share

(ii)Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 lakh

929670 0 929670 2.51 1233448 0 1233448 3.33 0.82

c) Other specify          
N.R.I.(Rept & Non-Rept) 342976 200 343176 0.93 249464 0 249464 0.67 -0.26
Public Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate Bodies- OCB 7048306 0 7048306 19.01 7048306 0 7048306 19.01 0
Intermediary/Other 
Depository A/c

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Hindu Undivided Family 366858 0 366858 0.99 387655 0 387655 1.05 0.06
Clearing Members/
House

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Qualified Foreign 
Investor- Individual

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Qualified Foreign 
Investor- Corporate

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

NBFC’s Registered with 
RBI

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Trust 1550 0 1550 0.00 1550 0 1550 0.00 0
Firms 18727 0 18727 0.5 36751 0 36751 1.1 0.05
Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(2):- 22698498 405822 23104320 62.33 22698201 403082 23101283 62.32 -0.01
Total Public 
Shareholding(B)=(B)
(1)+ (B)(2)

22699918 405822 23105740 62.33 22702658 403082 23105740 62.33 0

Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total (A+B+C) 36665708 405822 37071530 100 36668448 403082 37071530 100 100

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl No. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

1 Gurnam Arora 6289204 16.97 - 6289204 16.97 - 0
2 Jugal Kishore Arora 1053484 2.84 - 1053484 2.84 - 0
3 Satnam Arora 5749158 15.51 - 5749158 15.51 - 0
4 Rani Arora 746009 2.01 - 746009 2.01 - 0
5 Nitin Arora 21000 0.06 - 21000 0.06 - 0
6 Madhu Arora 1869 0 - 1869 0 - 0
7 Meena  Rani Arora 966 0 - 966 0 - 0
8 Satnam Haegens Ltd. 104100 0.28 - 104100 0.28 - 0

Total 13965790 37.67 - 13965790 37.67 - 0
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(i) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) –No Change

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

1 Gurnam Arora No. of shares % of total shares 
of the Company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
the Company

At the beginning of the year 6289204 16.97 6289204 16.97
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year 

- - - -

specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 
equity etc): 

- - - -

At the End of the year 6289204 16.97 6289204 16.97
2. Satnam Arora No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company
No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
the company

At the beginning of the year 5749158 15.51 5749158 15.51
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year 

- - - -

specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 
equity etc):

- - - -

At the End of the year 5749158 15.51 5749158 15.51
3. Jugal Kishore Arora No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company
No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
the company

At the beginning of the year 1053484 2.84 1053484 2.84
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the

- - - -

reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

- - - -

At the End of the year 1053484 2.84 1053484 2.84

(ii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

S. 
No.

Name Shareholding Date Increase/ 
Decrease in 

Shareholding

Reason Cumulative
No. of 
Shares 
at the 

beginning 
(01-04-
2024)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares 

during the 
year (31-
03-2025)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

1 Al Dahra 
International 
Investments LLC

7048306 19.01 - - - 7048306 19.01

2 Kapil Aggarwal 40000 0.11 28.06.2024 5000 Purchase 115000 0.31
12.07.2024 5000 Purchase
06.12.2024 5000 Purchase
27.12.2024 60000 Purchase
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S. 
No.

Name Shareholding Date Increase/ 
Decrease in 

Shareholding

Reason Cumulative
No. of 
Shares 
at the 

beginning 
(01-04-
2024)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares 

during the 
year (31-
03-2025)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

3 Finmen Advisors 
Private Limited

0 0 20.09.2024 150000 Purchase 100000 0.27

21.02.2025 (40143) Sale

28.02.2025 (9857) Sale

4 Priyanka Arora 85000 0.23 85000 0.23

5 Kunal Patel 76988 0.21 76988 0.21

6 Vijay Kumar Gupta 500 0 20.09.2024 (500) Sale 58360 0.16

27.12.2024 31474 Purchase

03.01.2025 3999 Purchase

10.01.2025 22887 Purchase

7 Atlas Events Private 
Limited

3001 0.01 21.06.2024 (3000) Sale 55001 0.15

04.10.2024 40000 Purchase

27.12.2024 (5000) Sale

17.01.2025 10000 Purchase

21.02.2025 5000 Purchase

07.03.2025 5000 Purchase

8 Kanchan Goel 70000 0.19 05.07.2024 (15000) Sale 55000 0.15

9 Ved Prakash 
Agrawal

9000 0.02 26.07.2024 (1000) Sale 50748 0.14

30.08.2024 (5000) Sale

20.09.2024 50000 Purchase

25.10.2024 20000 Purchase

29.11.2024 (24252) Sale

06.12.2024 (3000) Sale

13.12.2024 (20000) Sale

27.12.2024 25000 Purchase

10 My Money 
Securities Limited

0 0 05.07.2024 50000 Purchase 50000 0.13

*The increase in percentage of Share is due to purchase of shares from open market.
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Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S. 
No.

Name Shareholding Date Increase/ 
Decrease in 

Shareholding

Reason Cumulative
No. of 
Shares 
at the 

beginning 
(01-04-24) 
/end of the 
year (31-
03-2025)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

Directors
1 Jugal Kishore Arora 

(Chairman)
1053484 2.84 01.04.2024 - - 1053484 2.84
1053484 2.84 31.03.2025 - - 1053484 2.84

2 Satnam Arora (Jt. 
M.D)

5749158 15.51 01.04.2024 - - 5749158 15.51
5749158 15.51 31.03.2025 - - 5749158 15.51

3 Gurnam Arora (Jt. 
M.D)

6289204 16.97 01.04.2024 - - 6289204 16.97
6289204 16.97 31.03.2025 - - 6289204 16.97

4 Sunil Sharma 
(Non-Executive 
& Independent 
Director) 

- - 01.04.2024 - - - -
- - 31.03.2025 - - - -

5 Yash Pal Mahajan 
(Non-Executive 
& Independent 
Director) 

- - 01.04.2024 - - - -
- - 31.03.2025 - - - -

6 Mani Chandra 
Bhandari (Non-
Executive & 
Independent 
Director) 

- - 01.04.2024 - - - -
- - 31.03.2025 - - - -

Key Managerial Personnel
Chashu Arora (CFO)

(Appointed w.e.f., 
30/03/2022)

(Resigned on 24/03/2025)

- - 01.04.2024 - - - -
- - 24.03.2025 - - - -

Deepak Kaushal (CS & 
Compliance Officer) 
(Appointed w.e.f., 
14/08/2019)

- - 01.04.2024 - - - -
- - 31.03.2025 - - - -
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 6,36,11,98,864 64,09,29,282 - 7,00,21,28,146
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 6,36,11,98,864 64,09,29,282 - 7,00,21,28,146
Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year

    

· Addition - - - -
· Reduction - 434,34,02,427 10,79,73,145 - - 423,54,29,282
Net Change - 434,34,02,427 10,79,73,145 - - 423,54,29,282
Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year

    

i) Principal Amount 2,01,77,96,437 74,89,02,427 - 2,76,66,98,864
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due* - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,01,77,96,437 74,89,02,427 - 2,76,66,98,864

* The company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs. 1,45,96,38,541 /-  for current year ( Rs. 129,84,29,478/ - for previous 
year) and  Rs. 7,32,27,25,379 /-  up to 31-03-2025 (previous year Rs. 586,30,86,838/-) on bank loans which were classified as non-
performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not provided interest during 
the current year to the extent of  Rs. 12,09,84,869.27 /- for the period upto 31-03-2025 on account of revoked corporate guarantee 
KFL USA subsidiary.

** The company had issued a corporate guarantee in favor of PNB Hong Kong (now PNB-Dubai) for loan granted by PNB 
Hong Kong (now PNB-Dubai) to its wholly own subsidiary Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. PNB Hong Kong (now PNB-Dubai) has 
invoked the corporate guarantee on default made by Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. The company has recognized the loss of Rs. 
40,88,17,667./-(previous year Rs. 39,87,14,728/-  on account of this liability.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

S l . 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
AmountMr. Jugal 

Kishore Arora
Mr. Satnam 

Arora
Mr. Gurnam 

Arora
1 Gross salary  

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

- - - -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act,1961

- - - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income 
tax Act, 1961

- - - -

2 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - as % of profit - others, specify… - - - -
5 Others, please specify - - - -

Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

- - - -

- The Executive Directors have forgone their remuneration for the months from April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025.
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
AmountMr. Sunil 

Sharma
Mr. Yash Pal 

Mahajan
Mrs. Mani 

Chandra 
Bhandari

1. Independent Directors     
· Fee for attending board / committee meetings 150,000 200,000 200,000 550,000
· Commission - - - -
· Others, please specify - - - -
Total (1) 150,000 200,000 200,000 550,000
2. Other Non-Executive Directors - - - -
· Fee for attending board / committee meetings - - - -
· Commission - - - -
· Others, please specify - - - -

Total (2) - - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) 150,000 200,000 200,000 550,000

Total Managerial Remuneration 150,000 200,000 200,000 550,000
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

S l . 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company 

Secretary
CFO Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 

the Income-tax Act, 1961
- 13,96,806 25,65,472 39,62,278

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-

tax Act, 1961
- - - -

2 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - as % of profit others, specify… - - - -
5 Others, please specify - - - -

Total (A) - 13,96,806 25,65,472 39,62,278

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There are no penalties/ punishment/ compounding of offence against Kohinoor Foods Limited and its Director and officers for the 
year ended 31st March, 2025.
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ANNEXURE-D

Disclosers as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Ratio of remuneration of each director of the median remuneration of employees of the Company and the Percentage increase in 
remuneration of Directors & KMPs in the Financial Year:

S. 
No.

Name of Director/KMP Designation Ratio of remuneration of 
each director to median 
remuneration of Employees

Percentage increase in 
remuneration during FY 
2024-25

1 Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora Chairman - 0.00%
2 Mr. Satnam Arora Jt. Managing Director - 0.00%
3 Mr. Gurnam Arora Jt. Managing Director - 0.00%
4 Mr. Chashu Arora Chief Financial Officer 6.69 0.00%
5 Mr. Deepak Kaushal Company Secretary 3.61 0.00%
3) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year. -0.99%
4) Number of permanent employee on the roll of Company as at March 31, 2025 100
5) Explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company 

Performance.
There was no increase in 
employee’s remuneration 
during the year.

(Rs. in Million)
6) Comparison of 

remuneration of Key 
managerial Remuneration 
against the performance of 
the company

Total Turnover `
Total Remuneration to KMP 4.00
Total Remuneration of KMP as % to total revenue 0.43%

7) i Variation in market capitalization of the company as at March 31, 2025 Market capitalization 
decreased from Rs. 174.05 
million as on 31st March 
2024 to Rs. 143.62 million as 
on 31st March 2025

ii Price earning ratio of the Company N/A
iii Percentage increase over/decrease in the market quotation of the shares of the company 

as compared to the rate at which the company come out with the last Public offer in the 
year

N/A

8) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employee other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in managerial remuneration

There was no increase in 
employee’s remuneration 
during the year.

9)    Comparison of each remuneration of Key Managerial Remuneration against the performance of the Company

S. No. Name of KMPs Remuneration 
in FY 2024-25 

Percentage increase in remuneration 
during FY 2024-25

1 Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora 0 0.00%
2 Mr. Satnam Arora 0 0.00%
3 Mr. Gurnam Arora 0 0.00%
4 Mr. Chashu Arora 2.60 0.24%
5 Mr. Deepak Kaushal 1.40 0.13%
6 The Key parameter of any variable component of remuneration availed 

by the Directors
Not applicable

7 Ratio of remuneration of highest paid director to that of the employee 
who are not director but receive remuneration in excess of the highest 
paid director during the year.

Not applicable

8 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration 
paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for 
Director, KMP and other employees.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF KOHINOOR FOODS LIMITED

Qualified Opinion.

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and the standalone Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects/possible 
effects of the matters described in paragraph under ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’, the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at March 31st, 2025, and 
its standalone profit/loss including other comprehensive income, its standalone cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified opinion

1.	 In reference to Note No. 38 in the statement discloses the management’s assessment of the company’s ability to continue as 
going concern. The management’s assessment of going concern is based on the OTS by the lead bank PNB and the interest 
shown by prospective investors in the company. However, in view of negative net worth and due to financial constraints, 
material uncertainty exists about the company’s ability to continue as going concern and the decision of the management of 
the company to prepare the accounts of the company on going concern basis. There may arise a need to adjust the realizable 
value of assets and liabilities in the event of failure of assumption as to going concern.

2.	 As stated in Note No.15 (C) of Standalone Audited Financial Results, the company has not provided interest on bank loans to 
the extent of Rs.14596.38 lacs for the Current Year and Rs. 73227.25 lacs from the date on which the bank loans were classified 
as non-performing assets. Further, towards revoked corporate guarantee of the wholly owned subsidiary in USA, the company 
has not provided interest to the extent of Rs 284.20 lacs for the Current Year and Rs. 1209.84 lacs up to 31.03.2025 from 
the date of revocation of corporate guarantee in the books of account. Further no provision has been made towards penal 
interest, penalties, any other Debit or Credit etc. as may be done by lenders. In the absence of reconciliation and complete 
statement of account from the banks, the above amount has been arrived as per calculation made by the company. With 
the limited information the aggregate amount not provided in books of account of the company is not ascertainable with 
accuracy. However, the company has entered into revised OTS with Consortium of Banks and has paid substantial amount.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw your attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Financial statements:

(1)	 The company has not made Provision for the demand raised by various authorities (Such as Income Tax, Vat etc.) as the 
matters are pending before various appellate forums. We are unable to comment upon possible impact of non-provision in 
the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

(2)	 We draw attention to Note No. 15 (C) of the statement of the company, The lead banker, Punjab National Bank has filed 
petition under section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the Hon’ble Court of NCLT. Chandigarh Bench, 
which is not yet admitted.

(3)	 In reference to Note no. 15 (C), The Secured Creditors (IDBI Bank) of the Company have filed petition under Section 7 of 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the Hon’ble court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is yet to be admitted.

(4)	 In reference to Note no. 15(C) to the standalone financial statement the Banks have classified the company’s accounts 
as non-Performing asset and served recall Notice under section 13(2) & 13(4) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of 
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002. The Company has given reply of said notices within the 
stipulated time. However, the Company has entered into One time settlement (OTS) with the lenders, as per the term and 
condition of the OTS, the company has deposited Rs 200 Crores with Banks. (Rs. 78.5 Crores till 31-03-2025 and Rs. 121.5 
Crores on 15-04-2025).
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(5)	 Note no. 15(d) of the financial result stating that the company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020 
from Debt Recovery Tribunal-III, Delhi restraining the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, 
or disposing off or encumbering or creating any third-party interest with respect of the hypothecated assets/immovable 
properties of Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter and has filed its reply before DRT-I, Delhi.

(6)	 Note no. 15 (f) of the financial result stating that the Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT, New Delhi under section 19(4) 
of the Act. The Company is contesting the matter.

(7)	 In reference to Note no. 35 C (iv), Appeals are lying before the Dy. Excise & Taxation Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against 
the Order received from Excise and Taxation Deptt. Punjab in respect of Year 2009-10 and 2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs 
4,50,41,414/- towards the cess imposed by the State Govt. on exports. The company has challenged the validity of imposition 
of cess on export in its appeal as the same in not permissible under article 286 of the Constitution on India. Further demand 
has been raised for Rs. 5,41,073/- after completing the Sales Tax Assessment for AY 2011-12 against which appeal has been 
filed.

(8)	 In reference to Note no. 35 (viii)(b), The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder of Pinnacle Tower for 
vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder obtained interim stay on the order of Municipal 
Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon’ble High Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a petition before the civil 
judge, senior division, Faridabad with regard to stay of proceeding against order of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. The 
Hon’ble Faridabad Court has stated that already interim stay have been granted by the Hon’ble High Court, hence no ground 
to grant relief prayed for is made out at this stage.

(9)	 In reference to Note no. 35 (C)(viii)(c), The Company’s vendor has filed an execution petition before Faridabad District & 
Session Judge. The company is contesting the matter. The company has also approached Hon’ble High Court Chandigarh 
and Hon’ble High Court Delhi for stay on above matter. Further, the Company filed a petition before the Hon’ble Apex Court 
with regard to contesting of proceeding before District and Session Court, Faridabad. The Hon’ble Apex Court had allowed 
the company petition with granting relief to the Company and parties against the impugned order of Faridabad District 
Court and asked the Company to approach the Hon’ble High Court for Seeking Direction for further relief. The Company has 
also deposited the above amount in compliance with the order of Apex Court.

(10)	 In reference to Note no.41 read with Note no. 42 of the Balance Sheet which explains the management’s assessment of 
impairment of assets due to COVID 19 pandemic situations. As per the assessment of the management, the recoverable 
amount of assets is higher than it carrying value and hence no impairment of assets needs to be recorded in the financial 
statements.

(11)	 In reference to Note No.46, balances of some debtors and creditors are subject to their confirmations.

(12)	 In reference to Note no. 47 corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever 
necessary to confirm to current year classification.

(13)	 In reference to Note no. 15(g) and 48 As per the term of OTS, the company proposed to demonetized its Rice manufacturing 
Unit, the buyer of the Rice manufacturing Unit has deposited Full consideration Amount of Rs 190.00 Crores to the lenders, 
the lenders have issued NOC against rice MANUFACTURING UNIT, the company has accorded Approval from lender/
Shareholders in this regard. However, the Company is planning to operate Rice manufacturing unit (on lease basis) at Kandla, 
Gujrat to sustain its Business.

(14)	 In reference to Exceptional items of Rs 382.74 crores, based on the One Time Settlement by the Lender Banks, the OTS 
proposal amount was Rs 227.45 crores, the company has paid substantial amount of Rs 200 crores upto 15-04-2025, The 
Exceptional items of Rs 382.74 crores is on account of Gain on OTS.

(15)	 In reference to write off of MAT credit amounting to Rs 4.65 crores, keeping in view of the future business prospect of 
the company, the company plans to opt for the new tax regime u/s 115 BAA. Considering this, the company has foregone 
the MAT credit amounting to Rs 4.65 crores and accordingly written of the amount in the books of accounts.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition, the matters described 
in the “basis for qualified opinion” and “emphasis of matter” paragraph are by their nature are key audit matters.

Responsibility of Management’s and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as application, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thus, board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2020 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 
and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act; we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit; except as stated in para under the head “Basis for Qualified Opinion”.

	 b)	 Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, 
in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books;

	 c)	 The standalone financial statement dealt within the report are in agreement with the books of account and return;

	 d)	 Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, in our 
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules;

	 e)	 The matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect 
on the functioning of the Company.
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	 f)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the director’s is disqualified as on March 31st, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act;

	 g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

	 h)	 The company has maintained audit trail in the books of accounts maintained as per   the proviso to rule 3(1) of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as applicable with effect from 1st April 2023.    

 	 i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. 
Refer Note 35 to the financial statements;

		  ii.	 Except as matter described under “basis for qualified opinion” and “Emphasis of matter” paragraph, the company 
has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on 
long-term contracts including derivative contracts- Refer Note 28, 33, 34 and 39 to the financial statements;

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

				                                                	  For N C Raj & Associates
                                        		     	   Chartered Accountants 
                                    	                    Firm Reg. No. 002249N

 (CA. Sanjay Garg)
 Partner                                                                                                                   

Place: Delhi	  M.No. 088636
Date: 29-05-2025 	 UDIN: 25088636BMMJCP5013
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Annexure-A to the Auditor’s report (Referred to in our report of even date)
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the company on the standalone financial statement 
for the year ended 31st March,2025, we report that:

i.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

	 (a)	 (A) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including   quantitative details and situation 
of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

             	 (B) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b) 	 The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets at 
regular intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

	 (c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

	 (d) 	 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible 
assets during the year.

	 (e) 	 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules 
made thereunder.

ii.	 (a) 	 The Company has a program of physical verification of inventory at regular intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its inventory. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (b)	 The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹ 5 crore, in    aggregate, at any points of 
time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting 
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii.	 During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties 
and hence, clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv.	 The company has not given any loan, made any investment and provided any security to the parties covered under section 
185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

v.	 According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of records, we understand that the 
company has not received advance from customer for supply of goods which has been outstanding for more than three 
hundred and sixty-five days and fall under the definition of deposit u/s 73 to 76 read with rule framed thereunder. However, 
the company has not complied with regulation u/s 73 to 76 and rule framed thereunder.

vi.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the cost records specified by the central Government under sub 
section (1) of section 148 of the companies Act have been made and maintained by the company. However, we have not 
made the detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii.	 In respect of statutory dues:

	 (a)	  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including employees state insurance, 
income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), State Insurance, PF. ESI, Customs Duty, Cess and other statutory dues to the 
appropriate authority. However, statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year are due for a period of less than 
six months from the date, they become payable.



62

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are dues of Income   Tax, Sales Tax, VAT, Customs, 
Excise etc which has not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of disputes refer to Note no. 35 
of financial statement.

viii.	 As per the explanations and information given to us there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income 
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961).

ix.	 a) 	 On the basis of Audit procedures and as per the information gathered and explanations received, we are of the opinion 
that the company had defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowing to bank and financial institutions.  As per the 
below details:

Sr. No. Name of Bank Total default amount* 
(Rs in Lakhs)

Maximum delay  
(in days)

1 Indian Bank (Allahabad Bank)          3280.75 2554
2 Bank of India          1692.33 2555
3 Prudent ARC Limited          1450.36 690
4 IDBI Bank Limited          1107.43 2463
5 Punjab National Bank          7971.75 2559
6 State Bank of India            663.57 2556
7 Punjab National Bank – Corporate Guarantee          4088.17 1826
 Grand Total        20254.39

* Amount of interest not provided in books of accounts 
* The Company has entered into revised OTS with the Lenders on 21-12-2024 the company has provided the interest 
on OTS to the extent of Rs. 391.99 lacs for the Quarter Ended 31-03-2025.
 * Also, The company has enter into OTS with the Lead bank/Lenders vide dated 22-07-2021 and 21-12-2024 for 
revised amount of Rs. 227.45 Crores. As per terms and condition of the revised OTS, the company has paid Rs. 
200 Crores. (Rs. 78.5 Crores till 31-03-2025 and Rs. 121.5 Crores on 15-04-2025). The company has to pay balance 
amount of OTS of RS.27.45 crores along with interest on or before 30-09-2025.  
* Rs. 53.32 Crores is outstanding of PNB which is under consideration for OTS.

	 b) 	 As per the information and explanation given to us, Punjab National Bank (PNB) had declared the company as wilful 
defaulter. However, the company/ Directors had submitted the resolution plan for outstanding dues of the bank, which 
the consortium led by PNB had sanctioned.

	 c)  	 Term loans are applied for the purpose for which the loans are obtained and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(c) is not 
applicable. 

	 d)	 The company has not raised fund on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

	 e)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

	 f)	 The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of any securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x.	 (a)  	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

	 (b) 	 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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xi.	 (a) 	 No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

	 (b) 	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to 
the date of this report. 

	 (c) 	 No whistle-blower complaints were received by the auditor during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) 
of the Order is not applicable.

xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.	 In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	 (a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate the size and nature of its business.

	 (b)  The reports of the internal auditor for the period under audit were considered wherever necessary. 

xv.	 In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons 
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company.

xvi.	 (a) 	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the      Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

	 (b)	 The company is not part of any group. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the   Order is not applicable.

xvii.	 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding 
financial year and hence clause (xvii) is not applicable.

xviii.	 There is no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year, therefore this clause (xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.	  The company has incurred losses during the three immediately preceding financial years (2021-22, 2022-23, 2023-24) and 
hence, it is not required to spend any money under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause (xx) of the order is not applicable to the company for the Financial year 2024-25. However, the Company’s net profit 
during the current year exceeds the threshold limit of Rs. 5 Crores, therefore section 135 of the Act is applicable for the 
financial year 2025-26 and Company may need to spend money for the CSR activities in the financial year 2025-26.

xxi.	   In standalone financial statements reporting under clause (xxi) of the order is not applicable.

 For N C Raj & Associates
                                        		     	   Chartered Accountants 
                                    	                    Firm Reg. No. 002249N

 (CA. Sanjay Garg)
 Partner                                                                                                                   

Place: Delhi	  M.No. 088636
Date: 29-05-2025 	 UDIN: 25088636BMMJCP5013
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Annexure – B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31st March, 
2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kohinoor Food Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Holding Company”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the holding Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our 
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(“the Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards of Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the 
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain the reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
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of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

We draw our attention to paragraph of “Basis for qualified opinion” of our main report and the same to be read with our comments 
as stated below:

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has been identified 
as at 31st March, 2025.

1.	 The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for 

	 (a)	 Customer acceptance;

	 (b)	 Customer credit evaluation;

	 (c)	 Establishing customer credit limit for sales;

	 (d)	Acceptance of goods by customers and transfer of risk & reward at the time of sales.

	 This could potentially result in the company recognising revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate 
collection.

2.	 The Company did not have any internal control system for follow-up/recovery/adjustment of old outstanding receivables 
and payables including balance confirmation and reconciliation.

	 A ‘Material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiency, in internal financial control over financial reporting, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual financial statement will not be 
prevented or detective on timely basis. 

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of basis of qualified opinion, the holding  Company has maintained, in all 
material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st  March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit 
tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2025 standalone financial statements of the group and these material weaknesses does 
not affect our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the company.

 For N C Raj & Associates
                                        		     	   Chartered Accountants 
                                    	                    Firm Reg. No. 002249N

 (CA. Sanjay Garg)
 Partner                                                                                                                   

Place: Delhi	  M.No. 088636
Date: 29-05-2025 	 UDIN: 25088636BMMJCP5013
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MAR 2025
(Rs.in Lacs)

Particulars Note  As at 
 31-Mar-2025 

 As at 
 31-Mar-2024 

A. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3  15,404.00  15,812.41 
Capital Work in Progress 3  1.26  11.47 
Financial Assets
Other Non Current Assets 4  1,050.82  1,263.12 
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 5  168.33  744.94 

Total  16,624.40  17,831.93 
Current Assets

Inventories 6  709.96  1,157.60 
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 7  1,776.96  1,436.31 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8  116.33  45.41 
Other Financial Assets 9  5.80  5.52 

Other Current Assets 10  1,709.08  2,113.36 
Total  4,318.13  4,758.21 
TOTAL ASSETS  20,942.53  22,590.14 

B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital 11  3,707.15  3,707.15 
Other equity 12  (20,050.94)  (55,916.54)

Total  (16,343.79)  (52,209.39)
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 13  7,489.02  6,409.29 

Provisions 14  125.45  103.43 
Total  7,614.47  6,512.72 
Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15  20,177.96  63,611.99 
Trade Payables 16  1,064.91  1,629.74 
Other Financial Liabilities 17  8,265.16  2,783.64 

Other Current Liabilities 18  127.37  233.81 
Provisions 19  36.45  27.64 

Total  29,671.86  68,286.81 
TOTAL  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  20,942.53  22,590.14 
The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial 
Statements

As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st Mar 2025	
(Rs.in Lacs) 

Note For the Year Ended 
31-Mar-2025 

For the Year Ended 
31-Mar-2024 

INCOME
Revenue from Operations  8,639.25  9,509.70 
Other Income 20  501.67  63.63 

21
Total Income  9,140.93  9,573.33 

EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 22  2,354.53  3,250.42 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 23  830.11  355.48 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,WIP and Stock in Trade 24  170.24  (121.40)
Employee Benefits Expenses 25  822.80  696.84 
Finance Costs 26  1,653.18  1,791.81 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 3  606.44  631.12 
Impairment of Assets 
Other Expenses 27  4,046.66  3,854.77 

Total Expenses  10,483.96  10,459.05 

Profit Before Exceptional items and  Tax  (1,343.03)  (885.72)
Add  :   Exceptional Items-Income  38,274.23  -   
Less  :   Prior Period (Expenses)/Income  123.21  8.59 

Profit Before Tax  37,054.41  (894.31)
Tax Expenses

Current Tax
Income Tax for Prior Years
Deferred Tax  576.62  (441.47)

Profit/(Loss) for the year  36,477.80  (452.84)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans  (15.43)  (15.50)
Fair value of Investments through OCI  -    -   
Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss

 -    -   

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  (15.43)  (15.50)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  36,462.37  (469.34)

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (Face value of ` 10 each)
Basic (In Rs.) 32 98.36  (1.26)
Diluted (In Rs.) 32 98.36  (1.26)
The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements	

As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 
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Cash Flow Statement for the Quarter ended 31st Mar2025	
(Rs.in Lacs) 

Note For the Year Ended 
31-Mar-2025 

For the Year Ended 
31-Mar-2024 

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit before tax  37,054.41  (894.31)

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  606.44  631.12 
Finance cost  1,653.18  1,791.81 
Interest income  (3.29)  (0.51)
(Profit)/Loss on Sale/Deletion of Fixed Assets  (454.22)  (3.84)
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy  (54.36)  (51.66)
Bad Debts/Provision for Bad Debts  -   

   Operating profit before working capital changes  38,802.17  1,472.61 

Adjustments for 
Decrease/(Increase ) in Mat Credit Entitlement  (464.87)  -   
Decrease/(Increase ) in Inventories  447.64  (409.58)
Decrease/(Increase ) in Trade Receivables  (340.65)  (194.03)
Decrease/(Increase ) in other Receivables  616.31  (463.86)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables  (564.83)  845.30 
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables  5,390.49  1,567.86 

Cash generated from operations  43,886.26  2,818.30 
Income tax paid  -    -   
Net Cash from operating activities  43,886.26  2,818.30 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale of property, plant and equipment's  134.49  (533.89)
Interest Received  3.29  0.51 
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy  54.36  51.66 

Net cash from Investment activities  192.14  (481.73)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase/( Decrease) in short term borrowings  (43,434.02)    (683.21)
Increase/( Decrease) in Long term borrowings  1,079.73  4.36 
Interest paid  (1,653.18)  (1,791.81)

Net cash flow from financing activities  (44,007.47)  (2,470.66)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 70.92  (134.09)

- Cash & Cash equivalent at beginning of the year   45.41  179.50 
- Cash & Cash equivalent at end of the year  116.33  45.41 

As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A. Equity Share Capital

(Rs.in Lacs) 
Particulars No. Shares Amount 

Balance as at 1st April, 2023  3,70,71,530  3,707.15 

Change in equity share capital during the year  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  3,70,71,530  3,707.15 

Change in equity share capital during the year  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  3,70,71,530  3,707.15 
A. Equity Share Capital

(Rs.in Lacs) 

Particulars Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Account

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
Surplus  Total 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  1,499.72  15,757.23  (88,590.33)  15,885.19  (55,448.20)

Profit for the year  (452.84)  (452.84)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year  (15.50)  (15.50)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    (468.34)  -    (468.34)
Dividends
Transferred to General Reserve

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  1,499.72  15,757.23  (89,058.67)  15,885.19  (55,916.54)

Mat Credit Adjusted  (464.87)  (464.87)
Revlaution Surplus Adjusted  (131.90)  (131.90)
Profit for the year  36,477.80  36,477.80 
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year  (15.43)  (15.43)

 -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  1,499.72  15,757.23  (53,061.18)  15,753.29  (20,050.94)

Dividends  -   
Transferred to General Reserve  -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  1,499.72  15,757.23  (53,061.18)  15,753.29  (20,050.94)

As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
1.  	 Company Information

	 Kohinoor Foods Limited was incorporated in 1989. It is a Public Limited company listed on the stock exchanges, BSE and NSE. 
The Company is a leading Basmati Rice player and has a Rice mill situated at Murthal, Sonepat. It also owns a Food Factory 
situated at Bahalgarh, Sonepat. The products of the company are known for superior quality and are popular worldwide.

	 The company has two 100% wholly owned subsidiaries –Sachdeva Brothers Private Limited, in India and Kohinoor Foods USA 
Inc in USA.

2.  	 Significant Accounting Policies

(a) 	 Basis of Preparation

	 These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to 
as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were prepared by the company under Ind AS for the 
first time, with 01-04-2016 as date of transition.

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on going concern basis and on accruals 
basis unless otherwise stated. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial 
statements.

(b) 	 Use of Estimates and Judgments 

	 The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make certain assumptions and estimates that affect 
the reported amount, the Financial Statements and Notes thereto. Difference between actual results and estimates are 
recognized in the period in which they materialize. 

(c) 	 Property, Plant and Equipment

 	 The Company has adopted revaluation model for land & building. All the assets belonging to these classes of assets 
are carried at revalued amount being its fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent depreciation. The 
Company shall carry out the revaluation of these assets periodically after every 3 to 5 years.

	 Property, Plant & Equipment under all other classes are stated at cost of acquisition/installation inclusive of freight, 
duties, and taxes and all incidental expenses and net of accumulated depreciation. In respect of major projects involving 
construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalized. Expenses capitalized also include 
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the 
cost can be measured reliably.

	 Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital 
work-in-progress” and stated at the amount spent up to the date of balance sheet.

	 Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition.

(d) 	 Depreciation

	 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on written down value method, in terms of useful life of the Assets 
as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013. The depreciation rates which are different from the principal rates 
specified in Schedule-II are as follows: -

	 Tarpaulin					     100% p.a.

	 Wooden & Plastic Crates			   100% p.a.
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(e) 	 Financial Instruments 

(1) 	 Financial Assets 

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value 
on initial recognition. 

	 Subsequent measurement 

	 i) 	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost 

		  A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

	 ii) 	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

		  A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

	 iii)   	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

		  A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

	 Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures 

	 The Company has accounted for its investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture at cost, subject to impairment 
loss if any. 

	 Other Equity Investments 

	 All other equity investments are measured at fair value. Investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the 
Company has exercised the option to classify the investment as Fair Value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’), 
all fair value changes on the investment are recognised in OCI.

(2)  	 Financial liabilities 

	 Initial recognition and measurement 

	 All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring 
nature are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. 

	 Subsequent measurement 

	 Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing 
within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments.

(3)  	 Derivative financial instruments

	 Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign 
currency risks are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured at their fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when 
they arise.

(f)  	 Fair value measurement

	 The Company classifies the fair value of its financial instruments, FVTPL and FVTOCI, in the following hierarchy, based on the 
inputs used in their valuation:
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	 i) 	 Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the 
balance sheet date.

	 ii) 	 Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation 
techniques using observable market data. Such valuation techniques include discounted cash flows, standard valuation 
models based on market parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, dealer quotes for similar 
instruments and use of comparable arm’s length transactions.

	 iii) 	 Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs 
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(g) 	 Dividend to Equity Shareholders

	 Dividend to Equity Shareholders is recognized as a liability and deducted from shareholders’ equity, in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting.

(h) 	 Inventories

	 Raw materials, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Stores and spares are 
carried at cost.

	 Cost is determined on FIFO (First in First out) basis for raw material, and on weighted average method for all other categories 
of inventories. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to its 
present location and condition, where applicable, include appropriate overheads based on normal level of activity. 

(i) 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

( j) 	 Revenue Recognition 

	 Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount, rebate, returns and value 
added taxes. The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company 
activities. 

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred 
to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the amount 
of revenue can be measured reliably. On recognition of revenue the Company retains no effective control of the goods 
transferred to a degree usually associated with ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the 
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. 

	 Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Revenue in respect of Insurance / others claims, Commission, 
etc. is recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made. 

	 Revenue in respect of sale of licenses, duty drawback and other incentives is recognized on realization basis.

(k) 	 Research and Development

	 Research expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Development expenditure is capitalized 
only if the costs can be reliably measured, future economic benefits are probable, the product is technically feasible and 
the Company has the intent and the resources to complete the project. Development assets are amortized based on the 
estimated useful life, as appropriate.

(l) 	 Employee Benefits

	 Contributions to defined provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis. Present liability for 
future payment of gratuity is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date and the expenses is 
charged to the statement of profit and loss.
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(m) 	 Foreign Currency Transactions

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realized gains 
and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and the 
resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the 
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

(n) 	 Borrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs consist of interest, ancillary and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds and interest relating to other financial liabilities. Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent 
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

	 Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of such assets till such time the 
assets are ready for use. Other interest and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(p) 	 Income tax

	 Current Income Tax:

	 Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with Income Tax Act, 
1961. 

	 Deferred Tax:

	 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the tax are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

	 Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

	 Current and Deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. 

	 Minimum Alternate Tax:

	 According to section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) paid over and above the normal 
income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding assessment years for set-off against normal 
income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against the Company’s normal income tax during the specified period.

	 Keeping in view of the future business prospect of the company, the company plans to opt for the new tax regime u/s 115 
BAA. Considering this, the company has foregone the MAT credit amounting to Rs 4.64 crores and accordingly accounted 
for the same in the books of accounts.

(q) 	 Leases

	 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease 
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short term 
leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

	 The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They 
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from 
the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 
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	 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments 
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

(r) 	 Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

	 The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an 
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is 
made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where 
a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial 
Statements.

(s) 	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in 
FVTPL category.

(t) 	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
Indication exists; the Company estimates the recoverable amount of assets. If such recoverable amount of the assets or the 
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets belong is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the 
statement of Profit & Loss. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no 
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected at recoverable amount.

(u) 	 Exceptional Items

	 Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide further 
understanding of the financial performance of the company. These are material items of income or expense that have to be 
shown separately due to their nature or incidence.

(v) 	 Earnings per share

	 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own 
shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(w) 	 Events after the reporting period

	 Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period. The 
financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorization for issue.

	 Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-
adjusting events after the reporting date are not accounted, but disclosed.
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4 Other Non-Current Assets
(Unsecured, considered goods)

Security Deposit  105.51  87.71 
Others  945.31  1,175.41 

 1,050.82  1,263.12 

5 Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
Disallowance under Income tax act, 1961  42.61  585.70 
Related to fixed assets  125.72  159.24 

 168.33  744.94 

6 Inventories
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)

Raw Material  198.24  122.47 
Work in Progress  122.77  232.83 
Finished Goods  21.30  105.35 
Packing Materials  367.65  696.95 

 709.96  1,157.60 

a) Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net reliasble value.
b) Finished goods includes the Stock in transit. 

7 Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months  342.28  419.76 

Others  1,434.68  1,016.55 
 1,776.96  1,436.31 

	 Annexure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2025:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 

Months
6 Months 

-1 Year
 1-2 

Years
 2-3 Years More than 

3 Years
 Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good  1,434.68  -   -  -    67.51  1,502.19 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful  -    -   -  -    -    -   
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good  -    -   -  -    -    -   
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful  -    -   -  -    274.77  274.77 

	 Annexure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2024:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 

Months
6 Months 

-1 Year
 1-2 

Years
 2-3 Years More than 3 

Years
 Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good  1,016.55  -   -  144.99  -    1,161.54 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful  -    -   -  -    -    -   
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good  -    -   -  -    -    -   
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful  -    -   -  -    274.77  274.77 

 (Rs.in Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts  82.75  7.82 
Cash in Hand  31.10  35.10 
Fixed deposits as Margin Money with Banks  2.49  2.49 

 116.33  45.41 

9 Other Financial Assets (Current)
Staff Advance  1.66  2.02 
Interest accrued on bank deposits  2.67  2.30 
Advance to Related Party  1.48  1.20 

 5.80  5.52 

10 Other Current Assets
(Unsecured, Considered good)

Tax paid is against pending Appeal  1,418.62  1,417.26 
TDS Receivable 2024-25  0.43  -   
Advance against Purchases  236.07  179.65 
MAT Credit Entitlement  -    464.87 
Pre-paid Expenses  21.99  16.04 
Others  31.98  35.54 

 1,709.08  2,113.36 

11 Equity Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
75,000,000 (Previous year 75,000,000)    7,500.00  7,500.00 
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed And Paid-Up Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up  3,707.15  3,707.15 

a) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year  3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 
Number of Equity Shares issued during the year*  -    -   
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year  3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

b) Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company :
 As at 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 

No. of Shares  Shareholding No. of Shares  Shareholding 
(1) Jugal Kishore Arora  10,53,484 2.84%  10,53,484 2.84%
(2) Satnam Arora  57,49,158 15.51%  57,49,158 15.51%
(3) Gurnam Arora  62,89,204 16.97%  62,89,204 16.97%
(4) AL Dahra International Investments LLC  70,48,306 19.01%  70,48,306 19.01%
c)	 Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share and has equal dividend right. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The 
Dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 (Rs.in Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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d)	 Details of promoters holding in the Company

 Promoters Name 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 
No. of Shares  % of Total Shares No. of Shares  % of Total Shares 

Jugal Kishore Arora  10,53,484 2.84%  10,53,484 2.84%
Satnam Arora  57,49,158 15.51%  57,49,158 15.51%
Gurnam Arora  62,89,204 16.97%  62,89,204 16.97%

12 Other Equity

Capital Reserve  1,499.72  1,499.72 
Securities Premium Account  15,757.23  15,757.23 
Revaluation Surplus
As per last Balance Sheet  15,885.19  15,885.19 
Revaluation Surplus Adjusted  (131.90)  -   
Closing Balance  15,753.29  15,885.19 

Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet  (89,058.67)  (88,590.33)
Mat Credit Adjusted  (464.87)  -   
Profit/(Loss) during the year  36,477.80  (452.84)
Other Comprehensive Income  (15.43)  (15.50)

 (53,061.18)  (89,058.67)

 (20,050.94)  (55,916.54)

	 Nature and Purpose of Reserves

	 i.  Capital Reserve					   

	 Capital Reserve had been created consequent to forfeiture of Application Money on Share Warrants.	

	 ii. Securities Premium Account					   

	 Securities Premium Account had been created consequent to issue of shares at premium. These reserves can be utilised in 
accordance with Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013. 					   

	 iii Revaluation Surplus					   

	 Revaluation surplus was created on revaluation of Land & Building as on 01-04-2016. During the current year, a portion of 
the revaluation surplus was adjusted due to the sale of land in Amritsar.	

	 iv.  The company plans to opt for the new tax regime u/s 115 BAA. Considering this, the company has foregone the MAT 
credit amounting to Rs 4.64 crores and accordingly accounted for the same in the books of accounts.	

13 Borrowings (Non-Current)

Unsecured Loans
Loan from Directors*  7,293.44  6,205.14 
Loan from Other Parties**  195.58  204.15 

 7,489.02  6,409.29 

*  Loan from Directors are Interest free.			 

** (Not secured against any assets of the company,however, Directors have given their Key Man Insurance policy for raising the money)

 (Rs.in Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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14 Provisions (Non-Current)

Provision for Gratuity  125.45  103.43 

 125.45  103.43 

15 Borrowings (Current)

Secured
Loan repayable on Demand from Banks  20,177.96  63,611.99 

Unsecured
   Overdraft in Current Account  -    -   
   Corporate Gurantee  -   

 20,177.96  63,611.99 

a)	 Loan repayable on Demand from Banks are working capital loans secured by hypothecation of Inventory, book debts and 
other current assets of the company, both present and future and the first charge on fixed assets of the company (excluding 
of specific assets charged to Term lending Banks).

b)	 The balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. 	

c)	 Default in Repayment of Loan					   

	  There are default in repayment of bank loans from March-2018 onwards. 	

	 The Banks have classified the company’s accounts as Non Performing asset and served Notice under section 13(2) & 13(4) 
of The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002.

	 The lead banker, Punjab National Bank has filed petition under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before 
the Honbl’e court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is not yet admitted.					   

	 The Secured Creditors (IDBI Bank) of the Company have filed petition under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016, before the Hon’ble court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is yet to be admitted.	

	 The company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs. 14,596.39 Lacs  for current year ( Rs. 12,984.29 Lacs for previous 
year) and  Rs. 73,227.25 Lacs up to 31-03-2025 (previous year Rs. 58,630.87 Lacs) on bank loans  which were classified as 
non-performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not provided 
interest during the current year to the extent of Rs. 284.20 Lacs for the year ended 31-03-2025 and Rs.  264.57 Lacs for the 
period upto 31-03-2024 on account of revoked corporate gurantee KFL USA subsidiary.

d)	 The company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020 from Debt Recovery Tribunal-III, Delhi in the matter 
of ICICI Bank Vs. Kohinoor Foods Limited restraining the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, 
or disposing off or encumbering or creating any third party interest with respect of the hypothecated assets/immovable 
properties of Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter and taking necessary action.	

e)	 The company had issued a corporate guarantee in favor of PNB Hongkong(now PNB-Dubai) for loan granted by PNB 
Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai) to its wholly own subsidiary Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. PNB Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai) has 
invoked the corporate guarantee on default made by Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. The company has recognised the loss of Rs. 
4088.18 Lacs (previous year Rs. 3987.15 Lacs  on account of this liability.	

f)	 The Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT Delhi under section 19(4) of the Act. The Company is contesting the matter. 	

g)	 One Time Settlement (OTS)					   

	 As per the term of OTS , the company proposed to demonetised its Rice manufacturing Unit, the buyer of the Rice 
manufacturing Unit has deposited Full consideration Amount of Rs 190.00 Crores to the lenders, the lenders have issued 
NOC against rice MANUFACTURING UNIT, the company has accorded Approval from lender/Shareholders in this regards. 
However the Company is planning to operate Rice manufacturing unit (on lease basis) at Kandla, Gujrat to sustain its 
Business.		

 (Rs.in Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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 (Rs.in Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

16 Trade Payable
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  430.88  376.90 
Due to Others  634.03  1,252.84 

 1,064.91  1,629.74 

	 Annexure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2025:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
 Less than 1 

Years 
1-2 Years  2-3 Years More than 

3 Years
 Total 

(i) MSME  430.88  -    -    -    430.88 
(ii) Others  180.02  0.03  -    452.01  632.06 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
(iv) Disputed dues- Others  -    -    -    1.97  1.97 

	 Annexure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2024:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
 Less than 1 

Years 
1-2 Years  2-3 Years More than 

3 Years
 Total 

(i) MSME  299.36  77.55  376.90 
(ii) Others  755.94  480.40  1,236.34 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME  16.49  -    -    16.49 
(iv) Disputed dues- Others  -    -    -    -   

17 Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Current maturities of long-term debt  34.14  57.02 
Employees Benefits Payable  60.47  45.34 
Other Payables  228.60  564.82 
Advance against Sale of Murthal Plant  7,549.96 
Interest Payable  391.99  2,116.46 

 8,265.16  2,783.64 

18 Other Current Liabilities
Advance received from customers  75.48  134.33 
Statutory Liabilities  38.58  37.97 
Other Liabilities  13.31  61.51 

 127.37  233.81 

19 Provisions (Current)
Provision for gratuity  36.45  27.64 

 36.45  27.64 

20 Revenues From Operations
Sales of Products  8,425.79  9,432.44 
Other Operating Revenues  213.46  77.26 

 8,639.25  9,509.70 
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 (Rs.in Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

a) Sales of Products
Rice  55.81  1,065.21 
Foods  8,369.98  8,367.23 

 8,425.79  9,432.44 

b) Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap  92.93  58.30 
Income from Rice Processing  79.16  -   
Sale of Export License  41.37  18.96 

 213.46  77.26 

21 Other Income
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy  54.36  51.66 
Interest Income  3.29  0.51 
Commission Income  121.05  7.63 
Profit on Sale of Assets  322.32  3.84 
Rebate & Discount Received  0.66  -   

 501.67  63.63 

22 Cost of Material Consumed
Opening Stock  146.35  135.08 
Add: Purchases  2,406.43  3,261.69 
Less Closing Stock  198.24  146.35 

 2,354.53  3,250.42 

23 Purchase of Traded Goods
Non-Basmati Rice  23.74  -   
Foods  709.16  315.30 
Other Foods Products  87.26  28.33 
ITC Reversal on Exempt Item  9.95  11.85 

 830.11  355.48 

24 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and 
Stock in Trade

Opening Inventories  314.30  192.91 
Closing Inventories  144.07  314.30 

 170.24  (121.40)

25 Employee Benefit Expenses
Staff Salaries  728.35  609.61 
Gratuity  25.08  19.72 
Bonus  10.53  13.28 
Staff Welfare  36.38  31.90 
Employer's Contribution to P.F.& ESI  22.45  22.32 

 822.80  696.84 
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 (Rs.in Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

26 Finance Cost
Interest Expense*  1,637.35  1,779.43 
Bank Charges  15.83  12.38 

 -   
 1,653.18  1,791.81 

	 The company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs. 145,96.38 Lacs  for current year ( Rs. 129,84.29 Lacs for previous 
year) and  Rs. 732,27.25 Lacs up to 31-03-2025 (previous year Rs. 586,30.87 Lacs) on bank loans  which were classified as non-
performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not provided interest 
during the current year to the extent of Rs. 2,84.20 Lacs for the year ended 31-03-2025 and Rs.  2,64.57 Lacs for the period 
upto 31-03-2024 on account of revoked corporate gurantee KFL USA subsidiary.

 (Rs.in Lacs)  
For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

27 Other Expenses
a) Manufacturing Expenses

Loading and Unloading Charges  5.81  2.30 
Packing Materials Consumed  1,943.49  1,829.08 
Packing Material Designing Expenses  0.63  19.70 
Wages  507.36  452.98 
Processing Charges  0.58  -   
Repair to Machinery  129.84  105.96 
Power & Fuel  223.98  241.46 

 2,811.68  2,651.47 

b) Administrative Expenses
Payment to Auditors *
     -Statutory Audit Fee  10.60  10.60 
     -Tax Audit Fee  2.50  2.50 
     -Other Matters  0.87  2.31 
Postage, Telegram and Telephone  36.30  26.83 
General Expenses^  113.56  143.13 
Legal and Professional Charges  105.93  91.54 
Electricity Expenses  7.80  8.07 
Rates and Taxes  23.76  22.13 
Watch & Ward  45.14  39.02 
Charity and Donation  0.25  -   
Vehicle Maintenance  24.40  30.01 
Printing and Stationery  6.87  6.35 
Fumigation Expenses  7.60  5.68 
Insurance Charges  15.50  17.51 
Conveyance  20.14  18.42 
Membership & Subscription  2.77  3.82 
Traveling Expenses (Directors)  48.52  29.03 
Traveling Expenses (Others)  69.20  55.93 
Research & Development  22.89  13.68 
Additional G.S.T Demand  11.90  0.08 
Staff Recruitment Expenses  3.87  0.58 
Bad Debts/ Balance Written off  (43.99)  (0.50)
Rent  55.51  -   
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 (Rs.in Lacs) 
For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

Repairs to Building  89.03  68.61 
Repairs to Others  32.21  38.82 
Foreign Exchange  Loss  42.73  34.62 

 755.88  668.74 

c) Selling & Distribution Expenses
Advertisement and Publicity  2.54  1.68 
Business Promotion  117.69  156.70 
Rebate & Discount  2.29  16.88 
Ocean Freight  48.33  24.51 
Expenses Against Export  2.08  5.27 
Brokerage & Commission on Sales  4.78  13.49 
Clearing and Forwarding  301.38  316.03 

 479.10  534.55 

 4,046.66  3,854.77 

28	 Disclosures under IND AS-19 “Employees Benefits” :

a)	 Defined Contribution Plans:  	

	 Amount of Rs.22.45 Lacs (previous year Rs. 22.32 Lacs) pertaining to employers' contribution to Provident Fund and 
Employees State Insurance is recognized  as an expense and included in "Employees cost " in Note No. 26.	

b)	 Defined Benefit Plan:		

	 General description of Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity):					   

	 The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days  basic salary last 
drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service, or retirement, or death whichever 
is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service. The Company has set a limit of Rs. 20 lacs  (previous year 
Rs. 20 lacs) per employee. 

c)	 The disclosures for gratuity cost is given below:	

i	 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation

Particulars For the year ended       
31 March 2025

For the year ended       
31 March 2024

1 Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year  136.16  100.81 
2 Interest cost  9.82  7.41 
3 Currents service cost  15.39  12.44 
4 Benefits paid  (7.53)  -   
5 Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation  15.45  15.50 
6 Present value of obligation at the end of the year  169.29  136.16 

ii	 Change in plan assets					   

Particulars For the year ended       
31 March 2025

For the year ended       
31 March 2024

1 Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period  1.80  1.67 
2 Actual return on plan assets  0.16  0.13 
3 Employer Contributions  2.50  -   

Preveious year adjustment  -    -   
4 Benefits paid  (2.44)  -   
5 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  2.02  1.80 
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iii	 Actuarial gain/ loss on Plan Assets:-

Particulars For the year ended       
31 March 2025

For the year ended       
31 March 2024

1 Expected Interest Income  0.13  0.12 
2 Actuarial income on Plan Asset  0.16  0.13 
3 Actuarial gain/(Loss) for the year on Assets  0.03  0.00 

iv	 Balance Sheet and related analysis:-	 		

Particulars For the year ended       
31 March 2025

For the year ended       
31 March 2024

1 Present value of the obligation  at the end  169.29  136.16 
2 Fair value of plan assets  2.02  1.80 
3 Unfunded liability/provision in Balance Sheet  (167.27)  (134.36)

v	 The amounts recognized in the Income Statements		

Particulars For the year ended       
31 March 2025

For the year ended       
31 March 2024

1 Total Service Cost  15.39  12.44 
2 Net Interest Cost  9.69  7.29 
3 Expenses recognized in the Income statement  25.08  19.72 

vi	 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)					     		

Particulars For the year ended       
31 March 2025

For the year ended       
31 March 2024

1 Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) opening  -    -   
2 Actual gain/(Loss) for the year on PBO  (15.45)  (15.50)
3 Actual gain/(Loss) for the year on Asset 0.02 0.00
4 Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) for the year (15.43) (15.50)

vii	 Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows: 

A.	 Economic Assumptions		

	 The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market 
yield available on the Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities and the salary 
growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis. 

Particulars For the year ended       
31 March 2025

For the year ended       
31 March 2024

1 Discount rate  6.71  7.21 
2 Expected  rate of return on plan assets  8.00  8.00 
3 Salary growth rate  5.00  5.00 

B.	 Demographic Assumption

1     Retirement Age:                     58 Years
2     Mortality table :                      Indian Assured life maturity (2012-14)

29	 Disclosures under IND AS-108 on “Segment Reporting” :

	 As per the threshold limits prescribed under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-108) on  “Segment Reporting” prescribed 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules thereunder and the other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, the Company’s reportable activity falls within a single business segment and hence the disclosure 
requirements are not applicable.
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30	 Disclosures under IND AS-24 on “Related Party Disclosures” :

	 List of related parties			 

	 i)	 Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of the Company					   

		  -   Sachdeva Brothers Pvt Ltd. India					   

		  -   Kohinoor Foods USA Inc., 

	 ii)	 Joint Ventures					   

		  -   Rich Rice Raisers Factory LLC.- Dubai	

	 The company was holding 20% share capital in Al Dahra Kohinoor LLC and Al Dahra Kohinoor Industries LLC. Al Dahra 
Kohinoor LLC has exercised the call option which Kohinoor Foods Limited has accepted. Upon completion of formalities the 
share holding of Kohinoor Foods Limited in both these companies has been reduced to NIL and they are not considered as 
Associate Companies for the current year.

     	 iii)	 Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives		

             	 Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora	  		  Chairman 	
             	 Mr. Satnam Arora	  		  Jt.Mg.Director 	
             	 Mr. Gurnam Arora	  		  Jt.Mg.Director 	
             	 Mr. Nitin Arora	  			   Son of  Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora	
             	 Mr. Amit Arora	  			   Son of  Mr. Satnam Arora	
             	 Mr. Sumit Arora	 			   Son of  Mr. Satnam Arora	
             	 Mr. Ankush  Arora			   Son of  Mr.Gurnam Arora	

	 iv)	 Enterprise over which key managerial personnel exercise significant influence	

            	 - Satnam Overseas (Exports) - Partnership Firm of Promoter/Directors	
            	 - Adonis No.1 Beauty Clinic LLP	
            	 - Satnam International Pvt. Ltd.	
            	 - Satnam Haegens Ltd.	
            	 - Adhiraj Buildcon LLP	
            	 - QVC Foods Private Limited

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of Business during the year*
(In Rupees) 

Subsidiary 
Companies

Key Management 
Personnel and their 

Relatives

Enterprises over which Key 
Management Personnel 

exercise significant influence
Transactions during the year

Sale of products -  532.29 
 (400.78)

Purchase of products -  -   -
-  -   -

Advance Received -  -    53.62 
-  -    (83.43)

Loan from Directors  1,097.18 
 (300.67)

Repayment of Director's  Loan  8.88 
 (238.73)

Expenses incurred on behalf of the related party  0.28 
 (0.36)
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Subsidiary 
Companies

Key Management 
Personnel and their 

Relatives

Enterprises over which Key 
Management Personnel 

exercise significant influence
Balances outstanding at the year end:-

Loans/Advances -
-

Loan from Directors 7,293.44
 (6,205.14)

Advance From Customers  -    53.62 
 -    (83.43)

Loans/Advance  1.48 
 (1.20)

*Figures in (       ) are related to previous year.

31	 Disclosures under IND AS-17 on “Leases” :

31.1 	The Company Board approved an operating lease agreement with Liladhar Pasoo Forwarders Private Limited for the third 
party manufacturing agreement for sortex of rice job work in its meeting held on August 14 2023 at Kandla Gujrat India.	

31.2 	The Company entered into an Operating Lease Agreement with Rice India Private Limited dated May 22 2025 at Kandla 
Gujrat, India.				  

31.3 	There are finance lease agreements in force and future lease rent commitments as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025. 
lease rentals are paid towards  finance lease during current year.	

32	 Earning Per Share (EPS)
 (Rs. in Lacs) 

For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

i) Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders  36,462.37  (469.34)
ii) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating 

Basic EPS
 3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

iii) Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares  -    -   
iv) Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 

calculating Diluted EPS
 3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

v) Basic Earning Per Share  98.36  (1.26)
vi) Diluted Earning Per Share  98.36  (1.26)
vii) Face Value per Equity Share  10  10 

Calculation Weighted Average number of Equity Shares	

For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
Nos. of Days  365  365 
Nos. of Shares  3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

Nos. of Days  -    -   
Nos. of Shares  -    -   

total nos. of days  365  365 

Weighted Average number of shares  3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 
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33	 Disclosures under IND AS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” , in respect of Provisions	

Provision relating to Opening balance as at 
 1 April 2024

Created during the 
year

 Withdrawals  Closing  balance as 
at 31- March-2025 

Gratuity  131.06  40.51  9.68  161.89 

 131.06  40.51  9.68  161.89 

34	 Other disclosures as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013
 (Rs.in Lacs) 

For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
CIF Value of Imports

- Capital Goods  215.06  91.77 
- Raw Material Purchase  207.35  72.09 
- Packaging Material  656.71  1,085.75 

 1,079.11  1,249.61 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency  (On accrual basis)
-  Traveling  26.62  15.09 
-  Business Promotion  16.49  14.97 
-  Conveyance  2.51  2.99 
-  Packing Material Designing Expenses  -    16.04 
-  Commission on Export Sales  4.78  13.49 
-  Expenses against Export  -    1.32 
- Damage Claim  -    12.46 

 50.41  76.35 

Earning in Foreign Exchange
- FOB Value of Export of Goods  7,716.84  8,199.91 

35	 Contingent Liabilities not provided for 	 (Rs.in Lacs) 

 Particulars  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

A Claims against the company , not acknowledged as debt
i Income Tax  10,322.02  10,322.02 
ii Sales Tax  - Delhi  122.00  122.00 
iii VAT-Haryana  740.07  740.07 
iv Excise & Taxation Department, Punjab  455.82  455.82 
v Excise Duty  -    42.91 
vi Service Tax  0.12  9.12 
vii Legal Cases against the Company  963.94  963.94 

B Bank Guarantees  19.75  19.75 

C Surety Bonds issued to Govt. Agencies under EPCG/Adv License 
scheme

 2,082.34  2,082.34 
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Nature of contingent liabilities and other particulars are as given below:-	

i	 Following appeals are lying pending for hearing before the CIT(A), New Delhi/ Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi /  
Hon’ble Delhi High Court against the tax demand raised in impugned  Income Tax Assessment Orders as per details given 
below :-	

AY Tax Interest Total
2002-03 to 2008-09  298.03  106.00  404.03 

2009-10  -    -    -   
2010-11  2,331.25  1,347.86  3,679.11 
2011-12  835.77  780.20  1,615.97 
2012-13  1,274.98  1,019.99  2,294.97 
2013-14  406.83  264.39  671.21 
2014-15  798.05  453.85  1,251.89 
2016-17  275.78  129.05  404.84 

Total  10,322.02 
a)	 As per the advice received from legal experts and on the basis of merit of the case, there is a high probability that the 

aforesaid impugned orders will be set aside and the demand will be deleted. Accordingly, management is of the view that 
no provision in respect of the above demands is required to be made in the books of accounts. 

	 Further to above, for assessment year 2012-13/2014-15/2016-17, We had contested the matter before CIT(Appeal), based 
on our submission, our appeal was considered, the addition on certain matters were partially allowed in the case of Transfer 
Pricing Issue. On Corporate Issue complete addition was allowed to be reversed and thus the addition was nullified. The 
appeal effect against the order of CIT(Appeal) is awaited for all three assessment years.   

b)	 An appeal has been filed with CIT(A) on 11-08-2021 against an order passed towards addition of Rs. 2860.54 Lacs against 
transfer pricing adjustment in respect of A.Y 2017-2018 although there is no liability on the company since no demand has 
been raised by the department, but, this has impacted in the reduction of losses by the above amount.

c)	 An appeal has been filed with CIT(A) on 07-12-2021 against an order passed towards addition of Rs. 791.57 Lacs against 
transfer pricing adjustment in respect of A.Y 2018-2019 although there is no liability on the company since no demand has 
been raised by the department, but, this has impacted in the reduction of losses by the above amount.

ii	 An appeal before the Sales Tax Commissioner - Appeals, New Delhi is lying pending in respect of Sales Tax demand of 
Rs.122.00 Lacs on sale of REP Licenses made in earlier years.  		

iii	 Following appeals are also lying pending before the Appellate Authorities/Tribunal, Haryana as mentioned in coloumn.4 
against the impugned VAT Assessment Orders/Revision Order passed by the assessing authorities as mentioned in column. 
3 of the table given below :-	

Particulars Demand raised (Rs.) Assessing Authority Appellate Authority
(Col.1) (Col.2) (Col.3) (Col.4)
Sales Tax Murthal - AY 2008-09  732.35  Revision-Faridabad Tribunal-Chandigarh 
Sales Tax - Murthal - AY 2009-10  7.72  Revision-Faridabad  Tribunal-Chandigarh 
Total  740.07 

	 Note : The Appellate Authority has remanded back the above cases to Revision Authority,Rohtak / Assessing Authority, Sonipat	

iv	 Appeals are lying pending before the Dy. Excise & Taxation Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against the Order received from 
Excise and Taxation Deptt., Punjab in respect of Year 2009-10 and 2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs.450.41 Lacs towards the 
cess imposed by the State Govt. on exports.  The company has challenged the validity of imposition of cess on export in its 
appeal as the same is not permissible under article 286 of the Constitution of India. Further demand has been raised for Rs. 
5.41 Lacs after completing the Sales Tax assessment for AY 2011-12 against which appeal has been filed.	

v	 During the financial year 2016-17, the company has received an order from Hon.'ble Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, New Delh (CETSTAT) against the order passed by Commissioner of Service Tax (Adjudication), New Delhi demanding 
a service tax of Rs.259.25 Lacs. The Hon'ble CETSTAT vide its order dated 16/02/2017 has granted major relief of Rs.250.13 
Lacs against the aforesaid demand.					   
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viii	 Legal Cases against the Company

a)	 The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbai has filed a money suit for recovery of Rs. 963.94 Lacs towards alleged outstanding 
demurrage charges against which the company has filed its counter claim of Rs. 10.88 Cr. towards the financial losses, interest 
on the investment, refund of the license fees, refund of the demurrage charges, compensation and damages etc. The matter 
is still pending.		

b)	 The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder of Pinnacle Tower for vacating of permises Pinnacle Tower, at 
Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder obtained interim stay on the order of Muncipal Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon’ble 
High Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a petition before the civil judge, senior division, Faridabad with 
regard to stay of proceeding against order of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. The Hon’ble Faridabad Court has stated that 
already interim stay  have been granted by the Hon’ble High Court, hence no ground to grant relief prayed for is made out 
at this stage.			 

c)	 The company’s vendor has filed an execution petition before Faridabad District & Session Judge. The company is contesting 
the matter. The company has also approached Hon’ble High Court Chandigarh and Hon’ble High Court Delhi for stay on 
above matter. Further, the Company filed a petition before the Hon’ble Apex Court with regard to contesting of proceeding 
before District and Session Court, Faridabad. The Hon’ble Apex Court had allowed the company petition with granting relief 
to the Company and parties against the impugned order of Faridabad District Court and asked the Company to approach the 
Hon’ble High Court for seeking direction for further relief. The Company has also deposited the above amount in compliance 
with the order of Apex Court.		

36	 Commitments	 		

	 There are no commitment for contracts remaining to be executed on capital account as at the end of current year or previous year.

37	 Details of loans given, investment made and guarantee given covered u/s 186 (4) of the Companies Act-2013.

i	 Details of Loans given and investment made are given under the respective heads.					   

38	  As per the assessment of Management the company continues to be going concern. This assessment is based on Resolution 
plan submitted to the Banks by company and the interest shown by prospective investors in the company. 	

39	  Disclosures as Required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 113: Fair Value Measurement: 

	 Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments					   

	 As at 31.03.2025

Fair value measurement at Amortised 
Cost

                     FYTPL                      FYTOCI TOTAL
Level 1  Level 2 Level 3  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Non Current Financial Assets
Investment  -    -    -   
Other financial assets  -    -   
Current Financial Assets
Investments
Trade receivables  1,776.96  1,776.96 
Cash and cash equivalents  116.33  116.33 
Other financial assets  5.80  5.80 

 1,899.09  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,899.09 

Financial Liabilities
Non Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  7,489.02  7,489.02 
Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  20,177.96  20,177.96 
Trade Payables  1,064.91  1,064.91 
Other Financial Liabilities  8,265.16  8,265.16 

 36,997.06  -    -    -    -    -    -    36,997.06 
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As at 31.03.2024

Fair value measurement at Amortised 
Cost

                     FYTPL                      FYTOCI TOTAL
Level 1  Level 2 Level 3  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Non Current Financial Assets
Investment  -    -    -   
Other financial assets  -    -   
Current Financial Assets
Investments  -    -   
Trade receivables  1,436.31  1,436.31 
Cash and cash equivalents  45.41  45.41 
Other financial assets  5.52  5.52 

 1,487.25  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,487.25 

Financial Liabilities
Non Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  6,409.29  6,409.29 
Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  63,611.99  63,611.99 
Trade Payables  1,629.74  1,629.74 
Other Financial Liabilities  2,783.64  2,783.64 

 74,434.66  -    -    -    -    -    -    74,434.66 

40	  Financial Risk Management 		

	  The company has exposure to the following risks arising from Financial Instruments: 		

	  -     Credit Risk 					   

	  -     Liquidity Risk 					   

	  -     Market Risk 			 

	 CREDIT RISK 					   

	 Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) 
and from its financing activities, including cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions.	

	 CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT 	

	 Trade receivable related credit risk 					   

	 All trade receivable are reviewed and assessed for default on routine basis. Our historical experience of collecting receivables 
is of significant credit risk. 	

	 Other financial assets 		

	 The company maintains low exposure in cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the 
carrying value of each class of financial assets. 	

	 LIQUIDITY RISK: 			 

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The 
Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due 
without incurring unacceptable losses.	
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	 Maturities of financial liabilities 	

	 The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual 
maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.  

	 Maturity of Financial liabilities

31-Mar-2025 Carrying amount  Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-5 years 
Borrowings  27,471.40  20,177.96  -    7,293.44 
Trade Payables  1,064.91  1,064.91  -    -   
Other Financial Liabilities  8,265.16  8,265.16  -    -   

 36,801.47  29,508.03  -    7,293.44 

31-Mar-2024 Carrying amount  Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-5 years 
Borrowings  69,817.13  63,611.99  -    6,205.14 
Trade Payables  1,629.74  1,055.30  16.49  557.95 
Other Financial Liabilities  2,783.64  2,609.19  4.89  169.56 

 74,230.51  67,276.47  21.38  6,932.66 

	 Market Risk			 

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. The Company is exposed  to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments: 

	 -     Currency Risk 					   

	 -     Price Risk 					   

	 -     Interest Rate Risk 	

 	 Currency Risk 		

	 The Company operates internationally and consequently the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales 
in overseas market. The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and the 
Company follows policies which includes the use of derivatives like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure 
to foreign currency risk.

a)	 Foreign currency exposure not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise	

 2024-2025  2023-2024 
Particulars  Currency  Foreign Rs.in Lacs  Foreign Rs.in Lacs
Inflow

Export Receivable  USD  16,49,821  1,409.91  12,11,462  1,009.71 
Advances received from customers for export  USD  25,584 21.86  51,705 43.09

Loans and advances  DHR 
 USD 

Outflow
Advance Paid to Supllier for Import  USD  64,200  56.28  58,936  49.12 

 GBP  1,350  1.49 
 EUR  552  0.74 

b)	 There are no outstanding forward contracts as on 31 March 2025.	
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As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 

c)	 Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered by the company for the purpose of hedging its foreign currency 
exposures.	

	 There were no outstanding forward exchange contract entered by the company as on 31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024.

	 Price Risk 

 	 The price risk is the risk arising from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet either at fair value 
through Other Comprehensive Income or at fair value through profit or loss. 

 	 The Company’s equity investments are mainly strategic in nature and are generally held on a long-term basis. 

 	 Interest Risk 			 

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates.  As at March 31, 2025, the Company has short term borrowings of Rs. 20178 lacs which is exposed 
in financial risk.			 

 	 Commodity Risk 	

	 The Company is exposed to the fluctuations in commodity prices. Mismatch in demand and supply, adverse weather 
conditions, market expectations etc., can lead to price fluctuations. The Company manages these price fluctuations by 
actively managing the sourcing of the raw material and other products.

41	 As per the assessment of the management the recoverable amount of the assets is higher than its carrying value and hence 
no impairment of assets needs to be recorded in the financial statement.	

42	 The outbreak of Covid 19 has severally impacted business globally including India. The company had some short term 
impact on operation and recoverability of amount due from Debtors due to Covid 19 and the lockdown imposed by the 
government. 				  

43	 The company was not required to spend any amount in respect of corporate social responsibility (CSR) for current year and 
for previous year as per section 135 of Companies Act.	

44	 The company has not made any contribution to any political party during current year and previous year.	

45	 During the year no amount of Dividend has been remitted in foreign currency to Non Resident out side India. 	

46	 Some of the balances of Debtors and Creditors are subject to confirmation.	

47	 Corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever necessary to confirm to current year 
classification.				  

48	 Company’s Rice manufacturing unit is not running up to its full capacity due to non-availability/shortage of funds.
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In terms of our separate report of even date attached                                                   For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 

KOHINOOR FOODS LIMITED 
Office :- Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor, Surajkund, Faridabad, Haryana 121001.
CIN No. L52110HR1989PLC070351
ANNEXURE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025	

Form AOC -1 

( Pursuant to first provision to sub section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Account) Rules, 2014) 
Statement containing silent features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 

Part "A" : Subsidiaries

(Rs. in Lacs) 

01   Name of subsidiaries Company  Sachdeva Brothers 
Pvt Ltd. 

 Kohinoor Foods 
USA. Inc. 

02   Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned 31-03-2025 31-03-2025

03   Reporting currency  and Exchange rate as on

      the last date of the relevant Financial year in 

      the case of foreign subsidiaries

       i)   Reporting Currency INR USD

       ii)   Exchange Rate N.A 83.3466

04   Share Capital 15.84 7,263.97

05   Reserves & Surplus  (17.58)  (7,272.17)

06   Total Assets  -    0.62 

07   Total liabilities  -    0.62 

08   Investment  -    -   

09   Turnover  -    -   

10   Profit / Loss Before Tax  (0.28)  (2.12)

11   Provision for Tax  -    -   

12   Profit / Loss after Tax  (0.28)  (2.12)

13   Proposed Dividend including Dividend declared during the year.  -    -   

14   % of shareholding 100% 100%
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Independent Auditors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF KOHINOOR FOODS LIMITED

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited (“the Holding Company”), and 
its subsidiaries (‘the holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the group”) which comprise the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects/possible 
effects of the matters described in paragraph under ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at March 
31st, 2025, and its consolidated profit/loss including other comprehensive income, its consolidated cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date.

This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Holding Company’s Management and approved by the Holding Company’s Board 
of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting 
Standard 110 “Consolidated Financial Statements” (“Ind AS 110”), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on 
our audit.

We conducted our audit of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on The Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements (SA) 
700 “The Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. An audit of financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible 
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other audit procedures. An audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant 
matters that might be identified in an audit.

1.	 The Statement includes the results of the following entities:

	 Name of subsidiaries                                                             Country

	 (i)	 Kohinoor Food USA Inc.                                             	   (USA)

	 (ii)	Sachdeva Brothers Private Limited                         	   (India)

We did not receive the Audited Financial statements of above subsidiaries for the period ended 31st March, 2025. Although 
there is no significant impact of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at  
31st March, 2025.

Basis for Qualified opinion

1.	 In reference to Note No. 37 in the statement discloses the management’s assessment of the company’s ability to continue as 
going concern. The management’s assessment of going concern is based on the OTS by the lead bank PNB and the interest 
shown by prospective investors in the company. However, in view of negative net worth and due to financial constraints, 
material uncertainty exists about the company’s ability to continue as going concern and the decision of the management of 
the company to prepare the accounts of the company on going concern basis. There may arise a need to adjust the realizable 
value of assets and liabilities in the event of failure of assumption as to going concern.

2.	 As stated in Note No.15 (C) of Standalone Audited Financial Results, the company has not provided interest on bank 
loans to the extent of Rs.14596.38 lacs for the Current Year and Rs. 73227.25 lacs from the date on which the bank loans 
were classified as non-performing assets. Further, towards revoked corporate guarantee of the wholly owned subsidiary in 
USA, the company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs 284.20 lacs for the Current Year and Rs. 1209.84 lacs up to 
31.03.2025 from the date of revocation of corporate guarantee in the books of account. Further no provision has been made 
towards penal interest, penalties, any other Debit or Credit etc. as may be done by lenders. In the absence of reconciliation 
and complete statement of account from the banks, the above amount has been arrived as per calculation made by the 
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company. With the limited information the aggregate amount not provided in books of account of the company is not 
ascertainable with accuracy. However, the company has entered into revised OTS with Consortium of Banks and has paid 
substantial amount.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw your attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

(1)	 The company has not made Provision for the demand raised by various authorities (Such as Income Tax, Vat etc.) as the 
matters are pending before various appellate forums. We are unable to comment upon possible impact of non-provision in 
the consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

(2)	 We draw attention to Note No. 15 (C) of the statement of the company, The lead banker, Punjab National Bank has filed 
petition under section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the Hon’ble Court of NCLT. Chandigarh Bench, 
which is not yet admitted.

(3)	 In reference to Note no. 15 (C), The Secured Creditors (IDBI Bank) of the Company have filed petition under Section 7 of 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the Hon’ble court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is yet to be admitted.

(4)	 In reference to Note no. 15(C) to the standalone financial statement the Banks have classified the company’s accounts 
as non-Performing asset and served recall Notice under section 13(2) & 13(4) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of 
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002. The Company has given reply of said notices within the 
stipulated time. However, the Company has entered into One time settlement (OTS) with the lenders, as per the term and 
condition of the OTS, the company has deposited Rs 200 Crores with Banks. (Rs. 78.5 Crores till 31-03-2025 and Rs. 121.5 
Crores on 15-04-2025).

(5)	 Note no. 15(d) of the financial result stating that the company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020 
from Debt Recovery Tribunal-III, Delhi restraining the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, 
or disposing off or encumbering or creating any third-party interest with respect of the hypothecated assets/immovable 
properties of Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter and has filed its reply before DRT-I, Delhi.

(6)	 Note no. 15 (f) of the financial result stating that the Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT, New Delhi under section 19(4) 
of the Act. The Company is contesting the matter.

(7)	 In reference to Note no. 34 C (iv), Appeals are lying before the Dy. Excise & Taxation Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against 
the Order received from Excise and Taxation Deptt. Punjab in respect of Year 2009-10 and 2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs 
4,50,41,414/- towards the cess imposed by the State Govt. on exports. The company has challenged the validity of imposition 
of cess on export in its appeal as the same in not permissible under article 286 of the Constitution on India. Further demand 
has been raised for Rs. 5,41,073/- after completing the Sales Tax Assessment for AY 2011-12 against which appeal has been 
filed.

(8)	 In reference to Note no. 34 (viii)(b), The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder of Pinnacle Tower for 
vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder obtained interim stay on the order of Municipal 
Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon’ble High Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a petition before the civil 
judge, senior division, Faridabad with regard to stay of proceeding against order of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. The 
Hon’ble Faridabad Court has stated that already interim stay have been granted by the Hon’ble High Court, hence no ground 
to grant relief prayed for is made out at this stage.

(9)	 In reference to Note no. 34 (C)(viii)(c), The Company’s vendor has filed an execution petition before Faridabad District & 
Session Judge. The company is contesting the matter. The company has also approached Hon’ble High Court Chandigarh 
and Hon’ble High Court Delhi for stay on above matter. Further, the Company filed a petition before the Hon’ble Apex Court 
with regard to contesting of proceeding before District and Session Court, Faridabad. The Hon’ble Apex Court had allowed 
the company petition with granting relief to the Company and parties against the impugned order of Faridabad District 
Court and asked the Company to approach the Hon’ble High Court for Seeking Direction for further relief. The Company has 
also deposited the above amount in compliance with the order of Apex Court.

(10)	 In reference to Note no.39 read with Note no. 40 of the Balance Sheet which explains the management’s assessment of 
impairment of assets due to COVID 19 pandemic situations. As per the assessment of the management, the recoverable amount 
of assets is higher than it carrying value and hence no impairment of assets needs to be recorded in the financial statements.
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(11)	 In reference to Note No.44, balances of some debtors and creditors are subject to their confirmations.

(12)	 In reference to Note no. 45 corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever 
necessary to confirm to current year classification.

(13)	 In reference to Note no. 15(g) and 46 As per the term of OTS, the company proposed to demonetized its Rice manufacturing 
Unit, the buyer of the Rice manufacturing Unit has deposited Full consideration Amount of Rs 190.00 Crores to the lenders, 
the lenders have issued NOC against rice MANUFACTURING UNIT, the company has accorded Approval from lender/
Shareholders in this regard. However, the Company is planning to operate Rice manufacturing unit (on lease basis) at Kandla, 
Gujrat to sustain its Business.

(14)	 In reference to  Exceptional items of Rs 382.74 crores, based on the One Time Settlement by the Lender Banks, the OTS 
proposal amount was Rs 227.45 crores, the company has paid substantial amount of Rs 200 crores upto 15-04-2025, The 
Exceptional items of Rs 382.74 crores is on account of Gain on OTS.

(15)	 In reference to write off of MAT credit amounting to Rs 4.65 crores, keeping in view of the future business prospect of 
the company, the company plans to opt for the new tax regime u/s 115 BAA. Considering this, the company has foregone 
the MAT credit amounting to Rs 4.65 crores and accordingly written of the amount in the books of accounts.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Key Audit Matters.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition, the matters described 
in the “basis for qualified opinion” and “emphasis of matter” paragraph are by their nature are key audit matters.

Responsibility of Management’s and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as application, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thus, board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2020 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 
and 4 of the Order.
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2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act; we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit; except as stated in para under the head “Basis for Qualified Opinion”.

	 b)	 Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, 
in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books;

	 c)	 The consolidated financial statement dealt within the report are in agreement with the books of account and return;

	 d)	 Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, in our 
opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules;

	 e)	 The matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect 
on the functioning of the Company.

	 f)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31st, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act;

	 g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; 

	 h)	 The company has maintained audit trail in the books of accounts maintained as per   the proviso to rule 3(1) of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as applicable with effect from 1st April 2023.    

	 i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. 
Refer Note 34 to the financial statements;

		  ii.	 Except as matter described under “basis for qualified opinion” and “Emphasis of matter” paragraph, the company 
has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on 
long-term contracts including derivative contracts- Refer Note 28, 32, 33 and 38 to the financial statements;

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

 For N C Raj & Associates
                                        		     	   Chartered Accountants 
                                    	                    Firm Reg. No. 002249N

 (CA. Sanjay Garg)
 Partner                                                                                                                   

Place: Delhi	  M.No. 088636
Date: 29-05-2025 	 UDIN: 25088636BMMJCP5013
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Annexure-A to the Auditor’s report (Referred to in our report of even date)
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the company on the consolidated financial statement 
for the year ended 31st March,2025, we report that:

i.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

	 (a)	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including   quantitative details and situation 
of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

		  (B) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

       	 (b) 	 The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets at 
regular intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

       	 (c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

       	 (d) 	 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible 
assets during the year.

       	 (e) 	 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules 
made thereunder.

ii.	 (a) 	 The Company has a program of physical verification of inventory at regular intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its inventory. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (b)	 The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹ 5 crore, in    aggregate, at any points of 
time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting 
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii.	 During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties 
and hence, clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv.	 The company has not given any loan, made any investment and provided any security to the parties covered under section 
185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

v.	 According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of records, we understand that the 
company has not received advance from customer for supply of goods which has been outstanding for more than three 
hundred and sixty-five days and fall under the definition of deposit u/s 73 to 76 read with rule framed thereunder. However, 
the company has not complied with regulation u/s 73 to 76 and rule framed thereunder.

vi.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the cost records specified by the central Government under sub 
section (1) of section 148 of the companies Act have been made and maintained by the company. However, we have not 
made the detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii.	 In respect of statutory dues:

	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including employee’s state 
insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), State Insurance, PF. ESI, Customs Duty, Cess and other 
statutory dues to the appropriate authority. However, the arrears of the outstanding statutory dues as on the 
last day of the financial year are due for a period of less than six months from the date, they become payable.
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	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are dues of Income   Tax, Sales Tax, VAT, Customs, 
Excise which has not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of disputes refer to Note no. 35 of 
financial statement.

viii.	 As per the explanations and information given to us there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income 
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961).

ix.	 a) 	 On the basis of Audit procedures and as per the information gathered and explanations received, we are of the opinion 
that the company had defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowing to bank and financial institutions.  As per the 
below details:

Sr. No. Name of Bank Total default amount* 
(Rs in Lakhs)

Maximum delay  
(in days)

1 Indian Bank (Allahabad Bank)          3280.75 2554
2 Bank of India          1692.33 2555
3 Prudent ARC Limited          1450.36 690
4 IDBI Bank Limited          1107.43 2463
5 Punjab National Bank          7971.75 2559
6 State Bank of India            663.57 2556
7 Punjab National Bank – Corporate Guarantee          4088.17 1826
 Grand Total        20254.39

* Amount of interest not provided in books of accounts 
* The Company has entered into revised OTS with the Lenders on 21-12-2024 the company has provided the interest 
on OTS to the extent of Rs. 391.99 lacs for the Quarter Ended 31-03-2025.
* The company has enter into OTS with the Lead bank/Lenders vide dated 22-07-2021 and 21-12-2024 for revised 
amount of Rs. 227.45 Crores. As per terms and condition of the revised OTS, the company has paid Rs. 200 Crores. 
(Rs. 78.5 Crores till 31-03-2025 and Rs. 121.5 Crores on 15-04-2025). The company has to pay balance amount of 
OTS of RS.27.45 crores along with interest on or before 30-09-2025.
* Rs. 53.32 Crores is outstanding of PNB which is under consideration for OTS.

	 b) 	 As per the information and explanation given to us, Punjab National Bank (PNB) had declared the company as wilful 
defaulter. However, the company/ Directors had submitted the resolution plan for outstanding dues of the bank, which 
the consortium led by PNB had sanctioned.

	 c)  	 Term loans are applied for the purpose for which the loans are obtained and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(c) is not 
applicable. 

	 d)	 The company has not raised fund on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

	 e)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

	 f)	 The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of any securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x.	 (a)  	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

	 (b) 	 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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xi.	 (a) 	 No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

	 (b) 	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to 
the date of this report. 

	 (c) 	 No whistle-blower complaints were received by the auditor during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) 
of the Order is not applicable.

xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.	 In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	 (a) 	 The company has an internal audit system commensurate the size and nature of its business.

	 (b)  	 The reports of the internal auditor for the period under audit were considered wherever necessary. 

xv.	 In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons 
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company.

xvi.	 (a) 	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the      Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

	 (d) 	 The company is not part of any group. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the   Order is not applicable.

xvii.	 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding 
financial year and hence clause (xvii) is not applicable.

xviii.	 There is no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year, therefore this clause (xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix.	  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.	 The company has incurred losses during the three immediately preceding financial years (2021-22, 2022-23, 2023-24) and 
hence, it is not required to spend any money under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause (xx) of the order is not applicable to the company for the Financial year 2024-25. However, the Company’s net profit 
during the current year exceeds the threshold limit of Rs. 5 Crores, therefore section 135 of the Act is applicable for the 
financial year 2025-26 and Company may need to spend money for the CSR activities in the financial year 2025-26.

xxi.	 We did not receive the Audit Reports for the subsidiaries companies, Although the impact of financials of subsidiaries are not 
significant in the consolidated financial statements, Thus reporting under clause (xxi) cannot be done due to non-availability 
of Audit Reports. 

 For N C Raj & Associates

                                        		     	   Chartered Accountants 
                                    	                    Firm Reg. No. 002249N

 (CA. Sanjay Garg)
 Partner                                                                                                                   

Place: Delhi	  M.No. 088636
Date: 29-05-2025 	 UDIN: 25088636BMMJCP5013
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Annexure – B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31st March, 
2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kohinoor Food Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Holding Company”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the holding Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our 
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(“the Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards of Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the 
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain the reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 
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the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

We draw our attention to paragraph of “Basis for qualified opinion” of our main report and the same to be read with our comments 
as stated below:

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has been identified 
as at 31st March, 2025.

1.	 The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for 

	 (a)	 Customer acceptance;

	 (b)	 Customer credit evaluation;

	 (c)	 Establishing customer credit limit for sales;

	 (d)	 Acceptance of goods by customers and transfer of risk & reward at the time of sales.

	 This could potentially result in the company recognising revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate 
collection.

2.	 The Company did not have any internal control system for follow-up/recovery/adjustment of old outstanding receivables 
and payables including balance confirmation and reconciliation.

	 A ‘Material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiency, in internal financial control over financial reporting, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual financial statement will not be 
prevented or detective on timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of basis of qualified opinion, the holding  Company has maintained, in all 
material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st  March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit 
tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2025 consolidated financial statements of the group and these material weaknesses 
does not affect our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the company.

 For N C Raj & Associates

                                        		     	   Chartered Accountants 
                                    	                    Firm Reg. No. 002249N

 (CA. Sanjay Garg)
 Partner                                                                                                                   

Place: Delhi	  M.No. 088636
Date: 29-05-2025 	 UDIN: 25088636BMMJCP5013
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MAR 2025 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars  As at 
 31-Mar-2025 

 As at 
 31-Mar-2024 

A. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment  15,404.00  15,812.41 
Capital Work in Progress  1.26  11.47 
Financial Assets
Other Non Current Assets  1,050.82  1,263.12 
Deferred Tax Asset (Net)  168.33  744.94 

Total  16,624.40  17,831.93 
Current Assets

Inventories  709.96  1,157.60 
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables  1,776.96  1,436.31 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  116.33  45.41 
Other Financial Assets  5.80  5.52 

Other Current Assets  1,709.70  2,116.06 
Total  4,318.75  4,760.90 
TOTAL ASSETS  20,943.16  22,592.83 

B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital  3,707.15  3,707.15 
Other equity  (20,060.89)  (55,923.92)

Total  (16,353.74)  (52,216.77)
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  7,489.06  6,409.33 

Provisions  125.45  103.43 
Total  7,614.51  6,512.75 
Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  20,177.96  63,611.99 
Trade Payables  1,064.91  1,629.74 
Other Financial Liabilities  8,266.87  2,785.07 

Other Current Liabilities  135.34  241.58 
Provisions  37.30  28.47 

Total  29,682.39  68,296.85 
TOTAL  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  20,943.16  22,592.83 
The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial 
Statements

As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st Mar 2025	
(Rs. In Lacs) 

For the Year Ended 
31-Mar-2025 

For the Year Ended 
31-Mar-2024 

INCOME
Revenue from Operations  8,639.25  9,509.70 
Other Income  501.67  63.63 

Total Income  9,140.93  9,573.33 

EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed  2,354.53  3,250.42 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  830.11  355.48 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,WIP and Stock in Trade  170.24  (121.40)
Employee Benefits Expenses  822.80  696.84 
Finance Costs  1,653.18  1,791.96 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  606.44  631.12 
Impairment of Assets  -   
Other Expenses  4,049.06  3,856.89 

Total Expenses  10,486.36  10,461.33 

Profit Before Exceptional items and  Tax  (1,345.43)  (888.00)
Add  :   Exceptional Items-Income  38,274.23  -   
            Prior Period (Expenses)/Income  123.21  8.59 

Profit Before Tax  37,052.01  (896.59)
Tax Expenses

Current Tax
Income Tax for Prior Years
Deferred Tax  576.62  (441.47)

Profit/(Loss) for the year  36,475.40  (455.12)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans  (15.43)  (15.50)
Fair value of Investments through OCI  -    -   
Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss

 -    -   

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  (15.43)  (15.50)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  36,459.97  (470.62)

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (Face value of ` 10 each)
Basic (In Rs.)  98.36  (1.26)
Diluted (In Rs.)  98.36  (1.26)
The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements	

As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st Mar 2025	
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Note For the Year Ended 
31-Mar-2025 

For the Year Ended 
31-Mar-2024 

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit before tax  37,052.01  (896.59)

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  606.44  631.12 
Finance cost  1,653.18  1,791.96 
Interest income  (3.29)  (0.51)
(Profit)/Loss on Sale/Deletion of Fixed Assets  (454.22)  (3.84)
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy  (54.36)  (51.66)

   Operating profit before working capital changes  38,799.77  1,470.49 

Adjustments for 
Decrease/(Increase ) in Mat Credit Entitlement  (464.87)  -   
Decrease/(Increase ) in Inventories  447.64  (409.58)
Decrease/(Increase ) in Trade Receivables  (340.65)  (194.03)
Decrease/(Increase ) in other Receivables  618.38  (462.96)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables  (564.83)  845.30 
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables  5,390.99  1,569.12 
Un realized Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss  (0.17)  (0.03)

Cash generated from operations  43,886.26  2,818.31 
Income tax paid  -    -   
Net Cash from operating activities  43,886.26  2,818.31 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale of property, plant and equipment's  134.49  (533.89)
Interest Received  3.29  0.51 
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy  54.36  51.66 

Net cash from Investment activities  192.14  (481.73)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase/( Decrease) in short term borrowings  (43,434.02)    (683.21)
Increase/( Decrease) in Long term borrowings  1,079.73  4.36 
Interest paid  (1,653.18)  (1,791.96)

Net cash flow from financing activities  (44,007.47)  (2,470.82)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  70.92  (134.24)

- Cash & Cash equivalent at beginning of the year   45.41  179.65 
- Cash & Cash equivalent at end of the year  116.33  45.41 

 70.92  (134.24)

As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A. Equity Share Capital

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars No. Shares Amount 

Balance as at 1st April, 2023  3,70,71,530  3,707.15 

Change in equity share capital during the year  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  3,70,71,530  3,707.15 

Change in equity share capital during the year  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  3,70,71,530  3,707.15 
B. Other Equity 

(In Rupees) 

Particulars Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Account

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
Surplus

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve

 Total 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022  1,517.21  15,757.23  (86,799.28)  15,885.19  (1,405.59)  (55,045.25)
Profit for the year  (413.60)  (413.60)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year  5.79  5.79 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    (407.82)  -    -    (407.82)
Exchange difference on Foreign Currency
Translation of Foreign Operations  (0.21)  (0.21)

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  1,517.21  15,757.23  (87,207.10)  15,885.19  (1,405.80)  (55,453.27)
Profit for the year  (455.12)  (455.12)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year  (15.50)  (15.50)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    (470.62)  -    -    (470.62)
Exchange difference on Foreign Currency  -   
Translation of Foreign Operations  (0.03)  (0.03)

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  1,517.21  15,757.23  (87,677.72)  15,885.19  (1,405.83)  (55,923.92)
     Mat Credit Adjusted  (464.87)  (464.87)
     Revlaution Surplus Adjusted  (131.90)  (131.90)
     Profit for the year  36,475.40  36,475.40 
     Other Comprehensive Income for the Year  (15.43)  (15.43)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  1,517.21  15,757.23  (51,682.62)  15,753.29  (1,405.83)  (20,060.72)
     Exchange difference on Foreign Currency
     Translation of Foreign Operations  (0.17)  (0.17)
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  1,517.21  15,757.23  (51,682.62)  15,753.29  (1,406.00)  (20,060.89)

As per our Report of even date attached           For and on behalf of the board of directors 
for N C Raj & Associate
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002249N

Satnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director            

DIN No. 00010667                               

Gurnam Arora 
Jt. Mg. Director 

DIN No. 00010731   
Sanjay Garg
Partner
Membership No: 088636
Faridabad
29-May-2025

 Pradeep Goswami 
 C.F.O 

 Deepak Kaushal 
 Company Secretary 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
1.  	 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statement

	 These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to 
as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were prepared by the company under Ind AS for the 
first time, with 01-04-2016 as date of transition.

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on going concern basis and on accruals 
basis unless otherwise stated. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial 
statements.

	 The financial statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited (“hereinafter referred to as company/ holding company/ parent company”) 
together with its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Group”) are consolidated to form Consolidated Financial 
Statements (CFS). Consolidated Financial Statements consolidate the financial statements of KFL and its Wholly Owned 
Subsidiaries listed below

	 Wholly Owned Subsidiary(WOS)			   Country of Incorporation

	 Sachdeva Brothers Pvt Ltd					     India

	 Kohinoor Foods USA Inc.					     USA

	 The parent company has not received audited financial statement from its Joint venture company, Rich Rice Raisers LLC. Rich 
Rice Raisers LLC has closed its operations. KFL has 25% shareholding in this Joint Venture. The Management considers that 
the parent company is not in position to exercise control over this entity. Hence the results of Joint venture company Rich 
Rice Raisers LLC are not considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.  	 Significant Accounting Policies

(a) 	 Principles of Consolidation: 

	 The financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding 
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances 
and intra-group transactions in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)21 “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

	 The results and financial position of all the Group Companies are translated into the reporting currency as follows:

	 (i) 	 Current Assets and Liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that 
balance sheet;

	 (ii) 	 Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates.

	 (iii) 	 All resulting exchange differences are accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of net 
investment.

(b) 	 Use of Estimates and Judgments 

	 The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make certain assumptions and estimates that affect 
the reported amount, the Financial Statements and Notes thereto. Difference between actual results and estimates are 
recognized in the period in which they materialize. 

(c) 	 Property, Plant and Equipment

 	 The Group has adopted revaluation model for land & building. All the assets belonging to these classes of assets are carried 
at revalued amount being its fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent depreciation. The Group shall carry out the 
revaluation of these assets periodically after every 3 to 5 years.

	 Property, Plant & Equipment under all other classes are stated at cost of acquisition/installation inclusive of freight, 
duties, and taxes and all incidental expenses and net of accumulated depreciation. In respect of major projects involving 
construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalized. Expenses capitalized also include 
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applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the 
cost can be measured reliably.

	 Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital 
work-in-progress” and stated at the amount spent up to the date of balance sheet.

	 Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition.

(d) 	 Depreciation

	 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on written down value method, in terms of useful life of the Assets 
as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013. The depreciation rates which are different from the principal rates 
specified in Schedule-II are as follows: -

	 Tarpaulin					     100% p.a.

	 Wooden & Plastic Crates			   100% p.a.

(e) 	 Financial Instruments 

(1) 	 Financial Assets 

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value 
on initial recognition. 

	 Subsequent measurement 

	 i) 	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

		  A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

	 ii) 	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

		  A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

	 iii)   	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

		  A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

	 Other Equity Investments 

	 Equity investments are measured at fair value. Investments which are not held for trading purposes and where the Company 
has exercised the option to classify the investment as Fair Value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’), all fair 
value changes on the investment are recognised in OCI.

(2)  	 Financial liabilities 

	 Initial recognition and measurement 

	 All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring 
nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. 

	 Subsequent measurement 

	 Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing 
within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments.
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(3)  	 Derivative financial instruments

	 Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign 
currency risks are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured at their fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when 
they arise.

(f)  	 Fair value measurement

	 The Group classifies the fair value of its financial instruments, FVTPL and FVTOCI, in the following hierarchy, based on the 
inputs used in their valuation:

	 i) Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the 
balance sheet date.

	 ii) Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation 
techniques using observable market data. Such valuation techniques include discounted cash flows, standard valuation 
models based on market parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, dealer quotes for similar 
instruments and use of comparable arm’s length transactions.

	 iii) Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs 
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(g) 	 Dividend to Equity Shareholders

	 Dividend to Equity Shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders’ equity, in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting.

(h) 	 Inventories

	 Raw materials, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Stores and spares are 
carried at cost.

	 Cost is determined on FIFO (First in First out) basis for raw material, and on weighted average method for all other categories 
of inventories. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to its 
present location and condition, where applicable, include appropriate overheads based on normal level of activity. 

(i) 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

( j) 	 Revenue Recognition 

	 Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount, rebate, returns and value 
added taxes. The revenue is recognized when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the activities. 

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred 
to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the amount 
of revenue can be measured reliably. On recognition of revenue the Company retains no effective control of the goods 
transferred to a degree usually associated with ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the 
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. 

	 Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Revenue in respect of Insurance / others claims, Commission, 
etc. is recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made. 

	 Revenue in respect of sale of licenses, duty drawback and other incentives is recognized on realization basis.

(k) 	 Research and Development

	 Research expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Development expenditure is capitalised 
only if the costs can be reliably measured, future economic benefits are probable, the product is technically feasible and 
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the Company has the intent and the resources to complete the project. Development assets are amortised based on the 
estimated useful life, as appropriate.

(l) 	 Employee Benefits

	 Contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis. Present liability 
for future payment of gratuity is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date and the expenses 
is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(m) 	 Foreign Currency Transactions

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realised gains 
and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and the 
resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the 
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

(n) 	 Government Grant

	 Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the 
Company will comply with all attached conditions. Grant received from government towards property, plant & equipment’s 
acquired/constructed by the Company is deducted out of gross value of the asset acquired/ constructed and depreciation is 
charged accordingly.

(o) 	 Borrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs consist of interest, ancillary and other costs that the group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds 
and interest relating to other financial liabilities. Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent regarded 
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

	 Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of such assets till such time the 
assets are ready for use. Other interest and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(p) 	 Income tax

	 Current Income Tax:

	 Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with applicable 
Income Tax law. 

	 Deferred Tax:

	 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the tax are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

	 Current and Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. 

	 Minimum Alternate Tax:

	 According to section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) paid over and above the normal 
income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding assessment years for set-off against normal 
income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against the Company’s normal income tax during the specified period.

	 Keeping in view of the future business prospect of the company, the company plans to opt for the new tax regime u/s 115 
BAA. Considering this, the company has foregone the MAT credit amounting to Rs 4.64 crores and accordingly accounted 
for the same in the books of accounts.
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(q) 	 Leases

	 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease 
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short term 
leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

	 The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They 
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from 
the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 

	 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments 
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

(r) 	 Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

	 A provision is created when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made 
when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a 
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial 
Statements.

(s) 	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in 
FVTPL category.

(t) 	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 An assessment is made at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
such Indication exists; the Company estimates the recoverable amount of assets. If such recoverable amount of the assets 
or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets belong is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in 
the statement of Profit & Loss. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss 
no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected at recoverable amount.

(u) 	 Exceptional Items

	 Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide further 
understanding of the financial performance of the company. These are material items of income or expense that have to be 
shown separately due to their nature or incidence.

(v) 	 Earnings per share

	 The Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for the ordinary shares of 
parent company. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share 
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(w) 	 Events after the reporting period

	 Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period. The 
financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for issue.

	 Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-
adjusting events after the reporting date are not accounted, but disclosed.
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 (Rs. In Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

4 Other Non-Current Assets
(Unsecured, considered goods)

Security Deposit  105.51  87.71 
Others  945.31  1,175.41 

 1,050.82  1,263.12 

5 Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
Disallowance under Income tax act, 1961  42.61  585.70 
Related to fixed assets  125.72  159.24 

 168.33  744.94 

6 Inventories
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)

Raw Material  198.24  122.47 
Work in Progress  122.77  232.83 
Finished Goods  21.30  105.35 
Packing Materials  367.65  696.95 

 709.96  1,157.60 

a) Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net reliasble value.
b) Finished goods includes the Stock in transit. 

7 Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months  342.28  419.76 

Others  1,434.68  1,016.55 
 1,776.96  1,436.31 

	 Annexure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2025:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 

Months
6 Months 

-1 Year
 2-3 Years More than 

3 Years
 Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good 1434.68  -    -   67.51 1,502.19
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful  -    -    -    -    -   
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -   
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful  -    -    -   274.77 274.77

	 Annexure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2024:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 

Months
6 Months 

-1 Year
 2-3 Years More than 

3 Years
 Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good  1,016.55  -   144.99  -    1,161.54 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful  -    -    -    -    -   
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -   
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful  -    -    -   274.77 274.77
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 (Rs. In Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts  82.75  7.82 
Cash in Hand  31.10  35.10 
Fixed deposits as Margin Money with Banks  2.49  2.49 

 116.33  45.41 

9 Other Financial Assets (Current)
Staff Advance  1.66  2.02 
Interest accrued on bank deposits  2.67  2.30 
Advance to Related Party  1.48  1.20 

 5.80  5.52 

10 Other Current Assets
(Unsecured, Considered good)

Tax paid is against pending Appeal  1,418.62  1,417.26 
TDS Receivable 2024-25  0.43  -   
Advance against Purchases  236.07  179.65 
MAT Credit Entitlement  -    464.87 
Pre-paid Expenses  21.99  16.04 
Others  32.60  38.24 

 1,709.70  2,116.06 

11 Equity Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
75,000,000 (Previous year 75,000,000)    7,500.00  7,500.00 
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed And Paid-Up Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up  3,707.15  3,707.15 

 3,707.15  3,707.15 

a) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year  3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 
Number of Equity Shares issued during the year*  -   
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year  3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

b) Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company :
 As at 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 

No. of Shares  Shareholding No. of Shares  Shareholding 
(1) Jugal Kishore Arora  10,53,484 2.84%  10,53,484 2.84%
(2) Satnam Arora  57,49,158 15.51%  57,49,158 15.51%
(3) Gurnam Arora  62,89,204 16.97%  62,89,204 16.97%
(4) AL Dahra International Investments LLC  70,48,306 19.01%  70,48,306 19.01%
c)	 Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share and has equal dividend right. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The 
Dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
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d)	 Details of promoters holding in the Company

 Promoters Name 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 
No. of Shares  % of Total Shares No. of Shares  % of Total Shares 

Jugal Kishore Arora  10,53,484 2.84%  10,53,484 2.84%
Satnam Arora  57,49,158 15.51%  57,49,158 15.51%
Gurnam Arora  62,89,204 16.97%  62,89,204 16.97%

12 Other Equity

Capital Reserve  1,517.21  1,517.21 
Securities Premium Account  15,757.23  15,757.23 
Revaluation Surplus
As per last Balance Sheet  15,885.19  15,885.19 
Revaluation Surplus Adjusted  (131.90)  -   
Closing Balance  15,753.29  15,885.19 

Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet  (87,677.72)  (87,207.10)
Mat Credit Adjusted  (464.87)  -   
Profit/(Loss) during the year  36,475.40  (455.12)
Other Comprehensive Income  (15.43)  (15.50)

 (51,682.62)  (87,677.72)

Freign Currency Translation Reserve  (1,405.83)  (1,405.80)
As per last Balance Sheet  (0.17)  (0.03)
Add:- Exchange flucation during the year  (1,406.00)  (1,405.83)

 (20,060.89)  (55,923.92)
	 Nature and Purpose of Reserves

	 i.  Capital Reserve					   

	 Capital Reserve had been created consequent to forfeiture of Application Money on Share Warrants.	

	 ii. Securities Premium Account					   

	 Securities Premium Account had been created consequent to issue of shares at premium. These reserves can be utilised in 
accordance with Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013. 					   

	 iii Revaluation Surplus					   

	 Revaluation surplus was created on revaluation of Land & Building as on 01-04-2016. During the current year, a portion of 
the revaluation surplus was adjusted due to the sale of land in Amritsar.

	 iv.  The company plans to opt for the new tax regime u/s 115 BAA. Considering this, the company has foregone the MAT 
credit amounting to Rs 4.64 crores and accordingly accounted for the same in the books of accounts.	

13 Borrowings (Non-Current)

Unsecured Loans
Loan from Directors*  7,293.48  6,205.18 
Loan from Other Parties**  195.58  204.15 

 7,489.06  6,409.33 

*  Loan from Directors are Interest free.			 

‘** (Not secured against any assets of the company,however, Directors have given their Key Man Insurance policy for raising the money)

 (Rs. In Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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14 Provisions (Non-Current)

Provision for Gratuity  125.45  103.43 

 125.45  103.43 

15 Borrowings (Current)

Secured
Loan repayable on Demand from Banks  20,177.96  63,611.99 

 20,177.96  63,611.99 

a)	 Loan repayable on Demand from Banks are working capital loans secured by hypothecation of Inventory, book debts and 
other current assets of the company, both present and future and the first charge on fixed assets of the company (excluding 
of specific assets charged to Term lending Banks).

b)	 The balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. 	

c)	 Default in Repayment of Loan					   

	  There are default in repayment of bank loans from March-2018 onwards. 	

	 The Banks have classified the company’s accounts as Non Performing asset and served Notice under section 13(2) & 13(4) 
of The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002.

	 The lead banker, Punjab National Bank has filed petition under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before 
the Honbl’e court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is not yet admitted.					   

	 The Secured Creditors (IDBI Bank) of the Company have filed petition under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016, before the Hon’ble court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is yet to be admitted.	

	 The company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs. 14,596.39 Lacs  for current year ( Rs. 12,984.29 Lacs for previous 
year) and  Rs. 73,227.25 Lacs up to 31-03-2025 (previous year Rs. 58,630.87 Lacs) on bank loans  which were classified as 
non-performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not provided 
interest during the current year to the extent of Rs. 284.20 Lacs for the year ended 31-03-2025 and Rs.  264.57 Lacs for the 
period upto 31-03-2024 on account of revoked corporate gurantee KFL USA subsidiary.

d)	 The company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020 from Debt Recovery Tribunal-III, Delhi in the matter 
of ICICI Bank Vs. Kohinoor Foods Limited restraining the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, 
or disposing off or encumbering or creating any third party interest with respect of the hypothecated assets/immovable 
properties of Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter and taking necessary action.	

e)	 The company had issued a corporate guarantee in favor of PNB Hongkong(now PNB-Dubai) for loan granted by PNB 
Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai) to its wholly own subsidiary Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. PNB Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai) has 
invoked the corporate guarantee on default made by Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. The company has recognised the loss of Rs. 
4088.18 Lacs (previous year Rs. 3987.15 Lacs  on account of this liability.	

f)	 The Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT Delhi under section 19(4) of the Act. The Company is contesting the matter. 	

g)	 One Time Settlement (OTS)					   

	 As per the term of OTS , the company proposed to demonetised its Rice manufacturing Unit, the buyer of the Rice 
manufacturing Unit has deposited Full consideration Amount of Rs 190.00 Crores to the lenders, the lenders have issued 
NOC against rice MANUFACTURING UNIT, the company has accorded Approval from lender/Shareholders in this regards. 
However the Company is planning to operate Rice manufacturing unit (on lease basis) at Kandla, Gujrat to sustain its 
Business.

 (Rs. In Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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16 Trade Payable
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  430.88  376.90 
Due to Others  634.03  1,252.84 

 1,064.91  1,629.74 

	 Annexure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2025:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
 Less than 1 

Years 
1-2 Years  2-3 Years More than 

3 Years
 Total 

(i) MSME  430.88 - -  -    430.88 
(ii) Others  180.02 0.03 - 452.01  632.06 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME  -    -   -  -    -   
(iv) Disputed dues- Others  -    -    -    1.97  1.97 

	 Annexure of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2024:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
 Less than 1 

Years 
1-2 Years  2-3 Years More than 

3 Years
 Total 

(i) MSME  299.36 - -  77.55  376.90 
(ii) Others  755.94 - -  480.40  1,236.34 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME -  16.49 -  -    16.49 
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - -  -    -    -   

17 Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Current maturities of long-term debt  34.14  57.02 
Employees Benefits Payable  60.47  45.34 
Other Payables  230.31  566.25 
Advance against Sale of Murthal Plant  7,549.96  -   
Interest Payable  391.99  2,116.46 

 8,266.87  2,785.07 

18 Other Current Liabilities
Advance received from customers  75.48  134.33 
Statutory Liabilities  38.58  37.97 
Other Liabilities  21.28  69.28 

 135.34  241.58 

19 Provisions (Current)
Provision for gratuity  36.45  27.64 
Income Tax  0.85  0.83 

 37.30  28.47 

20 Revenues From Operations
Sales of Products  8,425.79  9,432.44 
Other Operating Revenues  213.46  77.26 

 8,639.25  9,509.70 

 (Rs. In Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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a) Sales of Products
Rice  55.81  1,065.21 
Foods  8,369.98  8,367.23 

 8,425.79  9,432.44 

b) Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap  92.93  58.30 
Income from Rice Processing  79.16  -   
Sale of Export License  41.37  18.96 

 213.46  77.26 

21 Other Income
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy  54.36  51.66 
Interest Income  3.29  0.51 
Commission Income  121.05  7.63 
Profit on Sale of Assets  322.32  3.84 
Rebate & Discount Received  0.66  -   

 501.67  63.63 

22 Cost of Material Consumed
Opening Stock  146.35  135.08 
Add: Purchases  2,406.43  3,261.69 
Less Closing Stock  198.24  146.35 

 2,354.53  3,250.42 

23 Purchase of Traded Goods
Non-Basmati Rice  23.74  -   
Foods  709.16  315.30 
Other Foods Products  87.26  28.33 
ITC Reversal on Exempt Item  9.95  11.85 

 830.11  355.48 

24 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and 
Stock in Trade

Opening Inventories  314.30  192.91 
Closing Inventories  144.07  314.30 

 170.24  (121.40)

25 Employee Benefit Expenses
Staff Salaries  728.35  609.61 
Gratuity  25.08  19.72 
Bonus  10.53  13.28 
Staff Welfare  36.38  31.90 
Employer's Contribution to P.F.& ESI  22.45  22.32 

 822.80  696.84 

 (Rs. In Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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26 Finance Cost
Interest Expense*  1,637.35  1,779.43 
Bank Charges  15.83  12.53 

 1,653.18  1,791.96 

	 The company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs. 145,96.38 Lacs  for current year ( Rs. 129,84.29 Lacs for previous 
year) and  Rs. 732,27.25 Lacs up to 31-03-2025 (previous year Rs. 586,30.87 Lacs) on bank loans  which were classified as non-
performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not provided interest 
during the current year to the extent of Rs. 2,84.20 Lacs for the year ended 31-03-2025 and Rs.  2,64.57 Lacs for the period 
upto 31-03-2024 on account of revoked corporate gurantee KFL USA subsidiary.

 (Rs. In Lacs) 
For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

27 Other Expenses
a) Manufacturing Expenses

Loading and Unloading Charges  5.81  2.30 
Packing Materials Consumed  1,943.49  1,829.08 
Packing Material Designing Expenses  0.63  19.70 
Wages  507.36  452.98 
Processing Charges  0.58  -   
Repair to Machinery  129.84  105.96 
Power & Fuel  223.98  241.46 

 2,811.68  2,651.47 

b) Administrative Expenses
Payment to Auditors *
     -Statutory Audit Fee  10.66  10.66 
     -Tax Audit Fee  2.50  2.50 
     -Other Matters  0.87  2.31 
Postage, Telegram and Telephone  36.30  26.83 
General Expenses^  113.56  143.13 
Legal and Professional Charges  106.16  91.84 
Electricity Expenses  7.80  8.07 
Rates and Taxes  23.76  22.13 
Watch & Ward  45.14  39.02 
Charity and Donation  0.25  -   
Vehicle Maintenance  24.40  30.01 
Printing and Stationery  6.87  6.35 
Fumigation Expenses  7.60  5.68 
Insurance Charges  15.50  17.51 
Conveyance  20.14  18.42 
Membership & Subscription  2.77  3.82 
Traveling Expenses (Directors)  48.52  29.03 
Traveling Expenses (Others)  69.20  55.93 
Research & Development  22.89  13.68 
Additional G.S.T Demand  11.90  0.08 
Staff Recruitment Expenses  3.87  0.58 
Bad Debts/ Balance Written off  (43.99)  (0.50)
Rent  57.63  1.77 

 (Rs. In Lacs) 
As at  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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Repairs to Building  89.03  68.61 
Repairs to Others  32.21  38.82 
Foreign Exchange  Loss  42.73  34.62 

 758.28  670.87 

c) Selling & Distribution Expenses
Advertisement and Publicity  2.54  1.68 
Business Promotion  117.69  156.70 
Rebate & Discount  2.29  16.88 
Ocean Freight  48.33  24.51 
Expenses Against Export  2.08  5.27 
Brokerage & Commission on Sales  4.78  13.49 
Clearing and Forwarding  301.38  316.03 

 479.10  534.55 

 4,049.06  3,856.89 

28	 Segment Information required as per IND AS 108

a) Information about products and services
Rice  55.81  1,065.21 
Foods  8,369.98  8,367.23 

 8,425.79  9,432.44 

b) Information about Geographical Area
Asia  1,455.00  1,770.59 
Americas  6,233.20  7,028.73 
Europe  57.81  118.52 
Africa  56.64  104.80 
Middle East  623.15  409.80 

 8,425.79  9,432.44 
Non Current Assets
Property , plant and Equipment Located in 
          India 15,404.00  15,812.41 

15,404.00  15,812.41 

29	 Disclosures under IND AS-24 on “Related Party Disclosures” :

	 List of related parties			 

	 i)	 Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of the Company					   

		  -   Sachdeva Brothers Pvt Ltd. India					   

		  -   Kohinoor Foods USA Inc., 

	 ii)	 Joint Ventures					   

		  -   Rich Rice Raisers Factory LLC.- Dubai	

	 The company was holding 20% share capital in Al Dahra Kohinoor LLC and Al Dahra Kohinoor Industries LLC. Al Dahra 
Kohinoor LLC has exercised the call option which Kohinoor Foods Limited has accepted. Upon completion of formalities the 
share holding of Kohinoor Foods Limited in both these companies has been reduced to NIL and they are not considered as 
Associate Companies for the current year

 (Rs. In Lacs) 
For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
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     	 iii)	 Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives		

             	 Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora
		  Mr. Satnam Arora
             	 Mr. Gurnam Arora
             	 Mr. Nitin Arora
             	 Mr. Amit Arora
             	 Mr. Sumit Arora
             	 Mr. Ankush  Arora
	 iv)	 Enterprise over which key managerial personnel exercise significant influence	
            	 - Satnam Overseas (Exports) - Partnership Firm of Promoter/Directors	
            	 - Adonis No.1 Beauty Clinic LLP	
            	 - Satnam International Pvt. Ltd.	
            	 - Satnam Haegens Ltd.	
            	 - Adhiraj Buildcon LLP	
            	 - QVC Foods Private Limited

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of Business during the year*

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Key Management 

Personnel and their 
Relatives

Enterprises over which Key Management 
Personnel exercise significant influence

Transactions during the year

Sale of products -  532.29 
 (400.78)

Purchase of products - -
- -

Advance Received -  53.62 
-  (83.43)

Loan from Directors  1,097.18 
 (300.67)

Repayment of Director's  Loan  8.88 
 (238.73)

Expenses incurred on behalf of the related party

Balances outstanding at the year end:-

Loans/Advances -
-

Loan from Directors  7,293.44 
 (6,205.14)

Advance From Customers  -    53.62 
 -    (83.43)

Loans/Advance
*Figures in (       ) are related to previous year.
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30	 Disclosures under IND AS-17 on “Leases” :

 30.1 The Company Board approved an operating lease agreement with Liladhar Pasoo Forwarders Private Limited for the third 
party manufacturing agreement for sortex of rice job work in its meeting held on August 14 2023 at Kandla Gujrat India.	

 30.2 The Company entered into an Operating Lease Agreement with Rice India Private Limited dated May 22 2025 at Kandla 
Gujrat, India.	 				  

 30.3 There are finance lease agreements in force and future lease rent commitments as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025. 
lease rentals are paid towards  finance lease during current year.	

31	 Earning Per Share (EPS)

 (Rs. in Lacs) 
For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

i) Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders 36,460.84  (468.39)
ii) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating 

Basic EPS
 3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

iii) Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares  -    -   
iv) Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 

calculating Diluted EPS
 3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

v) Basic Earning Per Share  98.36  (1.26)
vi) Diluted Earning Per Share  98.36  (1.26)
vii) Face Value per Equity Share  10  10 

Calculation Weighted Average number of Equity Shares	

For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
Nos. of Days  365  365 
Nos. of Shares  3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

Nos. of Days  -    -   
Nos. of Shares  -    -   

total nos. of days  365  365 

Weighted Average number of shares  3,70,71,530  3,70,71,530 

32	 Disclosures under IND AS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” , in respect of Provisions	

Provision relating to Opening balance as at 
 1 April 2024

Created during the 
year

 Withdrawals  Closing  balance as 
at 31- March-2025 

Gratuity  131.06 40.51 9.68  161.89 

 131.06 40.51 9.68  161.89 

33	 Other disclosures as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013
 (Rs. in Lacs) 

For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 
CIF Value of Imports

- Capital Goods  215.06  91.77 
- Raw Material Purchase  207.35  72.09 
- Packaging Material  656.71  1,085.75 

 1,079.11  1,249.61 
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For the year ended  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency  (On accrual basis)
-  Traveling  26.62  15.09 
-  Business Promotion  16.49  14.97 
-  Conveyance  2.51  2.99 
-  Packing Material Designing Expenses  -    16.04 
-  Commission on Export Sales  4.78  13.49 
-  Expenses against Export  -    1.32 
- Damage Claim  -    12.46 

 50.41  76.35 

Earning in Foreign Exchange
- FOB Value of Export of Goods  7,716.84  8,199.91 

34	 Contingent Liabilities not provided for

 Particulars  31-Mar-2025  31-Mar-2024 

A Claims against the company , not acknowledged as debt
i Income Tax  10,322.02  10,322.02 
ii Sales Tax  - Delhi  122.00  122.00 
iii VAT-Haryana  740.07  740.07 
iv Excise & Taxation Department, Punjab  455.82  455.82 
v Excise Duty  -    42.91 
vi Service Tax  0.12  9.12 
vii Legal Cases against the Company  963.94  963.94 

B Bank Guarantees  19.75  19.75 

C Surety Bonds issued to Govt. Agencies under EPCG/Adv License 
scheme

 2,082.34  2,082.34 

Nature of contingent liabilities and other particulars are as given below:-	

i	 Following appeals are lying pending for hearing before the CIT(A), New Delhi/ Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi /  
Hon’ble Delhi High Court against the tax demand raised in impugned  Income Tax Assessment Orders as per details given 
below :-	

AY Tax Interest Total
2002-03 to 2008-09  298.03  106.00  404.03 

2010-11  2,331.25  1,347.86  3,679.11 
2011-12  835.77  780.20  1,615.97 
2012-13  1,274.98  1,019.99  2,294.97 
2013-14  406.83  264.39  671.21 
2014-15  798.05  453.85  1,251.89 
2016-17  275.78  129.05  404.84 

Total  10,322.02 
a)	 As per the advice received from legal experts and on the basis of merit of the case, there is a high probability that the 

aforesaid impugned orders will be set aside and the demand will be deleted. Accordingly, management is of the view that 
no provision in respect of the above demands is required to be made in the books of accounts. 
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	 Further to above, for assessment year 2012-13/2014-15/2016-17, We had contested the matter before CIT(Appeal), based 
on our submission, our appeal was considered, the addition on certain matters were partially allowed in the case of Transfer 
Pricing Issue. On Corporate Issue complete addition was allowed to be reversed and thus the addition was nullified. The 
appeal effect against the order of CIT(Appeal) is awaited for all three assessment years.   

b)	 An appeal has been filed with CIT(A) on 11-08-2021 against an order passed towards addition of Rs. 2860.54 Lacs against 
transfer pricing adjustment in respect of A.Y 2017-2018 although there is no liability on the company since no demand has 
been raised by the department, but, this has impacted in the reduction of losses by the above amount.

c)	 An appeal has been filed with CIT(A) on 07-12-2021 against an order passed towards addition of Rs. 791.57 Lacs against 
transfer pricing adjustment in respect of A.Y 2018-2019 although there is no liability on the company since no demand has 
been raised by the department, but, this has impacted in the reduction of losses by the above amount.

ii	 An appeal before the Sales Tax Commissioner - Appeals, New Delhi is lying pending in respect of Sales Tax demand of 
Rs.122.00 Lacs on sale of REP Licenses made in earlier years.  	

iii	 Following appeals are also lying pending before the Appellate Authorities/Tribunal, Haryana as mentioned in coloumn.4 
against the impugned VAT Assessment Orders/Revision Order passed by the assessing authorities as mentioned in column. 
3 of the table given below :-	

Particulars Demand raised (Rs.) Assessing Authority Appellate Authority
(Col.1) (Col.2) (Col.3) (Col.4)
Sales Tax Murthal - AY 2008-09  732.35  Revision-Faridabad Tribunal-Chandigarh 
Sales Tax - Murthal - AY 2009-10  7.72  Revision-Faridabad  Tribunal-Chandigarh 
Total  740.07 

	 Note : The Appellate Authority has remanded back the above cases to Revision Authority,Rohtak / Assessing Authority, Sonipat

iv	 Appeals are lying pending before the Dy. Excise & Taxation Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against the Order received from 
Excise and Taxation Deptt., Punjab in respect of Year 2009-10 and 2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs.450.41 Lacs towards the 
cess imposed by the State Govt. on exports.  The company has challenged the validity of imposition of cess on export in its 
appeal as the same is not permissible under article 286 of the Constitution of India. Further demand has been raised for Rs. 
5.41 Lacs after completing the Sales Tax assessment for AY 2011-12 against which appeal has been filed. 	

v	 During the financial year 2016-17, the company has received an order from Hon.'ble Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, New Delh (CETSTAT) against the order passed by Commissioner of Service Tax (Adjudication), New Delhi demanding 
a service tax of Rs.259.25 Lacs. The Hon'ble CETSTAT vide its order dated 16/02/2017 has granted major relief of Rs.250.13 
Lacs against the aforesaid demand.

viii	 Legal Cases against the Company

a)	 The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbai has filed a money suit for recovery of Rs. 963.94 Lacs towards alleged outstanding 
demurrage charges against which the company has filed its counter claim of Rs. 10.88 Cr. towards the financial losses, interest 
on the investment, refund of the license fees, refund of the demurrage charges, compensation and damages etc. The matter 
is still pending.	

b)	 The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder of Pinnacle Tower for vacating of permises Pinnacle Tower, at 
Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder obtained interim stay on the order of Muncipal Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon’ble 
High Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a petition before the civil judge, senior division, Faridabad with 
regard to stay of proceeding against order of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. The Hon’ble Faridabad Court has stated that 
already interim stay  have been granted by the Hon’ble High Court, hence no ground to grant relief prayed for is made out 
at this stage.			 

c)	 The company’s vendor has filed an execution petition before Faridabad District & Session Judge. The company is contesting 
the matter. The company has also approached Hon’ble High Court Chandigarh and Hon’ble High Court Delhi for stay on 
above matter. Further, the Company filed a petition before the Hon’ble Apex Court with regard to contesting of proceeding 
before District and Session Court, Faridabad. The Hon’ble Apex Court had allowed the company petition with granting relief 
to the Company and parties against the impugned order of Faridabad District Court and asked the Company to approach the 
Hon’ble High Court for seeking direction for further relief. The Company has also deposited the above amount in compliance 
with the order of Apex Court.					   
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35	 Commitments	 		

	 There are no commitment for contracts remaining to be executed on capital account as at the end of current year or previous year.

36	 Details of loans given, investment made and guarantee given covered u/s 186 (4) of the Companies Act-2013.

i	 Details of Loans given and investment made are given under the respective heads.				  

37	 As per the assessment of Management the company continues to be going concern. This assessment is based on Resolution 
plan submitted to the Banks by company and the interest shown by prospective investors in the company.	

38	  Disclosures as Required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 113: Fair Value Measurement: 

	 Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments					   

	 As at 31.03.2025

Fair value measurement at Amortised 
Cost

                     FYTPL                      FYTOCI TOTAL
Level 1  Level 2 Level 3  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Non Current Financial Assets
Investment  -    -    -   
Other financial assets  -    -   
Current Financial Assets
Investments
Trade receivables  1,776.96  1,776.96 
Cash and cash equivalents  116.33  116.33 
Other financial assets  5.80  5.80 

 1,899.09  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,899.09 

Financial Liabilities
Non Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  7,489.06  7,489.06 
Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  20,177.96  20,177.96 
Trade Payables  1,064.91  1,064.91 
Other Financial Liabilities  8,266.87  8,266.87 

 36,998.81  -    -    -    -    -    -    36,998.81 
As at 31.03.2024

Fair value measurement at Amortised 
Cost

                     FYTPL                      FYTOCI TOTAL
Level 1  Level 2 Level 3  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Non Current Financial Assets
Investment  -    -    -   
Other financial assets  -    -   
Current Financial Assets
Investments  -    -   
Trade receivables  1,436.31  1,436.31 
Cash and cash equivalents  45.41  45.41 
Other financial assets  5.52  5.52 

 1,487.25  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,487.25 
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Fair value measurement at Amortised 
Cost

                     FYTPL                      FYTOCI TOTAL
Level 1  Level 2 Level 3  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Liabilities
Non Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  6,409.33  6,409.33 
Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings  63,611.99  63,611.99 
Trade Payables  1,629.74  1,629.74 
Other Financial Liabilities  2,785.07  2,785.07 

 74,436.13  -    -    -    -    -    -    74,436.13 

39	 As per the assessment of the management the recoverable amount of the assets is higher than its carrying value and hence 
no impairment of assets needs to be recorded in the financial statement.	

40	 The outbreak of Covid 19 has severally impacted business globally including India. The company had some short term 
impact on operation and recoverability of amount due from Debtors due to Covid 19 and the lockdown imposed by the 
government. 	 			 

41	 The company was not required to spend any amount in respect of corporate social responsibility (CSR) for current year and 
for previous year as per section 135 of Companies Act.	

42	 The company has not made any contribution to any political party during current year and previous year.

43	 During the year no amount of Dividend has been remitted in foreign currency to Non Resident out side India. 	

44	 Some of the balances of Debtors and Creditors are subject to confirmation.		

45	 Corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever necessary to confirm to current year 
classification.			 

46	 Company’s Rice manufacturing unit is not running up to its full capacity due to non-availability/shortage of funds.	 	
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